
Marysville City Council Work Session 
July 16, 2007                                      7:00 p.m.                                      City Hall 

Work Sessions are for City Council study and orientation – Public Input will be received at the 
July 23, 2007 City Council meeting. 

 
Call to Order 
Pledge of Allegiance 
Roll Call 
Committee Reports 
 
Presentations 
 
1. Snohomish Conservation District 
 
2. Golf Update 
 
Discussion Items 
 
Approval of Minutes (Written Comment Only Accepted from Audience.) 
 
3. Approval of July 9, 2007 City Council Meeting Minutes.  

 
4. Approval of July 16, 2007 City Council Work Session Minutes.  

 
Consent 
 
5. Approval of July 11, 2007 Claims in the Amount of $___; Paid by Check No.  
 
6. Approval of July 18, 2007 Claims in the Amount of $____; Paid by Check No. 

 
7. Approval of July 16, 2007 Payroll in the Amount of $1,038,966.23; Paid by 

Check No.’s 18116 through 18204. 
 
 
Review Bids 
 
Public Hearings 
 
Current Business 
 
8. Supplemental No. 4 Professional Services Agreement with KPFF Consulting 

Engineers for the State Avenue 136th Street NE to 152nd Street NE Corridor 
Improvement Project. 
 

9. Supplemental No. 1 Professional Services Agreement with Harmsen & 
Associates, Inc. to Conduct a “Short Plat” Survey of the City’s Sunnyside 
Reservoir Property. 

 
10. Authorize the Mayor to Sign the Final Plat Mylar for Getchell Hill PRD – Phase 3. 

 



Marysville City Council Work Session 
July 16, 2007                                      7:00 p.m.                                      City Hall 

Work Sessions are for City Council study and orientation – Public Input will be received at the 
July 23, 2007 City Council meeting. 

 
New Business 
 
11. PUD Delta – Marysville 12kV Distribution Project Easement through Ebey 

Waterfront Park. 
 
12. Utility Relocation Agreement with Snohomish County PUD for State Avenue 

136th Street NE to 152nd Street NE Corridor Improvements Project. 
 
13. Professional Services Agreement with the Transpo Group, Inc. to Provide 

Services to update the City’s Transportation Element of the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
14. An Ordinance of the City of the City of Marysville, Washington Amending 

Chapter 11.04 of the Marysville Municipal Code Adding A New Code Section 
Codified as 11.04.36.,11.04.037 and 11.04.038 Regarding the Setting of Speed 
Limits and Severability. 

 
15. An Ordinance of the City of Marysville, Washington, Amending Chapter 14.19, 

Section 080 (1) of the Marysville Municipal Code Modifying the Reduction and 
Appeals Section.  
 

16. An Resolution of the City of Marysville Declaring Certain Items of Personal 
Property to be Surplus and Authorizing the Sale or Disposal Thereof. 
 

17. Staffing Proposal and Budget Update. 
 

18. State Avenue 136th Street NE to 152nd Street NE Improvements – Purchase of 
Wetland Mitigation Credits from Habitat Bank, LLC. 
 

Legal 
 
Mayor’s Business 
 
Staff Business 
 
Call on Councilmembers 
 
Information Items 
 
Adjourn 
 
Executive Session 
 
Litigation 
 
Personnel 



Marysville City Council Work Session 
July 16, 2007                                      7:00 p.m.                                      City Hall 

Work Sessions are for City Council study and orientation – Public Input will be received at the 
July 23, 2007 City Council meeting. 

 
Real Estate 
 
Adjourn 
 
 
Special Accommodations:  The City of Marysville strives to provide accessible 
meetings for people with disabilities.  Please contact Kristie Guy, Human Resources 
Manager, at (360) 363-8000 or 1-800-833-6384 (Voice Relay), 1-800-833-6388 (TDD 
Relay) two days prior to the meeting date if any special accommodations are needed for 
this meeting.       
 



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

I 

PREPARED BY: ( AGENDA NUMBER: 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: July 23, 2007 

I Sandy Langdon, Finance Director 

Payroll 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Blanket Certification 

AGENDA SECTION: 

Please see attached. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
The Finance and Executive Departments recommend City Council approve the July 5, 
2007 payroll in the amount $1,038,966.23 Check No.'s 181 16 through 18204. 

COUNCIL ACTION: 

 Item 7 - 1



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

City Council Meeting Date: July 23,2007 
I AGENDA ITEM: I AGENDA SECTION: 

I PREPARED BY: I AGENDA NUMBER: ( 

State Avenue 136'~  Street NE to 1 5 2 " ~  Street NE Corridor 
Improvements - Supplemental PSA with KPFF Consulting Engineers 

Patrick Gruenhagen, P.E., Project Manager 
ATTACHMENTS: 

Professional Services Agreement, Supplement No. 4 

New Business 

Marysville City Council formally authorized the initiation of final design for the State Avenue 1 16"' 
Street NE to 1 52Ild Street NE Corridor Improvement Project in January of 2006. The design team has 
since undertaken and advanced the project's final design, or "PS&E," up to 90% completion. In 
conjunction with final design, significant progress has also been made with regard to permitting, 
NEPA environmental review, and Right of Way acquisition. As a consequence, the project remains on 
track for construction to begin this fall. 

BUDGET CODE: 
30500030.563000 1 R-0301 

The authorization being sought today would allow the design team to divide the final design package 
into two separate components - one for the portion of State Avenue between 1 16"' Street NE and 
1 36Ih Street NE, and one for the segment of Smokey Point Boulevard between 136"' Street NE and 
1 52nd Street NE. While the City had originally intended to widen both segments of corridor under 
the umbrella of one construction project, the ongoing upward trend in labor and material costs has 
caused the engineer's estimate (and o ~ ~ e r a l l p r o j e c t  cost) to balloon well beyond the level originally 
anticipated. As a result of these inflationary effects, and as a means of reducing project cost down to 
a manageable level, a decision has been made to "shelve" the south portion of the project. The 
attached Supplement 4 to the City's PSA with KPFF Consulting Engineers would put the framework 
in place to create a separate bid package for the south portion of the project, which could in-turn be 
put out to bid at some later time, as budget and circumstance allows. 

I 

AMOUNT: 
$64.45 1 .OO 

Cost Breakdown for Preliminary and Final Design Services: 

Prof. Services, Base Contract (Prelim. Design, Env. Documentation) May 2004 $519,104.00 
Management Reserve, Preliminary Design (5%) $25,955.00 
Supplemental Agreement No. 1 (Sewer Upsizing) Sept. 2005 $21,033.00 
Supplemental Agreement No. 2 (Final Design) March 2006 $889,054.00 
Management Reserve, Final Design (5%) $44,453.00 
Supplemental Aqreement No. 3 (Storm Drainage Design) Feb. 2007 $1 96,585.00 

(Previously Authorized) SubTotal: $1,696,184.00 

Supplemental A~reernent No. 4 (PS&E Re-packaqing) $64,451 .OO 
(Current Authorization) SubTotal: $64,451 .OO 

NEW MAXIMUM AMOUNT PAYABLE: $1,760,635.00 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Staff recommends that Marysville City Council authorize the Mayor to sign Supplement No. 4 to 
the previously-executed Professional Services Agreement with KPFF Consulting Engineers, in the 
amount of $64,45 1.00. 
COUNCIL ACTION: 

G:.Sbared Engineering R030I - State Avc~lus 136th to 152ndCansultant Agree~nents,KPFF Engineensupplement-4 ~ ~ - ~ ~ ~ ~ S u p p l e m e n t 4 - K P F F . d o c  Item 8 -1



- 
Washington State 
~ e ~ a r t m e n t  of Transportation 

Supplemental Agreement NO. 4 
1 

Agreement Number 
R-0301A 

Project Number 
R-0301 

I 
Description of Work 
The Consultant shall provide additional engineering design services to separate the existing design documents into two 
separate PS&E bid packages - one for the segment of State Avenue between 116th Street NE and 136th Street NE 
("south phase"), and one for the remainder of the project (north of 136th Street NE) as it currently exists. The 'south 
phase" bid package will be prepared in anticipation of putting it to shelf, and the north phase bid package will be prepared 
with a goal of putting it out to b ~ d  in the fall of 2007. Additional work also includes designing signal interconnect facilities 

Organization and Address 
KPFF Consulting Engineers 

1601 Fifth Ave 
Suite 1600 
Seattle, WA 98101 
Phone 
(206) 6225822 

Project Title 
State Avenue 116th Street NE to l52nd Street NE Conldor Improvements 

and incorporating that design into the current contract documents. 

New Maximum Amount Payable 
61,760,635 

The Local Agency of the CITY OF MARYSVlLLE 

desires to supplement the agreement entered into with KPFF Consultina Enaineers. Inc. 

and executed on Mav 24.2004 and identified as Agreement No. R-0301A 

and Management Reserve Authorization 01 executed on December 30.2004 1$8.500.00) 

and Management Reserve Authorization 02 executed on Januarv 11.2005 ($2,800.00) 

and Management Reserve Authorization 03 executed on Auaust 19.2005 ($14.655.00) 

and Supplemental Agreement No. 1, executed on Se~tember 19,2005 ($21.033.001 

and Supplemental Agreement No. 2, executed on March 13.2006 ($889,054.001 

and Management Reserve Authorization 04 executed on November 29,2006 ($29,477.00) 

and Management Resenre Authorization 05 executed on January 24.2007 ($10,382.00) 

and Supplemental Agreement No. 3, executed on Februarv 14,2007 ($1 96,585.00) 

All provisions in the basic agreement remain in effect except as expressly modified by this supplement. The changes to the 

agreement are described as follows: 

I 

Section 1, SCOPE OF WORK, is hereby changed to read: 

See attached Exhibit 6-1. S c o ~ e  of Services. 

II 

Section IV, TIME FOR BEGINNING AND COMPLETION, is amended to change the number of calendar days for completion 

of the work to read: Com~lete all requirements by October 31. 2007. 

111 

Section V. PAYMENT, shall be amended as follows: 

The additional services as described in Exhibit B-I, attached, will cause an increase of Sixtv-Four Thousand Four Hundred Fiftv- 
One Dollars ($64.451) as set forth in the attached Exhibit D-1 and bv this reference made a part of this su~plement. The 
Maximum Amount Pavable under this Contract, includinq Manaqement Reserve, shall be revised to One Million Seven Hundred 
Sixtv Thousand Six Hundred Thirtv-Five Dollars ($1,760,635). 

DOT Form 140663 EF 
Revised 1W7 

Item 8 -2



If you concur with this supplement and agree to the changes as stated above, please sign in the appropriate spaces below and 

return to this office for final action. Dated this day of ,2007. 

By: Dennis Kendall. Mayor 

Approving Authority Signature 

DOT Fam 140-083 EF 
Revised 10197 

Item 8 -3



EXHIBIT B-l 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

STATE AVENUE 
1 16th STREET NE TO 152"~ STREET NE CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENTS 

SUPPLEMENT 04 

This Scope of Work is to separate the current State Avenue Roadway Improvements Project into two 
separate bid packages, one for the improvements from 1 ~ 6 ~  St. NE to ~ 3 6 ' ~  st. NE, and one from 
136'~ St. NE to ~ 5 2 " ~  St. NE including storm drainage trunk main plans defined within Supplement 03. 
The work on the project from 136'~ st. NE to 1 52"d St. NE will be prioritized ahead of the work for the 
project from 1 16m St NE to 1 3 6 ~  St NE. 

Scope of Work also includes additional work of preparing Plans Specifications, and Estimates for new 
traffic signal interconnect between 1 28'h Street NE and 1 52"d Street NE. The design will be 
incorporated into two packages. 

The CONSULTANT shall provide all labor and services necessary to complete the work of this 
AGREEMENT, including all supplies, equipment, software, incidentals, and materials except as 
designated elsewhere in thjs AGREEMENT. The CONSULTANT shall submit all work to the ClTY in 
ClTY format as it is detailed in the work elements. 

The final contract plans shall be stamped with the seal of the consulting engineer. 

37.0 PROJECT MANAGEMENT AND QUALITY CONTROL 

A. Project Management - This Scope includes the project management and quality control and 
public involvement for the PS&E package for the project currently titled "State Avenue 
Roadway Improvements". 

1. Direction of the CONSULTANT staff and review of their work over the course of the 
PROJECT shall be provided. This work element includes preparing the monthly 
progress reports, monitoring the status of individual work elements, attending meetings, 
communicating outstanding information, and coordinating work items planned for the 
following month. 

Periodic monitoring of the PROJECT budget will occur over the course of the 
PROJECT. Current budget status shall be developed by the CONSULTANT. This work 
element is intended to help monitor costs and budgets and to propose corrective 
actions. These actions could include formal requests for budget increases or scope 
modifications or reduction. In the event that such requests are deemed necessary, they 
shall be forwarded to the City prior to commencement of associated work, and with 
sufficient detail so as to allow the City adequate opportunity to understand and respond 
to them on their merits. 

Exhibit B -1 - Scope of Work, Supplement No. 4 
Page 3 

State Avenue, 116th Street NE to 152nd Street NE 

Item 8 -4



3. Drawings and documents received and generated over the course of the PROJECT 
require review, coordination, and file management. This information will be filed to 
facilitate ready and selective retrieval. The status of requested information will be 
monitored. 

B. SUBCONSULTANT Liaison 

1. Direction of the SUBCONSULTANTS and review of their work over the course of the 
PROJECT shall be provided by the CONSULTANT. This work element includes 
reviewing the status of individual work element and monthly progress reports, attending 
meetings, and planning work items for the following month. 

2. Monthly monitoring of the SUBCONSULTANTS budget shall occur over the course of 
the PROJECT. Current status will be developed. This work element is intended to help 
monitor costs and budgets and to propose corrective actions. These actions could 
include formal requests for scopelbudget modifications. In the event that such requests 
are deemed necessary, they shall be forwarded to the City prior to commencement of 
associated work, and with sufficient detail so as to allow the City adequate opportunity 
to understand and respond to them on their merits. 

C. Create and Maintain the Schedule 

1. The CONSULTANT shall submit a comprehensive project schedule to the City no later 
than 5 working days after the date the AGREEMENT is executed. This schedule, as 
well as all supplemental schedules, shall be developed by a critical path method using 
Microsoft Project and shall show the following: 

a. Completion of all work within the specified contract time. 

b. The proposed order of work. 

c. Projected starting and completion dates for major phases of the work (milestones) 
for the total project, as well as key subordinate tasks. 

2. The CONSULTANT shall submit supplemental project schedules at the bi-weekly status 
meetings or whenever there has been a change in the schedule affecting the critical 
path, and when requested by the City. Supplemental schedules shall reflect all 
changes in the proposed order of work and all affects to the progress of the work. 

3. Work shall consistently progress with the following major milestones: 

a. Environmental documentation. 

b. Permitting. 

c. PS&E Completion / Advertisement / Award. 

d. Right-of-way acquisition. 

Exhibit B -1 - Scope of Work, Supplement No. 4 
Page 4 

State Avenue, 116th Street NE to 152nd Street NE 

Item 8 -5



Monthly Progress Reports and Invoices 

1. Monthly progress reports shall be prepared by the CONSULTANT in a format agreed to 
with the City's Project Design Engineer, and shall include a written report of the work 
performed by the CONSULTANT and SUBCONSULTANTS during the billing period. 

2. Monthly invoices shall be prepared by the CONSULTANT for work activities for the prior 
month. These shall include SUBCONSULTANTS work. Both the progress report and 
invoice shall be submitted at the same time. 

Deliverables: Monthly Progress Reports and Invoices 

E. Coordination Meetings and Field Visits 

1. The CONSULTANT shall prepare for, attend, and document up to two additional 
coordination meetings with the City, and/or other affected agencies and 
SUBCONSULTANTS. Comprehensive minutes shall be prepared for each meeting by 
the CONSULTANT, and distributed to all participants no later than two days thereafter. 
The meetings will be held in the City. 

F. Quality Control/Assurance (QCIQA) Review. 

1. This task is for QC/QA review of CONSULTANT deliverables. The review will cover 
plans, cost estimates, and pertinent information on an ongoing basis. The work entails 
the periodic review of design criteria, assumptions, concepts, and presentation of 
product format, and assurances that the overall PROJECT objectives are being fulfilled. 

2. Additional quality review shall be provided by the City's liaison by reviewing work in 
progress. Also, individual disciplines and support groups within the City will be relied 
upon to review and provide direction of pertinent work items, and will coordinate with 
the CONSULTANT'S project manager and pertinent staff members. 

While the City may fulfill some quality review function, as noted, the responsibility for 
quality control and assurance falls primarily to the CONSULTANT. Consequently, 
QNQC review shall be performed by the CONSULTANT in a manner and to an extent 
that ensures only minimal need for subsequent QNQC review and correction by the 
City. 

Exhibit B -1 -Scope of Work. Supplement No. 4 
Page 5 

State Avenue, 116th Street NE to 152nd Street NE 

Item 8 -6



38.0 DEVELOPMENT OF SEPARATE ROAD PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS AND ESTIMATE 

The CONSULTANT will develop two separate bid packages for the current 90% design plans of 
the State Avenue Roadway Improvement project. The two design packages will be separated 
as follows: 

Package 1: lncludes all road and utility work between and including 136'~ St. NE and 
152" St. NE, including storm drain work authorized within Contract Supplement 03. 
Package 2: lncludes road and storm drainage work from 1 ~ 6 ' ~  St. NE to 136" St. NE. 

A. Prepare separate set of ACAD files and Drawings. This work also includes revised title 
blocks for the separate packages, reindexing and numbering, copying detail sheets, 
separating numerical tables including roadway quantity tabulations, drainage structure 
notes, Summary of Quantities, driveway schedules, and signing schedules. 

B. Prepare 90 percent and final construction cost estimates and specifications for both 
phases, separately. Package from 1 161h St NE to 136'~ St NE will be completed to a final 
state to be advertised for bid at a later date. 

Deliverables: 
90 percent and 100 percent plans specifications and estimate for both sets of Contract 
Documents, as well as a Final set of Plans, Specifications, and Cost Estimate for the 
package from 1 36'h st. NE to 1 52nd St. NE. 

Assumptions: 
All design will be accomplished within a four-month timeframe. 
Work to update package from 116th St. NE to 136th St. NE to be bid ready is not 
included within this Scope of Work. This work would include updating to current 
versions of standard plans, State Specification Amendments and General Special 
Provisions, current wage rates, etc. 

Exhibit B -1 - Scope of Work, Supplement No. 4 
Page 6 

State Avenue, 11 6th Street NE to 152nd Street NE 

Item 8 -7



39.0 DEVELOPMENT OF SEPARATE SIGNAL DESIGN PACKAGES 

A. The CONSULTANT will take the current 60% signal design plans submitted for the State 
Avenue Roadway Improvements project and break the design plans into two separate 
design packages. This includes separating the plans, developing additional detail sheets 
that are relevant to each package, separate project tailored specifications, and estimates. 
This will also include additional coordination time with the design team for each submittal. 
The two design packages will be separated as follows: 

Package 1: Include all signal work between and including 136'~lstate Avenue 
and 1 52"d/~tate Avenue 
Package 2: Include signal modifications at 128 '~ l~ ta te  Avenue 

Deliverables: 
90% Plans, Specifications and Cost Estimate for each bid package; 
100% Plans, Specifications and Cost Estimate for each bid package; 
Signed set of Plans, Specifications and Cost Estimate for each bid package; 

Assumptions: 
Each design package (plans, specifications, and estimates) will include the following 
submittals: 

90% review package 
100% review package 
Final signed bid ready package 

Since Package 2 is not going to be bid with Package 1, it is assumed that additional 
work will be required to update the plans, specifications and estimate to make them 
bid ready. This will include updated plans and details, special provisions, and unit 
costs. This work is not yet included within this Scope of Work. 

40.0 TRAFFIC SIGNAL INTERCONNECT DESIGN (BY DKS) 

Upon receipt of written authorization to proceed from the CITY, the CONSULTANT will 
provide final design services for new traffic signal interconnect between 128th Street NE and 
152nd Street NE. The design will be incorporated into two packages, one for the north phase 
and one for the south phase. Complete Plans, Specifications, and Estimates will be provided 
for each phase. 

A: Develop Communications Plan: 

The CONSULTANT will meet the City Traffic Engineer and IT department (1 meeting 
assumed) to develop a communications strategy to be deployed. This task will identify the 
following: type of communication hardware; the type of communication cabling to each 
device; cable specifications; cable storage requirements; and existing cable pathways to 
the fire station building. The findings of this meeting will be summarized in a short 
memorandum outlining the communications plan. 

Exhibit B -1 - Scope of Work, Supplement No. 4 
Page 7 

State Avenue, 116th Street NE to 152nd Street NE 

Item 8 -8



Deliverables: 
Memorandum summarizing the communications plan. The memorandum will be 
submitted to the City for review and comments. Revisions will be incorporated and a 
final version of the memorandum will be used as the basis for the final design. 

B: Interconnect System Final Design: 

The CONSULTANT will develop traffic signal interconnect plans, specifications and cost 
estimates for the construction of signal interconnect throughout the project limits. The 
design process will begin with a preparation of the preliminary interconnect drawings. The 
preliminary plans will include the system layout but will not include detail sheets. These 
plans will be used to gain basic acceptance on the design from the City and as design 
coordination with other disciplines. One coordination meeting is assumed to review the 
preliminary design. Any comments received on the preliminary plans will be incorporated in 
the design plans for the 90% submittal to the City. The 90% design submittal package shall 
include design plans including detail sheets, specifications, and estimate. The 
CONSULTANT will revise drawings as needed and the 100% interconnect drawings, 
specifications and estimate will be submitted as part of the 100% submittal package for the 
complete plans set. 

Standards 
The design drawings will be prepared using the following standards: 

City of Marysville Standard Plans and Specifications 
WSDOT Standard Plans and Specifications 
Snohomish County Plans and Specifications 

Assumptions: 
The design will include the following elements and assumptions: 

1. New Conduit, junction boxes and vaults for the interconnect system 
2. New fiber optic cable and new copper interconnect cable to each of the 

following signalized intersections along State Avenue: 

128th Street NE 

136' Street NE 

Pedestrian Crossing 

Pedestrian Crossing / Emergency Signal 

152" Avenue NE 

The CONSULTANT will coordinate the installation of the fiber optic cable into the fire 
station building for connection to the City's existing fiber system. 
The CONSULTANT will coordinate the installation of the new conduit under the railroad 
tracks with the railroad company. 
Current southern project limit is north of the intersection of State AveIll6" St. NE. 
Work does not include connecting to the signal controller for that intersection. 
The CONSULTANT is not currently approved to proceed with the work aescrlnea 
above. This work will be started after receipt of written notification to proceed 
from the CITY. 

Exhibit B -1 -Scope of Work, Supplement No. 4 
Page 8 

State Avenue, 11 6th Street NE to 152nd Street NE 

Item 8 -9



Plans 
The following design plans are assumed: 

North Phase (1 36m to 152") 
Interconnect plans at 1" = 30' scale (full size), 6 sheets 
Communications Schematic, 1 sheet 
Termination Diagram, 1 sheet 
Cabinet Layout Detail, 1 sheet 

South Phase (Southern Project Limit to 136') 
Interconnect plans at 1" = 30' scale (full size), 3 sheets 
Communications Schematic, 1 sheet 
Termination Diagram, 1 sheet 
Cabinet Layout Detail, 1 sheet 

Specifications 
The CONSULTANT will need to create specifications for the following interconnect 
elements: 

Fiber optic cable type, installation and testing. 
Fiber termination panels 
Fiber optic communication hardware for the traffic signals and the CCTV 
cameras 
Fiber optic cable vaults 

Cost Estimate 
The CONSULTANT will develop a final cost estimate for the interconnect system based 
upon the detailed design drawings. The cost estimate will be based upon WSDOT bid 
items and bid data and/or information provided by the ITS equipment supplier and/or 
vendor. 

Deliverables: 
Preliminary Plans; 
90% Plans, Specifications and Cost Estimate; 
100% Plans, Specifications and Cost Estimate; 
Signed set of Plans, Specifications and Cost Estimate; 

END OF SCOPE OF WORK 

Exhibit B -1 - Scope of Work, Supplement No. 4 
Page 9 

State Avenue, 116th Street NE to 152nd Street NE 

Item 8 -10



EXHIBIT D-l 

STATE AVENUE 
116TH STREET NE TO 152"~ STREET NE CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENTS 

SUPPLEMENT 04 

KPFF 
CONSULTANT FEE DETERMINATION 

SUMMARY OF COST 

Classification 
Principal in Charge 
Project Manager 
Project Engineer 
Design Engineer 
CADD Technician 
Administration 

Direct Salary 
Cost Total Hours 

$55.00 19 
$45.00 1 04 
$40.00 55 
$32.00 59 
$32.00 79 
$25.00 12 

Direct Salary 
Total Cost 

$1,045.00 
$4,680.00 
$2,200.00 
$1,888.00 
$2,528.00 

$300.00 

Subtotal: DSC 328 $1 2,641 .OO 

Direct Salary Escalation Factor Cost Multiplier 
(90% of total costs for escalation) $1 1,376.90 0.000 $0.00 

Total DSC = $1 2,641 .OO 

Overhead (OH) Cost (Include Salary Additives) 
OH Rate x DSC of 134.93% $12,641 .OO 

Fixed Fee (FF) 
FF Rate 30.00% $12,641 .OO 

Total KPFF $33,489.80 

Direct Reimbursables 
Mileage 2 trips @ 70 miltrip $0.485 $67.90 
Courier & Overnight Mail 1 $200.00 $200.00 
Copies 1,000 $0.20 $200.00 

Reimbursable Total $467.90 

Subconsultant Costs 
DKS 

Subconsultant Total $30.492.81 

pota l  Agreement Amount $64,4511 

Exhibit D -1 - Fee Summary, Supplement No. 4 
Page 10 

State Avenue, 116th St NE to 152nd St NE 

Item 8 -11



EXHIBIT D-l 

STATE AVENUE 
116TH STREET NE TO 152"~ STREET NE CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENTS 

SUPPLEMENT 04 

DKS Associates 
CONSULTANT FEE DETERMINATION 

SUMMARY OF COST 

Classification 
Principal in Charge 
Project Manager 
Associate Engineer 
Assistant Engineer 
Administration Assistant 

Direct Salary Direct Salary 
Cost Total Hours Total Cost 

$60.00 3 $180.00 
$43.00 35 $1,505.00 
$32.50 166 $5,395.00 
$25.50 112 $2,856.00 
$1 8.30 0 $0.00 

Subtotal: DSC 31 6 $9,936.00 

Direct Salary Escalation Factor Cost Multiplier 
(90% of total costs for escalation) $8,942.40 0.000 $0.00 

Total DSC = $9,936.00 

Overhead (OH) Cost (Include Salary Additives) 
OH Rate x DSC of 171.8600% $9,936.00 

Fixed Fee (FF) 
FF Rate 30.00% $9,936.00 

Total KPFF $29,992.81 

Direct Reimbursables 
Reproduction 
travel -- Parking and Mileage 
Courier 

Reimbursable Total $500.00 

( ~ o t a l  Agreement Amount $30,493) 

Exhibit D -1 - Fee Summary, Supplement No. 4 Page 11 

State Avenue, 116th St NE to 152nd St NE 

Item 8 -12



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

0 
AGENDA ITEM: 

1 Sunnyside Reservoir Property - Supplemental Professional 
Services Agreement 

PREPARED BY: 

I Patrick Gruenhagen, P.E., Project Manager 

AGENDA SECTION: 

New Item 

AGENDA NUMBER: 

ATTACHMENTS: 1 A P P R O , v j Y :  1 
1.  Preliminary Topographic Map of Wetlands 

2. PSA Supplement No. 1 with Harmsen & Associates, Lnc. MAYOR CAO 

The City enlisted the services of Harmsen & Associates in late April to conduct a "short 
plat" survey of the City's Sunnyside Reservoir property, in support of potential future 
development of the site. (including a planned Fire Station) Concurrent with Harmsen's 
hiring, the City contracted with a wetlands biologist - to assess and delineate sensitive areas 
that were known to exist on the site. As a result, the property survey and wetlands 
assessment ultimately came to be linked, as Harrnsen's topographic survey involved 
"picking up" the wetland flagging that was put in place by the biologist. 

BUDGET CODE: 
40 100034.560000, Project No. W-0304 

At the time the survey work was conceived, the precise nature and magnitude of wetlands on 
the Sunnyside property was to some degree unknown. Consequently, Harmsen and the City 
agreed to certain assumptions - within the scope of the Agreement - regarding the level of 
work that would be required to incorporate wetland flagging into the larger topographic 
survey. Ultimately, the extent of wetlands surveying (Attachment 1) substantially exceeded 
that anticipated within the original Agreement, and as a result the budget for remaining tasks 
has been unsustainably depleted. Professional Services Agreement Supplement 1, included 
herein as Attachment 2, would therefore restore the budget and offset the 60 additional man- 
hours that can be attributed to unforeseen wetland staking. 

AMOUNT: 
$6,500.00 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Staff recommends that the Council authorize the Mayor to sign Supplement No. 1 to the 
Professional Services Agreement with Harmsen & Associates, Inc., in the amount of 
$6,500.00. 

COUNCIL ACTION: 

Item 9 -1



4822 CROM STREET 
MARYSVILLE. WA 98270 

Item 9 -2



SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 1 
TO 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
FOR 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

This Supplemental Agreement No. 1 is made and entered into 
on the day of July, 2007, between the City of Marysville, 
hereinafter. called the "City" and Harmsen & Associates, Inc., 
hereinafter called the "Consultant." 

WITNESSETH THAT: 

WHEREAS, the parties hereto have previously entered into an 
Agreement for a "short plat" survey of the City's Sunnyside 
Reservoir property, hereinafter called the "Project," said 
Agreement being dated April 25, 2007; and 

WHEREAS, both parties desire to supplement said Agreement, by 
expanding the Scope of Services to provide for additional wetland 
survey work and to amend the total amount payable for this 
Agreement, 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, 
covenants and performance contained herein or attached and 
incorporated, and made a part hereof, the parties hereto agree as 
follows : 

Each and every provision of the Original Agreement for 
Professional Services dated April 25, 2007, shall remain in full 
force and effect, except as modified in the following sections: 

1. Article I1 of the Original Agreement, "SCOPE OF WORK", 
shall be amended to include an additional 60 man-hours 
of wetlands survey work. 

2. Article 111.3 of the Original Agreement, "TIME OF 
PERFORMANCE", shall be revised so that all work shall 
be complete by July 31, 2007. 

3. Article IV of the Original Agreement, "OBLIGATIONS OF 
THE CITY", Paragraph IV. I Payments, the third sentence 
is amended to include the additional Consultant ree of 
$6,500.00 and shall read as follows: " ... in no event 
shall total payment under this agreement exceed 
$41,495.00." 

PSA Supplement No. 1 - Sunnyside Reservoir Property S h o r t  Plat 

Item 9 -3



The Total Amount payable to the Consultant is summarized as 
follows : 

Original Agreement 

Supplemental Agreement No.1 

Grand Total 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this 
SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 1 as of the day and year first above 
written. 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE CONSULTANT 

City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Marysville City Attorney 

PSA Supplement No. 1 - Sunnyside Reservoir Property Short Plat 

Item 9 -4



CITY OF MARYSVILLE- 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

PREPARED BY: 
Cheryl Dungan, Senior Planner 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: July 23,2007 

AGENDA NUMBER: 

AGENDA ITEM: PA 0307022 
Getchell Hill Division 3 - Final Plat 

AGENDA SECTION: 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Ordinance 2520 
2. Hearing Examiner Decision dated 0411 3/04 
3. Site Plan 
4. Vicinity Map 

On May loth, 2004, the City Council approved Ordinance No. 2520 approving the 
preliminary plat of Getchell Hill PRD; rezone from R-4.5 to PRD 4.5 and utilization of 
residential density incentives, creating 21 1 lots on approximately 67 acres. The applicant 
is constructing the plat in four (4) phases. Phase 3, which consists of 40 lot has been 
constructed and has met all conditions of final plat approval. 

5.  Final plat checklist 
BUDGET CODE: 

Phase 3 is generally located south of 84' St NE, west of ~ 3 ' ~  Ave NE, and east of 8oih 
Ave NE, being a portion of the SE '/4 of Section 23, Township 30N, Range 5E, WM. 

APPROVED B 

AMOUNT: 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Planning Staff recommends Council authorize the Mayor 
to sign the Final Plat Mylar for Getchell Hill PRD - Phase 3. 

MAYOR 

COUNCIL ACTION: 

CAW 

Item 10 -1



C I T Y  O F  M A R Y S V I L L E  
@-&& ?-& 

Marysville, Washington 

ORDINANCE N O . J S ~ O  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE AFFIRMING 
THE DECISION OF THE HEARING EXAMINER AND REZONING 
PROPERTIES OWNED BY RD & F INC; KARL LAMBERT; DALE 
& VELMA OLSON; GERALD & MARY ROYAL; FRED & CHLOE 
WATERS AMENDING THE OFFICIAL Z O m G  MAP OF THE 
CITY 

WHEREAS, RD & F, Tnc.; Karl Lambert; Dale & Velma Olson; Gerald & Mary 
Royal; and Fred & Chloe Waters own 12 parcels that are approximately 67 acres in size 
located north and south of 84& St NE, and west of 83d Ave NE, in the City of Marysville, said 
property being legally described in EXHIBIT A attached hereto; and 

WHEREAS, Getchell Hill Investments, LLC.; RD & F, Inc.; Karl Lambert; Dale & 
Velma Olson; Gerald & Mary Royal; and Fred & Chloe applied to the City of Marysville for 

, a preliminary plat, preliminary site plan approval, utilization of residential density incentives, 
and rezone fiom R-4.5 to PRD 4.5 under File No. PA 0307022; and 

WHEREAS, the City Hearing Examiner held a public hearing on said preliminary plat, 
preliminary site plan approval, residential density incentives, and rezone on April 8", 2004 and 
adopted Findings of Fact, Conclusions and a Recommendation approving the preliminary plat, 
preliminary site plan, utilization of residential density incentives, and rezone of Getchell Hill 
Investments; RD & F, Inc.; Karl Lambert; Dale & Velma Olson; Gerald & Mary Royal; and 
Fred & Chloe subject to 27 conditions; and 

WHEREAS, the Marysville City Council held a public meeting on said preliminary 
plat, preliminary site plan, utilization of residential density incentives, and rezone on May 10, 
2004 and concurred with the Findings of Fact, Conclusions and Recommendation of the 
Hearing Examiner, NOW, THEREFORE, 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MARYSVLLLE, WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN 
AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The Findings of Fact, Conclusions and Recommendation of the Hearing 
Examiner with respect to the above referenced preliminary plat, preliminary site plan approval, 
utilization of residential density incentives, and rezone are hereby approved, and the above 
described property is hereby rezoned fiom R-4.5 to PRD 4.5  

.Section 2. The zoning classificatiot~ for the abovedescribed property shall be 
perpetually conditioned upon strict compliance with each of the conditions set forth in the 

ORDINANCE - 1 

Item 10 -2



Recommendation of the Hearing Examiner. .Violation of any of the conditions of said decision 
may result in reversion of the property to the previous zoning classification andlor may result 
in enforcement action being brought by the City. 

Section 3. The official Zoning Map of the City of Marysville is hereby amended to 
reflect the reclassification of the above-described property. 

Section 4. This decision shall be final and conclusive with the right of appeal by any 
aggrieved party to the Superior Court of Snohomish County by filing a Land Use Petition 
pursuant to the Land Use Petition Act within twenty-one (21) days after passage of this 
ordinance. 

PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor this /@day of 
,2004. 

 BY^ L n  d& 
DENNIS KENDALL, Mayor 

Approved as to form: 

hK- / A I&-9 
K. WEED, C!Xy Attorney 

Date of Publication: 511 210 # 
Effective Date (5 days after publication): 5/11 103 

ORDINANCE - 2 

Item 10 -3



LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

C O M M E N C M G A T T H E N O K T W S T C Z O R E R C F ~ ~ T W ~ R W M  
NORTCOEA4T QU*4RTER CF BECTION 23, TOUNWIP 30 NO#m PANtE 5 EAST, Wls 

EA9T 2 0  RODS (330 FEETA W 6arm 80 k D 5  (I320 FEETh THENCE 
UIEBT 2 0  ROD6 (330 FEETh TUE-NCE NCF3l-I SO ROD6 (l320 FEET) TO THE POMT # 
BGCINNR.(G. 
EXCEPT THE MARTSVlUE CEfU-ELL CCWTY ROAD$ AND EXCEPT TUAT PORTICN CF 
TR4CT LYING SOUTH CF 5AIO COWIT WAD, 51TLlATE M Tl-iE COCR.CTr CF 6NOCKX?IW, 
STATE CF W I N G T O U  

PARCEL At (TAX ACCOWT NO. 3 0 0 8 2 ~ 1 0 0 0 )  
THE5OlJTH528FEETCFW8amOEABTCAlARTERCFlHEN~8TGKlARTERW 
THE NoRTHEA4T QUARTER CF 5ECTICti 23, TOUNWIP 30 NORTH, RPNGE 5 EABT, W M  

PARCEL & (TA% ACCOCNT NO. 30052~300101100) 
~ E A B T W C F r r B E ~ S T ~ R O F ~ N O R T C I E A 8 T ~ R ~  
SECTIC+l23, TCUN4CIIP SO No#TcI, WkG€ 5 W T ,  UU-L 

EXCEPT THE KXLOUllNG DEBCRIBED M t  
C C ( ~ ~ E ~ ~ C M C A T A P O M T O I . I ~ F ~ E B O U T C I L L E ( E C F ~ A D ~ B T Q U ~ R O F ~ U E  
NOtVHEA6T QUARTER CF 6ECTION 23, THAT 16 270DOFEET WEBT CF T I E  EMT LINE C1; 
SAID 0CUWUEST CUARTER tllCEEN MEA6LIRED AT RlGWT &WE8 TO &AID EABT L E -  
'IUENCE NOI*S1'UnE PAFSLLEl TO THE W T  LINE CF 8410 6OUlW€5T QUAKER 40314 

MCE ~ 8 8 r 2 ' e w  AT R~GCFT ANGCEB TO TWE m c a  ccu- F O R . ~ ~ R O  
i333 TO TCIE POINT OF 86CilEQnG TlENCE 601*31'L?W PARALLU. TO T4-E EA0T LINE 
CF BAIO 5CUllUE3T QOA#IER FOR l l33 FEET; rriENCE N8822'48W FOR k S Q 0  FEET: 
THENCE 601'31'U W PAPAUll TO TCEE EA3T LME OF BAIO -5T CWRER FOR 
1 9 6 5 0 F E E T T O w m M ~ M C F G E T ~ R O A D , B E R J G 4 0 R O ~ N W D m  
THENCE N895l1Il'W A U X G  TFDE N O K l H  MclV?riM FOR l64& FEET TO fWE UE5T LME CF 
T H E ~ T C 2 M R l E R C F f C I E ~ B T Q U ~ ~ T C I E ~ T Q U A R T E R  
CF 6 A D  SECTICP( 23; NOI'41'01''E AUMt 8AIO UE6T LINE FOR 3901X) F E T ;  
lM3lCE 988'18'99'E AT RlGCFT &GLES TO THE P R E W  FOR l42- FEET1 
THENCE N05*4Z8%*E fOR 4061 f€€T; THENCE 846'f3'49aE FCR 60.30 FEET; T E N C E  
861'63'49T fOR 0850 FEET; ll-ENC€ 501'37'UW PAPLVLEL TO TH€ EA5T L K  OF 
SAID BOUTCRLE6T GMKlER CF TCIE NCRTMZ&T UMfVER CF BECTIOt-4 23 FOR 100.93 
FEETTOTHEWlNTCF~R.8.IMG. 

ExCEPTTClEfOLLOWINGDE8CWl3E.P TiWcT* 
BEGINNING AT A POINT ON CENfER LINE CF D(l6Tf f i  CCW'W Wm, $AID POINT 
BEING 2 1 0  FEET UE6TEFl-Y FR2l EA5T LINE CF 5AID 6OUWE5T ~~ CF THE 
NORTCIEA4T~RUMENPlEA3UBDATRlGHT~6TbEFETO;TF lENCE 
N-Y PARALLEL TO MI0 EA6T LINE 228 FEETI T b E K E  N88'12'40"W FOR 42 
FEET;.Tl-ENCE 801*318UW PAt=NAEL WITH I3-E EABT LINE CF M I D  BOUTHUIEBT 
CXJARER Fop l l93 FEETI TkENCE W'M'48"W FOR k0DO FEET; TbEtCE BOCTTCIEW,Y 
PARALLE1- TO THE EABT LINE 210.67 RET TO CENTER L I E  CF D<18Tffi COLPCrr 
W A D I  THPICE EA6TERLY A L M  $AID CENTER LINE 210 fEET MOfE OR LE50 TO THE 
POINT OF 8EGWING 
EXCEPT COCPSTT wm. 
EXCEPT -ON LYMG 5mwmLr CF C E T ~  HIU WAD. 

P m  Cg (TAX ACCUNT NO. 9~23OOl01300)  
TRACT 939 P( THE P l A T  CF VAUET VlEU E5TATE5 LPtOER #. *8 20010621- PND 
200206195003 CF 8NOHOMISH CUWW, W l % T O K  

P m  Dt (TP3< &ZCOWT NO. 30092300101600) 
T H A T ~ I ~ C F W ~ T ~ O F T H E N ~ T ~ O F  
8ECTlW 23, TOUNBHIP 90 N o p n t  W 6 W T ,  WM, PEBCRIBED A5 F O U - O W 0 8  
BEGN4ffi AT THE NOf?TI-E-T COf;l2NER- Tl-ENG2 BOUTCI880 FEEi; THENCE WE5T 
742.50 FEET TO TCtE TWE POW OF =WIN& TkENCE EABT 241.50 FEET; TkENCE 
B o U n - l T O W 6 0 U T H L M E G W ~ T ~ R C F ' I F I E N O R n - I E A 6 T Q U ~ R  
'IFIENCE E S T  ALCI*IG BAID L W  2 4 W  FEET; N C €  TO THE POINT CF 
EEGtrwING. 

. PAR- Ex (TAX ACCOCRtF NO. 30052?0010l700) 
T H A T ~ I O N ~ F T H E N O K ~ % A S T ~ ~ O F ~ T ~ R O F  
6ECTICN 23, T-IP 90 NCSTU, WlWZ 6 -TI Wt, D E m m  A$ W ~ I  

AT m T  COf+lER l+B4CE WUlM 880 FEET; UgeT 9-30 
TO TPLfE POINT CF BEGIWML;u THENCE EAST 2 4 7 m  FEET; 60CTTCI TO 

~ 8 0 1 m J L ~ # T k l E U O R f t l E b , 4 T C I U A R f E R d = ~ ~ f Q U d R f E ~ f C l P J C E  
WeT 641D mm I I N F m  9 d l r " U f f  

Uml- "-• -- -- - '- - - - 

Item 10 -4



PAF;ICUI Fr (TAX d z c a  NO. 3cw52900101EKX)) 
B X ~ M M G A T ~ N ~ T ~ O F ~ ~ T ~ R C F T C ~ E  
NcXn+ZA3T QUARTER CF &3&1c1.( 23, TOUNWIP 90 NORl7-l 0 EA4f, Uu% 
THENCE UEBT 742.60 FEI5 TO T E  T R E  POPCT OF BKilE(E.(INCt EA6T 24'160 
~ E E T I ~ C E ~ C U T H T O T H E ~ Y M A W ~ M O F C O L W ~ ~ R O A D I ~  
UIE3-Y A L W  5AIO NORW@LY W I N  TO A POINT BOUfl-l OF THE TFllE POR.CT 
~ B E G M N I N G ' T C ( E N C E ~ T O T H E ~ P O I N Y G F B f j G R b . I I N G  

PARCEL Gr (TAX & X Z W T  9008230010m) 
BSCINIIM AT TK ~~~ CF RIE NCRTKL\BT CAbWER CF 6ECT1cs.( 23, 
TOUNBHIP 3 0  NORTH, RANGE 6 EMT, UU-t THENCE EA9T 16W FEET; THEE)SE WlJlH 792 
FEET TO THE lWJE POINT OF BEGMNlffi TUENCE SOUTC(628 FEETI l74EtCE UE6T 330 
FEET; fWENCENORTHB28FEET; fCiENCEEABT 330FEETTOTCtETR.E POINTOF 
EGMNING 

P&3CEL ch (TAX ACCOLPIT NO. ~ 2 3 0 0 1 0 1 6 0 0 )  
f 3 6 G a d . ( f f i A T T H € N O # T C t E A B T ~ O F f C I E ~ T C X M R T E R C F T I - I E  
NoUWE&T WARER # BECTlON 29, TOUE(BFIIP 90 WWU, FbVGE 0 W T ,  W 

W T  990 FEET TO TC(E TFllE POINT OF E43SR.pJINC, THENCE EA6T 24780 FEETI 
~ B O U T ) . I T O W ~ W ~ s ~ U E B T E W . Y A L M ~ R O A O T O A  
P O M T D U E m C F T H E T W - E E w M T f f B f f i I E I N I f f i m N m T O 7 U E r W g  
wMTm BECtwlNG. 

F'mCu Ir (TAX AczcwT No. ~ 2 3 0 0 1 0 3 0 0 0 )  
W T ~ C F l H E B O U T C U I E B T ~ G F f C l E ~ T ~ R O F 8 E C l l O N  
23, TOUNBHIP 30 NOKTH, F S X E  6 EA6T, UP& DEBCRISEO A6 FOLLCUlsr 
f 3 f j ~ N 4 M G  AT 4 ~ l E h  ON TC~E CENTER LQJE CF D( l0Tf f i  ROAD, 6CyD POW 
BElff i  270 fEET ILEBTERLY FfaQM EABT LINE OF 5AID 5CUlW€8T aARTER CF TCIE 
NOKWEA5T CUAF3ER WEN M f E D  AT RIGHT PNGtE8 TkfER301 THENCE 
NORTIEFLY PAFULLEL TO 6AIO EABT LINE 226 FEETI fUP(CE ItEBTEW-Y AT RIGHT 
ANGLE6 TO BAID EABT LINE 210 FEETI TI-ENCE 6CUTHEW-Y PAPAU-U- TO W T  LINE 
228 FEET TO CENTER LINE CFEXl0TaJt CCCPCrr ROAD3 THENCE EA5TEW-Y ALCNSr 
4AlD CFXIERLINE 2lOFEETMCRiZORLE84 TO APOMTOFEEGIMJMG; 

EX-THE F O L L ~ D E B C W B W  MI 
~ W A T A P O R . C T O N W 8 0 L r m L R . ( E C F B A I D ~ B T ~ ~ T C I E  
NOKWEA3T G#LARTER OF BECTICZJ 23, BAID POINT BEING 210 FEET UE5T CF TCIE EAST 
LINEOF BAID 5 G U T M E B T ~ W E N ~  A T R l G W T ~ 5 T O B A I D  EABf 
L W  THEN- NOl'37'tZ"E BUNG PAPAU-EL U4TH TH€ EABt LINE OF BAID tWUbUE$T 
QLI- FOR W3.M FEETs WENUZ W 2 2 ' 4 8 ' W  BEING AT RIGHT czNcilE0 TO TCIE 
l=sEvlouscoUReEK>R~ m T O T C & T w E  P O l N r C F ~ 1 N G . l  THENC€601'31WW, 
P A R A U , E C W T C ~ T H € ~ T L I N E C F ~ A I O ~ T G W A R T E R K > R T U ~ ~ S T C I E E I C E  
~ 0 0 7 2 ~ 4 8 . ~ 1  FOR 1 6 ~ ~ 0  RETI 'IFBNCE ~ o 1 ~ 3 1 ~ t 2 ~  FOR n33 HZETI THENCE m 2 2 ' e . ~  
~ V ? I ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ E E T T O ~ H E T W J E P O I N T C F ~ ~ ~ ~  
acCEPT m wm. 
PAWsEL JJr 
A P O # T r O N O F T l E ~ T Q U A K l E R ~ l H E N O R f M E A 4 T ~ C F B E C T I O N  
23, TOUN$CIIP 30 NOKll4, M 0 EABT, W M ,  DEBCRlbED A0 H X I . O U 1 4 g  

CCFlMENCffi AT TClE NO#TCIEs44T COlWER W O F r  THENCE B04'00'46"W &ONG THE 
EAeT LME THEWECF fOR 880~30 m; THENCE N 81'32'42 W PEW PARAuZL WITH 
~ N O R T ) ( L M E f f 6 A I D N O R T C ( E A B T O U ~ f O R 9 9 0 1 0 0 ~ T O W ~ W ~  
OF EEGINNIffi THENCE N04*00'46@E FWR l2.34 FEEt TO U(l5TlNG FENCE UNEz 
THENCE 580'62'09"E ALONt AN EXl0Tffi FPJCE L m  Fop 67B0 THENCE 8 
07'36'56'E ALONG AN EXIBTM FENCE LME M 6659 FEETI THENCE 88870'65.E 
AWtG AN EXISTING FE-NCE LIFE fOR 2 0 5 8 0  FEETI THpIcE 5 88'15'50"€ ALONG r6N 
PU5Tf f i  FENCE LINE FOR 88.m FEETI THENCE 801'49'08% dJ.( EXl6Tffi FENCE 
LINE FOR 6889 RETI THENCE 880'02'40"E A L W  bN D<I5TlNG fPICE LINE FOR 43.11 
FEETI TCIP(CE 904*00'46'W cYX3NC AN EXlBTffi FENCE L M  FOR 1352 FEET TO A LINE 
THAT EEAR6 teS1'32'42"E R7Lm fCIE POINT S BGGrRb.(ltG Tl-ENCE N87'32'42W 
ALW 6AID LINE FOR 435130 FEET TO W -rra& FONT CF BEGlWlNG 

m E R  W B - 4  (TAX PC;COUICT NO. 3009230002700) 

P.max A: 
C C t O l P . ( C W A T T C I E 6 0 V T C I E A 4 T C O F a g R C F W N w T m R C F 6 E C L l O N  
23, TOUR.(WIP 90 NORTH, PANGE 0 W T ,  W M ,  M BNOHC?lIBCI CCXMY, WABHIN~TCNJ 
~U€5T60ROD&THENCENORTHTOTH€BOUfC1LMOF 
MARYBYlU-E-GETCHELL WADI THENCE EA4TEW-Y AUXJCj 6AlD ROb9 TO 
TUE EA6T LINE CF BAID 291 m E  60UTCI ALONCi THE EA6f LME CF 6AID 
e ~ ~ ~ C 3 - 4  23, TO THE PLACE OF BEGWMG; 
D<CEPT TCFE U T  2 5 0  FEET MECF, lNCLl.lDMG 2 0  FEET W A D  7 

Item 10 -5



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
Hearing Examiner 

Findings, Conclusions and Recommendation 

APPLICANT: Getchell Investments, LLC 

CASE NO.: PA 0307022 

LOCATION: North and south of ~ 4 ' ~  St. NE, west of 831d Ave. NE 

APPLICATION: The applicant requested approval of a 21 6-lot preliminary site plan, 
preliminary plat approval; rezone to PRD. 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

Planning Staff: Approve with conditions 

Hearing Examiner: Approve with conditions 

PUBLIC HEARING: 

After reviewing the official file, which included the Planning Staffs Advisory Report, and after 
visiting the site, the Hearing Examiner conducted a public hearing on the application. The 
hearing on the Getchell Investments, LLC application was opened at 7:05 p.m., April 8,2004, in 
the Council Chambers, Marysville, Washington, and closed at 7:47 p.m. Participants at the 
public hearing are listed in the minutes of the hearing. A verbatim recording of the hearing and 
more complete minutes are available in the Planning Department. A list of exhibits offered and 
entered at the hearing and a list of parties of record are attached to this report. 

HEARING COMMENTS: 

As noted in the minutes of the hearing; comments were offered by: 

Cheryl Dungan, Senior Planner 
Dave Ostergaard, Development Services Manager 
Josh Brower, Attorney for the Applicant 

' Dave Cayton, Traffic Consultant for the Applicant 
Joe Mudlin, neighbor 
Shannon Ramey, neighbor 
Gary Petershagen, for Jubie Development 
Malcorn McNaughton, for Barclays North, Inc. 

Item 10 -6



PwcEL a: 
~ m H d L F C F l l - E N O R T C l w O F T C I E ~ T G I U A # F E R O F T C I E  
BO(m-IEA6T QUMVER CF 0ECllON 23, TOUNSHIP 30 NOK'W, R&4E 9 EMT, W M ,  IN 
8NOHC(II5H rzaNlT, UIA6CIffiTcc*L- 
E X c E P T ~ E A 3 T 2 0 f E E T ~ Y E Y E D F O R r a O c l O ~ 5 :  
L V . 1 0 ~ F ; E P t W ~ B ~ C F n # E a e T 8 O F E E T W O F , U I t D I N G 2 0 F E E f  
FCR W A D  FWFO3E& 
D < C E P T T H A T P O 1 P T I C I . ( L W W T S f C l E U f i B T l N e P U G E T ~ ~ W  
LlGCFT CUlPANY'6 flPLVJ8MleBlCN LINE. 

AT A POlNT ON TWE EABT LME OF BAID 6UBOlv1510N THAT 15 2 8 6 0  FEET 
0OUWERLv OF THE NGRWE&3T COI7NER n-IERECC4 THENCE NOUTEIPLY ALONG 9AID 
WT LW 2 ~ m  ~-ENCE 6 a s * 0 1 v e ~  dl-- THE NORTH LINE CF W P  
# 3 D l W 5 l c l . l 6 ~ 3 5  FEET TO fCiE WE8T LINE OF THE EA6TERl-Y 588LK) FEET m C F I  
l l - E N E  %Ull+RLY A L W  B A D  UE5T LINE 2650 F E E T 3  THENCE N89'QI'M"E ALONG A 
FENCE LINE 1092 fEEts W N81%7'49"E ALCIJC 6AIV FENCE LINE AND IT9 
EA~EFLI- FRQJIZ~~CH 476~0 EET TO THE WMT CF e~w~crr 
EXCEPT EA3TR7LY 2 0  FEET TbEGECF FOR ROAD. 

ALL. BllUATE M THE COLNFT CF BNOkWlIW, BTATE CF W I N G T O N .  

m E R  -1-1 (TAX ACCOUKT NO. 300923oo.cO1600) 

PAFCEL .& 
T C l E ~ 4 3 0 ~ ~ T l - t E B O C T T C T l H F £ E - a L I A R f E R 9 C F T H E ~ T G 1 1 1 4 # T U 3  
CFW 6CUlTW@T-dFBECTION23,TOUR.(4CIIP3ONORTI-I,W 6 EA5T,WM, 
IN ~ 1 S I - l  COUNTT, WABHffiTU4 
EXCEPT THE W T  588 FEET THE- 
ALBO D<CEPT THAT PGfZTlO-4 L Y M  UE9-Y OF THE W5T LN€ OF WGET 80US> 
~ P E ( D L l G t R ~ P N Y ~ a F W A 6 ~ B Y O O C U M E E C T  
R E W E D  W E R  -1% CZWW RECOPOffi NO. 337353s 
AL60EXCEPT~TH.4TPOKn0NOFTCIE60Urr(cdLvFCFrr(ENOKlHWQFfClE 
W T a O A R T E R O F  THE %uTHE&T QUARTERS -ON 2 3 , T ~ 4 C I I P 3 0  
NORTH, IPANGE 6 W T ,  ULM, M 6NOCIC(114H COCP.CTT, W I N G T O N ,  DESCRIBED A3 
FOU.- 

-ffi A ~ A P O R . C T O ( . ( W & B T L M E O F T H E E A ~ ~ Y ~ W W ~ O F ~ A I D  
%f@#2lvt5lCN THAT 18 26W CFET 0CuWEFLY OF TCIE NOPrCI L W  TkEFEffi THENCE 

y ~ . 8 0 4 ~ T ~ ~ ~ - ~  &33*0193W AI;*-3HE- - 
Q $AID 0lBDIYIBIQI 3T522'- TO T E  W ~ T L W  CF &- 

G W s N T n > T O F U G E T 8 C C k E D P O U l E R W L ~ B ~ ~ B C O W E D W E R  
R E m f f i  NO. 3373532 TCIB3CE &WTERLY 6AIp E M  LINE 25RO FEET; 
TClEMCE N00'14'58"E A FENCE LINE 313.92 F€ET 16 fCIE POINT OF BEGtM.(MG. 

PAFcEL 8: 
ANcc.(-DccW4lvEE-FORmS9W-SOvER-M1PtDm 
W B O U T U 6 0 f F F F C F W ~ 9 1 0 R E T C F T W E E A B t 6 4 8 ~ O F T F l E B O U T C I  
~ ~ A K l E f ? 5 ~ T H E N O R T C I E A 6 T Q U ~ C F T H E ~ A ! . 3 T < ; a l l ~ ~  
ECTION 23, TOUN4CIlP 30 lPANGE 5 E&T, W P b  
EXCEFT 83- AVENUE NOKWEABT, AL80 KNOUN A6 UFIl%EY RIDGE RR-$ 

ORDER -36-I (TAX AXOlM' W. 30642-1 

~ N O R T C l 4 5 0 F E E T ~ T H E W T 5 8 8 ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~  
V M T  W m R  CF V-fE m A S T  CLlAKER GF ef:CnON 23, TOUNSHIP 30 
t4ORW, PANGE 0 EMT, W M ,  IN WOHCWI6H COCP.CTY W M C i T C t 4  
E X C E P T T H E E A B T 2 O F E E T T H E F E ~ K X Z ~ W P D I  
W EXCEPT THAT PCRTION OF TCIE 0CUTI-l ONE-HALF CF l7-E NoF3l-I c(.(E-CIW OF 
fCIE NCRWEA6T CLlAWER CF THE -T QUARfER OF 6ECTION 23, TOUNWIP 90 
NORTH. R6NC;E 5 EABT, W M ,  k-4 6NOCKml5H m, W M T W  DEBCRIBED A6 

-ffi AT A P O W  ON THE EABT LME OF BAID BUBDIV1510N THAT 16 28& RET 
S o U T M S L Y O F T C l E ~ T ~ ~ ~ f C S B k 3 E ~ Y & W 8 4 D  

. W T  LINE 2 8 0 0  Tl-WCE 888'01'1SWI AOG TI.oE NOrrm LINE CF BAO 
~ U B D I Y ~ ~ ~ N  s m s  FEET TO W ~ T  LINE CF THE wmr SBBDO FEET IHBECE 
fClENCE 60UTCBERLT A L W  8;41D WBT LINE 26.50 FEET; TCIENCE N89'01'M"E W A 
FEN- LINE IU32 FEETI THENCE Wl'B7'59"E, ALONG 6AID FMCE L W  PM> IT6 
EMTERLY WJECTICI.( 4 7 6 m  FEET TO lH€ POINT CF EEGIWINt. 

Item 10 -7



Hearin, Examiner Recommendation 
Case No.: 0307022 

Page 2 

As noted in the minutes of the hearing, two neighbors and representatives of two neighboring 
property owners spoke at the hearing. Concerns expressed and responses included the following: 

The neighbor at 8305 ~ 3 ' ~  Ave. NE would like to meet with the applicant and staff to 
determine the length of hedge and the amount of money that would be necessary to install 
a hedge that would effectively reduce headlight glare from the proposed access to ~ 3 ' ~  
Ave. NE. The applicant and staff agreed with the request at the hearing. 

The owner of the gas station and store at 8215 ~4~ St. NE would like to reroute the ~8~ 
Street extension so that it will allow him to continue to keep his store. The applicant and 
staff agreed to look at alternatives to the 8sth Street extension. 

Representatives of two neighboring property owners requested that the utilities installed 
in the subject development be adequate to provide service to surrounding properties. The 
applicant indicated a willingness to do so, if a latecomer agreement is included, and staff 
indicated that oversized utilities would not be approved to serve properties outside the 
Urban Growth Boundary. 

WRITTEN COMMENTS: 

Mary Wilcox and Joe Mudlin submitted correspondence on the proposal (see Exhibits 34 &113). 
The staff advisory report included a summary of the concerns expressed and responses to those 
concerns (see Section 1.0 on page 14 of Exhibit 116). 

INTRODUCTION: 

The applicant is requesting approval of a rezone from R-4.5 to PRD 4.5, preliminary site plan 
and preliminary plat approval for the single-family residential development known as the 
Getchell Hill PRD. The applicant is also requesting 20 bonus lots based on the residential 
density incentives provided in Section 19.26.030 MMC. Approval of the rezone, preliminary site 
plan, preliminary plat, and density incentives as proposed would create 2 16 single-family lots on 
approximately 67 acres. The site is currently developed with 5 single-family residences and 
associated out buildings. All buildings will be removed during construction. According to the 
preliminary drainage report, 5 separate wetpond/detention pond systems each with its own 
individual pipe and catch basin stormwater conveyance system will be constructed to collect 
stormwater runoff from the project. The SEPA checklist states that approximately 250,000 cubic 
yards of cut and 250,000 cubic yards of fill will be required to construct this project. 

FINDINGS CONCLUSIONS AND DECISION: 

Having considered the entire record in this matter, the Hearing Examiner now makes and enters 
the following: 

Item 10 -8



E-Iearin, Cxaminer Recommendation 
Case No.: 0307022 

Page 3 

A. FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS: 

1. The information contained in Sections I and I1 of the Planning Stafls Advisory Report 
(Hearing Examiner Exhibit 1 16), as modified by Exhibit 1 19, is found by the Hearing 
Examiner to be supported by the evidence presented during the hearing and by this 
reference is adopted as portion of the Hearing Examiner's findings and conclusions. A 
copy of said report is available in the Planning Department. 

2. The minutes of the meeting accurately summarize the testimony offered at the hearing 
and by this reference are entered into the official record. 

3. At the hearing, the applicant concurred with the staff recommended conditions of 
approval as modified by Exhibit 118. Staff concurred with the revisions proposed in 
Exhibit 1 1 8. 

4. If approved as conditioned below, the development will be consistent with the 
comprehensive plan and will meet the requirements and intent of the Marysville 
Municipal Code. 

5. If approved as conditioned below, the development will make adequate provisions for, 
open space, environmentally sensitive areas, drainage streets and other public ways, water 
supply, sanitary wastes, public utilities and infrastructure, parks and recreation facilities, 
playgrounds, sites for schools and school grounds. 

6. If approved as conditioned below, the development will be beneficial to the public health, 
safety and welfare and will be in the public interest. 

7. If approved as conditioned below, the development will not lower the level of service of 
transportation andlor neighborhood park facilities below the minimum standards 
established within the comprehensive plan. 

8. The area, location and features of land proposed for dedication are a direct result of the 
development proposal are reasonably needed to mitigate the effects of the development, 
and are proportional to the impacts created by the development. 

Based upon the above stated findings and conclusions, the Hearing Examiner rccommcnds 

approval of the preliminary plat, preliminary site plan, rezone to PRD 4.5, and residential 
density incentives, subject to the following conditions: 

1. The applicant shall be responsible for the relocation andlor replacement of the existing 
mailboxes located along 83rd Ave NE adjacent to this development. Mailbox 
relocatiodreplacement shall be consistent with the postmaster's recommendations. 

Item 10 -9



Hearirl, Examiner Recommendation 
Case No.: 0307022 

Page 4 

2. Prior to final plat approval for Phase I, the applicant, the owner of the property at 8305 
83rd Ave. NE and a representative from the Planning Department shall meet to determine 
the reasonable cost for installation of a minimum 6' high, sight-obscuring hedge along the 
8305 83rd Ave NE frontage to diminish the effects of headlights from the newly created 
intersection with 83rd Ave NE. If consensus regarding the cost cannot be reached, the 
Planning Department shall determine amount the applicant shall pay for the installation of 
the hedge. 

3. P r i ~ r  to final plat approval for Phase I, the applicant shall reimburse the city for costs 
incurred in the preparation of the Adolfson wetland study in the amount of $3,025.95. 

4. The lot yield indicated on the preliminary site plan/preliminary plat map shall be reduced 
to 21 1 lots as indicated in Section E of this report. The revised preliminary plat map shall 
be submitted to the Planning Division for review and approval prior to construction plan 
approval for Phase I (Pod "A"). 

5. Prior to construction of Getchell Hill PRD Phase 11, the 10" sewer pipe located near the 
cross streets of 6 0 ' ~  Drive NE and 61" Drive NE along ~8~ Street NE shall be replaced to 
correct the deficiency and allow future phases of the Getchell Hill PRD development to 
be serviced by sanitary sewer. The City agrees that the applicant may enter into a 
latecomer's agreement to recover proportionate share of the cost of said sewer line 
replacement. In order to determine the recovery amount for the proposed sewer pipe an 
analysis showing the number of new homes in future developments within the city limits 
that will receive a benefit from this sewer line replacement. 

6. The applicant shall construct the on-site trail prior to final plat approval for Phase I, or the 
applicant will need to bond for said trail by submitting a cost estimate of the trail 
improvements to the city for review and approval for Phase I. Pending approval of the 
costs and prior to final plat approval, the applicant will need to submit a bond to the city 
for 140% of the cost of the improvement. 

7. The boundary line adjustment shall be recorded prior to final plat approval for Pod " D ,  
or the plat boundaries for Pod " D  will need to be revised accordingly. 

8. Roads DD shall be revised to be consistent with the City standards prior to construction 
plan approval for the Pod in which said roads are located. The preliminary site 
pladpreliminary plat map shall be revised accordingly. Revised density calculations shall 
be submitted with the revised plat map to ensure compliance with the density 
requirements of the PRD 4.5 zone. 

9. Front yard setbacks shall be relocated to the point where the lot meets the minimum lot 
width requirement for the zone. 

10. Rear yard setbacks shall be opposite front yards. 

Item 10 -10



. . 

Hearil., Lxaminer Recommendation 
Case No.: 0307022 

Page 5 

11. The applicant shall install a new traffic signal at the intersection of 67th Ave NE and 84" 
Street NE as part of this development. The installation shall occur prior to final plat 
approval. In order to determine the recovery amount for the proposed signalization, the 
applicant shall be required to submit to the City for review and approval, a traffic analysis 
showing the number of trips that potential, future developments within the city limits will 
create to the intersection of 67Ih Ave NE and 8 4 ~  St NE. The applicant shall not receive 
any reimbursement on donated materials for the improvement. (MDNS #1) 

12. A road connection meeting City standards or approval of the City Engineer or designee 
shall be provided from the proposed development to 82nd Place NE (Road LUMM). 
(MDNS #2) 

13. An oil control facility shall be installed per Department of Ecology Stormwater 
Management Manual for Western Washington limited to the low points in 84" Street NE. 
(MDNS #3) 

14. The proposed rockery and berm located within Tract H shall be relocated outside the 
required buffer area. If buffer averaging is being proposed, the site plan/preliminary plat 
map will need to be revised to clearly show the exact square footage of all buffer areas 
proposed for averaging. Prior to approval of a buffer averaging scheme, the applicant 
will need to demonstrate compliance with Section 19.24.1 10(5)(a). (MDNS #4) 

15. Prior to construction plan approval for Phase I, the wetland mitigation plan shall be 
revised to address the outfall pipes within the sensitive area tracts. (MDNS #5) 

16. Prior to construction plan approval for each Phase, the applicant will need to demonstrate 
that any proposed trails associated with said Phase located within regulated sensitive area 
tracts meet the low impact criteria as outlined in Section 19.24.1 lO(7) or the trail will 
need to be relocated outside of the NGPA tract. (MDNS #6) 

17. The wetland mitigation plan shall be revised as follows: (MDNS #7) 

Statement from the utility companies stating that the mitigation areas will not be 
moved or otherwise negatively impacted overtime from maintenance activities; 
provided however, utility companies will continue to maintain volunteer trees within 
the utility corridor. If the utility companies cannot insure the long-term viability of 
mitigation plantings within the utility corridor due to maintenance activities, the 
mitigation area(s) will need to be relocated outside the utility easement corridor. 

The warranty language is a private agreement between the developer and the 
landscape firm. Ultimately, the developer is responsible for the success of the project 
as outlined in Section 19.24.160 MMC. This language should be included in the final 
wetland mitigation plan. 

On page 14 of the preliminary wetland mitigation plan, the following revisions shall 
be made to the final mitigation plan (Section 19.24.160): 

Item 10 -11



I4earii., Examiner Recommendation 
Case No.: 0307022 

Page 6 

Monitoring reports will be submitted to the developer and the City of Marysville 
Community Development Department following site visits. The monitoring reports 
will include photographic documentation for each site visit, with photo descriptions 
and a plot-by-plot analysis of the vegetation plots. The report(s) will address the 
effectiveness of the mitigation plan in meeting the performance standards. The 
annual monitoring reports shall include if necessary, recommendations to correct 
failures in the mitigation project. Corrections may include the following: 

o Replace dead or undesirable vegetation with appropriate plantings, based on the 
approved planting plan or MMC 19.24.150; 

o Repair damages caused by erosion, settling, or other geomorphologic processes; 

o Redesign the mitigation project (if necessary) and implement the new design; and 

o A qualified consultant and the Community Development Department shall 
approve correction procedures. 

A final report will be completed by the anniversary date of the bonding (or as 
otherwise agreed to by the City and the qualified consultant). The final report will 
include a summation and final analysis. If at that time, the performance standards 
have not been fully satisfied, but the qualified consultant believes and the city concurs 
that the site is viable and the performance standards can be met, the bond can be 
released. 

The final wetland mitigation plan shall include a cost estimate for the required 5 year 
performancelmonitoring bond as outlined in Section 19.24.160(2) 

18. Prior to construction plan approval for each Phase, the additional subsurface 
investigations associated with said Phase shall be performed to address the issue of 
detention pond base elevations extending below the depths of the test pits. (MDNS 
#8> 

19. Prior to construction plan approval for the applicable Phase, the applicant shall submit 
a sight distance analysis; vertical curve lengths and profiles; and horizontal curve 
lengths for all roads intersecting 84th St NE or 83rd Ave NE. (MDNS #9) 

20. Prior to final plat approval for each Phase, the applicant shall- pay WSDOT mitigation 
fees to offset adverse impacts to state highways from this development: (MDNS #lo) 

SR 9/Jct Highland Drive, Signal and Channelization, at a pro-rata cost of $26.60 
per ADT. 

SR 9lSR 528 Interchange Signal & Channelization, at a pro-rata cost of $1.75 per 
ADT. 
SR 9142"~ St Signal and Channelization, at a pro-rata cost of $4.13 per ADT. 

The WSDOT mitigation fees will be calculated based on the current WSDOT formula 
multiplied by the number of ADTs generated per the final lot count approved in the 

Item 10 -12



Hearill, Examiner Recommendation 
Case No.: 0307022 

Page 7 

Preliminary Plat. This information shall be submitted by the project traffic engineer 
subsequent to Preliminary Plat approval but prior to application for construction 
drawing approval for Phase I. The WSDOT mitigation fee for each Phase shall be 
paid prior to final plat approval for said Phase. 

2 1. Any underground storage tanks encountered during project construction shall be 
removed in accordance with Department of Ecology standards. (MDNS #11) 

22. All existing septic systems and wells shall be abandoned in accordance with 
Snohomish Health District and Department of Ecology standards. (MDNS #12) 

23. Orange clearing limits fencing shall be installed along the outer edge of all wetland 
buffer and open space areas prior to any site work. The City shall inspect all erosion 
control measures, and clearing limits fencing prior to the start of clearing and, grading 
work. (MDNS # 13) 

24. Wetland fencing and signage shall be installed adjacent to regulated sensitive areas at 
the time mitigation plantings are installed. Said fencing and signage shall be 
constructed with pressure treated posts and rails, cemented into the ground, and either 
cedar or treated rails. Alternative materials may be used subject to approval by the 
City. The signs shall be posted at a rate of 100 feet minimum. (MDNS #14) 

25. Prior to final plat approval for each Phase, the applicant shall submit a signed 
mitigation offer to Snohomish County for review and approval. County mitigation 
fees shall be paid prior to final plat approval for each Phase. The County Mitigation 
Fees shall be calculated using the current County rate multiplied by the final lot count 
in the approved Preliminary Plat. (MDNS #15) 

26.Utilities shall be sized to provide service to surrounding undeveloped properties 
within the UGA. The City agrees that the applicant may enter into a latecomer's 
agreement to recover the proportionate share of the cost to oversize said utilities. 

27. Priorto final plat approval, the applicant shall provide a landscape/reforestation plan 
that will include, but not be limited to, the following improvements: 

+ Street trees spaced 40 feet on center. These trees shall be a minimum of 1 %" 
caliper and 6' to 8' in size at the time of planting. Tree species should be selected 
from the City's recommended street tree listing in the streetscape plan. 
Concurrently with street tree installation, the applicant shall install sod within all 
planter strips located within public right-of-way. 

+ Yard trees at a rate of two (2) trees per lot. These trees should include at least one 
evergreen tree, which is a native species to the Northwest region. These trees 
shall be a minimum of % " caliper and 6' to 8' in size for deciduous and 6' in size 
for evergreen. 

Item 10 -13



Heari~,, Examiner Recommendation 
Case No.: 0307022 

Page 8 

+ Type E pond landscaping consistent with Chapter 19.16 MMC. 

6 Entry way landscaping. 

(Note: Street trees to either be installed or bonded for prior to final plat approval, 
yard trees to be installed prior to final home inspection for that particular lot). 

Approval of a preliminary subdivision does not guarantee the development yield 
depicted thereon. A preliminary plat is only "a neat and approximate drawing 
showing the layout of a proposed subdivision.. .together with any supporting 
exhibits.. .". The yield depicted thereon may have to be reduced for final plat 
approval if it is found through the final plat review process that the plat as 
preliminarily approved cannot meet all the applicable minimum standards. Under no 
circumstances may the development yield be increased without prior public hearing 
review. 

Dated this 13th day of April 2004 

Ron McConnell, F A ~ P  
Hearing Examiner 

RECONSIDERATION: 

A party to a public hearing may seek reconsideration only of a final decision by filing a written 
request for reconsideration with the director within fourteen (14) days of the final written 
decision. The request shall comply with MMC 15.1 1.020(3). The examiner shall consider the 
request within seven (7) days of filing the same. The request may be decided without public 
comment or argument by the party filing the request. if the request is denied, the previous action 
shall become final. If the request is granted, the hearing examiner may immediately revise and 
reissue its decision. Reconsideration should be granted only when a legal error has occurred or a 
material factual issue has been overlooked that would change the previous decision. 

COUNCIL ACTION: 
Recommendations by the Examiner on rezones or shoreline conditional use permits will 
constitute a final action by the City unless a timely written request for a closed record appeal is 

filed with the City Council within 14 days after issuance of the recommendation. In the event of 
a timely appeal, the City Council will conduct a closed record hearing of this case. Closed record 
hearings shall be on the record and no new evidence may be presented. The City Council's 
action will be the final action of the City. 

Item 10 -14



. . 

Hearii., Examiner Recommendation 
Case No.: 0307022 

Page 9 

JUDICIAL APPEAL: 

(1) Appeals fiom the final decision of the hearing examiner, or other city board or body 
involving MMC Titles 15 to 20 and for which all other appeals specifically authorized 
have been timely exhausted, shall be made to Snohomish County superior court pursuant 
to the Land Use Petition Act, RCW 36.70C within 21 days of the date the decision or 
action became final, unless another applicable appeal process or time period is 
established by state law or local ordinance. 

(2) Notice of the appeal and any other pleadings required to be filed with the court shall be 
served as required by law within the applicable time period. This requirement is 
jurisdictional. 

(3) The cost of transcribing and preparing all records ordered certified by the court or desired 
by the appellant for such appeal shall be borne by the appellant. The record of the 
proceedings shall be prepared by the City or such qualified person as it selects. The 
appellant shall post with the city clerk prior to the preparation of any records an advance 
fee deposit in the amount specified by the city clerk. Any overage will be promptly 

rs 
returned to the appellant. 

EXHIBITS: 

The following exhibits were offered and entered into the record: 

1. Application 
2. Cover letter itemizing application fees, dated 7130103 
3. PRDPreliminary Plat Map received 713 0103 (Superceded) 
4. Sign-In sheet from Getchell Hill Investments dated 6/15/03 
5. Letter from Tom King to Jeff Massie regarding State Ave surplus signal material, 

dtd.717103 
6. Commitment for Title Insurance from First American Title Insurance Company 
7. Supplemental Report 1 from First American Title Insurance Company, dated 7/14/03 
8. 1" Supplemental to 1'' Commitment from First American Title Insurance Co., dated 

71 1 4/03 
9. Tax Parcel Map 
10. Overall Preliminary PlatPRD Map - Detail of Northwest Comer 
1 1. Wetland Delineation Report 
12. Letter fiom Cheryl Dungan to Core Design, Inc dated 8/1/03 

13. Environmental Checklist, received 7/30103 
14. Mailing List, received 7130103 
15. Letter from Core Design to Gloria Hirashima, received 7130103 
16. Preliminary Grading and Utility Plan, Road Profiles, Site Details, rcd. 7130103 

(Superceded) 
17. Overall Landscape Plan North map, received 7130103 

Item 10 -15



Hearir,, Examiner Recommendation 
Case No.: 0307022 

Page 10 

18. Revised Wetland Delineation Report, received 7/30/03 
19. Geotechnical Report, received 7/30/03 
20. Preliminary Storm Drainage Report, received 7130103 
21. Fish and Wildlife Habitat Area Assessment, received 7/30/03 
22. Traffic Impact Study, received 7/30/03 
23. Complete Title Report from First American Title Insurance Company, received 8/4/03 
24. Request for Review Checklist, dated 8/4/03 
25. Affidavit of Posting dated 8/5/03 
26. Affidavit of Posting 
27. RFR from Tulalip Tribes - Cornrn. Dev., dated 8/6/03 
28. Fax from Cheryl Dungan to Jerry Jacobsen, dated 8/7/03 
29. RFR from Marysville Fire District, dated 811 1/03 
30. RFR from Marysville School District, dated 811 1/03 
3 1. RFR from Marysville Police Dept, dated 811 1/03 . 

32. Letter from PUD dated 8/12/03 
33. RFR from Verizon dated 8/13/03 
34. Letter from Mary Wilcox, received 8/13/03 
35. Letter from Cheryl Dungan to Barghausen Consulting Engineers, Inc regarding the 

Revised Wetland Delineation Report, dated 811 4/03 
36. RFR from Sno. Co. Public Works, Land Dev., dated 811 8/03 
37. RFR from Jeff Massie, dated 8/19/03 
38. Site plans and fax cover sheet from Cheryl Dungan to Joe Mudlin dated 8/19/03 
39. Public Disclosure Request, received 8/20/03 
40. RFR from Kevin Nielson dated 8/21/03 
41. RFR from Land Development dated 8/21/03 
42. RFR from Parks & Recreation Dept date 8/22/03 
43. Letter from Getchell Investments, LLC received 8/27/03 
44. Letter from Cheryl Dungan to Core Design dated 8/25/03 (superceded) 
45. Letter from Cheryl Dungan to Core Design re: technical review meeting, dated 8/25/03 
46. RFR from City of Arlington - Planning Director, dated 8/28/03 
47. Sign-Ln sheet from Getchell Hill PRD Technical Review Meeting, dated 9/3/03 
48. Letter from Cheryl Dungan to Core Design dated 9/3/03 
49.. Letter from RMJ Associates, LLC to Cheryl Dungan, received 9/5/03 
50. Letter from Samantha Stoughtenger to Getchell Investments LLC dated 911 1/03 
5 1. Letter from Getchell Investments LLC re: Technical Review Comments, received 9/15/03 
52. Email from Samantha Stoughtenger dated 9/12/03 
53. Letter from Barghausen Consulting Engineers Inc re: on-site meeting, received 911 5/03 
54. Letter from David Ostergaard to Core Design dated 9/16/03 
55. Email from Sandra Korturn to Cheryl Dungan received 9/17/03 
56. Letter from Samantha Stoughtenger to Getchell Investments LLC dated 9/23/03 
57. Requisition/Invoice from Marysville School District for janitorial service for 

neighborhood meeting, dated 6/24/03 
58. Letter from Ramin Pazooki to Cheryl Dungan dated 10/3/03 
59. Fax to Art Day from Cheryl Dungan with WSDOT comments dated 10/7/03 

Item 10 -16



Hear i~ .~  dxaminer Recommendation 
Case No.: 0307022 

Page 11 

60. Letter from Core Design to David Ostergaard received 10/8/03 
6 1. Invoice from Adolfson Associates dated 10/9/03 
62. Memo from Cheryl Dungan to Art Day with maps re: the Wetland issues, dated 10/14/03 
63. Letter from David Ostergaard to Lafe Hermansen re: the variance request response, 

10/24/03 
64. Invoice from Adolfson Associates dated 11/12/03 
65. Transmittal letter from Wells Group to Gloria Hirashima dated 12/3/03 
66. Letter to Jim Ballew from Getchell Investments dated 1 1/26/03 
67. Letter to Gloria Hirashima from Getchell Investments, re: Traffic Mit. Fees dated 

1 1/26/03 
68. Letter from Getchell Investments, re: Technical Review Comments, dated 1211 5/03 
69. Preliminary Plat Map dated 12/2/03 (Superceded) 
70. Site Yield Analysis & Lot List (Superceded) 
71. Preliminary Wetland Mitigation Plan dated 12/3/03 
72. Preliminary Storm Drainage report received 12/17/03 
73. Preliminary Grading & Utility Plan received 1211 7/03 
74. Overall Prelim. Plat Map, Boundary, Topographic & Parcel, PRDIPrelim. Plat rcd. 

1211 7/03 (Superceded) 
75. Request for Review Checklist dated 1211 8/03 
76. Wetlands Coordinates map, received 1211 8/03 
77. Biological Evaluation, received 1211 8/03 
78. Letter from Kevin Nielsen to Core Design dated 1211 9/03 
79. RFR from Sno. Co. Public Works, Land Dev.-Maria Schmidt, dated 12/23/03- 
80. Letter from Cheryl Dungan to Core Design dated 12/22/03 
8 1. Letter from Jim Ballew to Getchell Investments LLC dated 12/24/03 
82. RFR from Marysville Fire District dated 12/29/03 
83. Paved Pedestrian Trail Standard from Jim Ballew 
84. Letter from Barghausen Consulting Engineers to Cheryl Dungan received 1/5/04 
85. RFR from Land Dev.-Samantha dated 1/5/04 
86. Letter from Cheryl Dungan to Core Design dated 1/7/04 
87. Email from Kevin Nielsen to Cheryl Dungan dated 1/7/04 
88. Mitigated Determination of Non-Significance 
89. Detailed PM Peak Hour Project Trip Assignment map 
90. Email from Samantha Stoughtenger to Gloria Hirashima dated 1/16/04 
9 1. Affidavit of Posting 
92. Affidavit of Posting 
93. Afidavit of Publication dated 112 1/04 
94. Letter from Ann Goetz to Cheryl Dungan received 1/27/04 
95. Preliminary Road Profiles map received 1/27/04 
96. Utility location map 
97. Memo from Core Design to Samantha Stoughtenger received 2/2/04 
98. Letter from Snohomish County PW to Cheryl Dungan received 1/29/04 
99. Affidavit of Publication dated 1/28/04 
100. Notice of Appeal, received 1/30/04 

Item 10 -17



Hearii,, Examiner Recommendation 
Case No.: 0307022 

Page 12 

101. RFR from Olympic Pipeline dated 1130104 
102. Offsite Sewer Capacity Analysis from Core Design, dated 2110104 
103. Letter from PUD to Cheryl Dungan, received 211 3/04 
104. Letter from Centex Homes to Gloria Hirashima, received 2/27/04 
105. Letter from David Ostergaard to David E. Cayton dated 3/5/04 
106. Letter to Gloria Hirashima from Getchell Investments, LLC dated 3/8/04 
107. Letter to Gloria Hirashima from Art Day & Tom Wells dated 311 5/04 
108. Letter to Art Day from Gloria Hirashima dated 311 7/04 
109. Affidavit of Posting 
1 10. PRDffreliminary Plat Map received 3/25/04'(~u~erceded) 
11 1. Memo from Lafe Hermansen, Core Design Inc., w/ Site Yield Analysis dtd 3/29/04 
112. Memo from Samantha Stoughtenger dated 3/30/04 
1 13. E-mail from JD Mudlin & reply from Cheryl Dungan dated 4/2/04 
1 14. Memo to Cheryl Dungan from Lafe Hermansen dated 3/30/04 
115. PRD/Preliminary Plat Map received 3/26/04 
1 16. Staff Recommendation 
1 17. Summary of Land Use, submitted by the Applicant 
1 18. Applicant Comments to Staff Recommendation 
1 19. Bonus density discussion, submitted by the Applicant 

PARTIES of RECORD: 

RD & F, Inc. 
1 5790 Jackpine Road 
LaPine, OR 97739 

Dale & Velma Olson 
14703 Lake Goodwin Rd 
Stanwood, WA 98292 

Fred & Chloe Waters 
7907 ~ 4 ' ~  St NE 
Marysville, WA 98270 

Karl Lambert 
8124 83rd Ave NE 
Marysville, WA 98270 

Gerald & Mary Royal 
81 11 8 4 ~  s t  NE 
Marysville, WA 98270 

Getchell Investments, LLC 
Art Day/Tom Wells 
PO Box 518 
Bellevue, WA 98009 

Core Design Josh Brower 
Lafe Hermansen and Dave Cayton Mentor Law Group 
1471 1 NE 29'h place, #lo1 1 I00 Market Place Tower 
Bellevue, WA 98007 2025 First Avenue 

Seattle, WA 98 12 1 

Joe Mudlin 
8305 ~ 3 ' ~  Ave. NE 
Marysville, WA 98270 

Shannon Ramey 
821 5 ~ 4 ' ~  St. NE 
Marysville, WA 98270 

Item 10 -18



Mary Wilcox 
8209 83rd Ave. NE 
Marysville, WA 98270 

Malcom McNaughton 
Barclays North, Inc. 
105 15 20Ih Street SE, Suite 100 
Everett, WA 98205 

Heari~," 2xaminer Recommendation 
Case No.: 0307022 

Page 13 

Gary Petershagen 
PO Box 1465 
Marysville, WA 98270 

Planning Department 

Item 10 -19



Item 10 -20



Item 10 -21



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
80 Columbia Avenue, Marysville, WA 98270 
(360) 363-8100, (360) 651-5099 FAX 

FINAL PLAT CHECK LIST 
Plat Name: 4 I i'\7pse 3 I lpA#I I  2 9 7 o ~ Z -  - 

item 1 Department [I-N 
1. Plat Map- Checked & Approved 7 L? 0 

QyPlanning-1 , ii, 17'11- 

2. Letter of Segregation to Assessor /mvl I I I n  
3. Water SystemISewer System 

Letter of Acceptance 

Asbuilts - Including Digital Files 

Bill(s) of Sale 

Maintenance and Warranty Funding 

4. RoadIStorm Sewer 

Letter of Acceptance 

Asbuilts - Including Digital Files 

Bill(s) of Sale 

Maintenance and Warranty Funding 

5. Performance Bond - SubmittedIApproved 

(If Required - Road and Storm Drain Only) 

6. Inspection Fees - Calculated and Paid 

7 .  Final Plat Fee - Calculated and Paid 1 Planning I m m  

8. TIP Fees: elk- . L @  L' -9~:-,473 
I D  

Planning 
I I 

9. Parks Mitigation Fees: 
I- 

10. School District Mitigation Fees: 

- 
11. Signage a n q t r i p i n g ) n s t a l l ~ y &  

12. Final Grading and TESC Inspection 
Item 10 -22



I U  
13. Satisfied Hearing Examiner's Conditions of Approval I Planning 

I- 
14. UtilitylRecoveryIMain Fees I Land Dev. 

I n  
I I I I 

Plat Approved for Recording: - - 
Community Development Director: l&w 1 BJ 0 - 

L 

Date: \ J  ' 

l ~ i t y  Engineer: 

Note: The frnal plat will not be scheduled before the City Council until this checklist is complete. 

Item 10 -23



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 
 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  July 23, 2007 

AGENDA ITEM: PUD Delta-Marysville 12kV Distribution Project 
Easement through Ebey Waterfront Park 
                                

AGENDA SECTION: 
 

PREPARED BY: 
John Cowling, Engineering Services Manager – Land Development 
 

AGENDA NUMBER: 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Easement Document (minor revisions to be made) 
2. Letter from PUD with graphical representation of facility 

 

APPROVED BY: 
 
MAYOR  CAO 

BUDGET CODE: AMOUNT: 

 
The proposed PUD easement through the Waterfront Park property is to accommodate 
the growing power needs downtown.  PUD has delayed the project in hopes of locating 
the facility on the new SR 529 bridge but due to the delays in construction of the bridge 
the project cannot be delayed any further without potential disruption to power service.  
Current proposal is to install a new transmission pole in the locations shown in the 
attachments. 
 
The proposed easement is in the process of being revised prior to signature to include a 
legal description and change some language. 
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Public Works and Community Development staff recommends 
Council authorize signature of the attached easement.   
 
 
COUNCIL ACTION: 
 
 
 

Item 11 -1



Item 11 -2



Item 11 -3



Item 11 -4



Item 11 -5



Item 11 -6



Item 11 -7



Item 11 -8



Item 11 -9



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

City Council Meeting Date: July 23,2007 
AGENDA ITEM: I AGENDA SECTION: 

- 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Attachment 1 - Plan View / Aerial Photo, west-side driveway 

State Avenue 136"' Street NE to 1 52"d Street NE Corridor 
Improvements - Utility Relocation Agreement with Sno. Co. PUD 
PREPARED BY: 
Patrick Gruenhagen, P.E., Project Manager 

Attachment 2 - Utility Relocation Agreement 

New Business 

AGENDA NUMBER: 

Design and Right of Way acquisition for the City's State Avenue 136'" Street NE to 152"~  
Street NE Corridor Improvement Project are currently ongoing, and construction should 
begin by early fall. In support of this goal, efforts are under way to coordinate with 
Snohomish County PUD and other utility companies - for the purposes of defining 
potential utility conflicts that will arise as a result of the City's project. As the conflicts are 
more clearly defined and understood, this will then pave the way for confirmation of the 
various relocation needs that exist along the corridor. 

BUDGET CODE: 30500030.563000 

One such need exists at the intersection of Smokey Point Boulevard and 152"d Street NE, 
where the City intends to install a new traffic signal. As can be seen from Attachment 1, the 
City's plans call for reconfiguration of the "shared" driveway that currently resides on the 

AMOUNT: $167,974.75 (est.) 

west side of the intersection. Due to the current offset between the east and west approach 
legs of the intersection, the project team has determined that reconfiguration of this driveway 
will be a necessary precursor to installation of the future signal. (to avoid the need for "split 
phase" operation of the signal for eastbound and westbound turning movements) As a 
consequence, the PUD transmission pole that currently exists at this location will have to be 
moved to the south and out of PUD-owned easement, as shown in Attachment 1. 

Due to this planned relocation, as well as others along the corridor, the City and PUD intend 
to enter into a Utility Relocation Agreement, included herein as Attachment 2. This 
Agreement establishes the terms by which various relocations along the corridor will occur, 
and specifically defines the percentages that will be used as a basis for establishing City 
"cost share" of the overall, actual relocation costs. (Note that the $167,974.75 Jgzire at top 

~ ~ 

is simply an estimate, as noted within the Agreement - derived ,for the purposes if 
establishing the aforementionedpercentages.) As indicated in Section D, paragraph 3 of the 
Agreement, the City's cost share will ultimately be either 16.00% or 22.65% of actual costs. 
The latter percentage will be used in the event that the City and PUD are forced to pursue 
easement acquisition through the condemnation process. Otherwise, the City share will 
ultimately be 16.00% of actual relocation costs. (or roughly $109,000, as noted in Exhibit B) 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Staff recommends that the Council authorize the attached Utility Relocation Agreement 
with Snohomish County PUD, agreeing to pay either 16.00% or 22.65% of the actual total 
relocation costs, depending on circumstance. 
COUNCIL ACTION: 

Item 12 -1



Attachment No. 1 
Planned PUD Transmission Pole Relocation 
152"~ Street NE / Smokey Point Boulevard 

July 23, 2007 Marysville City Council Meeting 

Item 12 -2



UTILITY RELOCATION AGREEMENT 
B E T W E N  

THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
AND 

PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1 OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY 

This Agreement is entered into this day of ,2007, between the 
City of Marysville, hereinafter referred to as "the CITY", and the Public Utility District No. 1 of 
Snohomish County, hereinafter referred to as "the DISTRICT", both of which municipal 
corporations are located in and existing under the laws of the State of Washington. 

Recitals 

A. The CITY is the lead agency on a project known as the State Avenue Conidor 
Improvement Pro-ject, which includes work that necessitates relocation of District transmission 
and distribution overhead and underground facilities including all attached wires, communication 
facilities and all associated guy stubs, guys, anchors, underground vaults, and miscellaneous 
materials within the project limits. The project limits are adjacent to State Avenue between 136"' 
Street NE and the north border of the City of Marysville and east from State Avenue on 152"~ 
Street NE approximately 2000' and east from State Avenue on 136'~ Street NE approximately 
500'. The construction necessary to accomplish the above electric utility removal and relocation 
work shall be called "the Work" or "the Project". 

B. The DISTRICT agrees to relocate the existing overhead and underground 115kV 
and 12kV lines and DISTRICT communication facilities in the CITY b g h t  of Way ("ROW) at 
District's expense in 'like kind' with new overhead and underground facilities to accommodate 
the State Avenue Reconstruction project. 

C .  The CITY desires, at its cost, to have the DISTRICT relocate the existing 
overhead and underground 1 15kV and 12kV lines and DISTRICT communication facilities on 
DISTRICT easements, specifically pole M-SC 612, in 'like kind' with new overhead and 
underground facilities to accommodate the State Avenue Reconstruction project. Additionally, 
the CITY desires, at its cost, the relocation of those facilities affected by the relocation of 
DISTRICT facilities on DISTRICT easements, specifically pole CEE-1, in 'like kind' with new 
overhead and underground facilities. The cost includes the purchase of easements for the 
relocated facilities. 

D. Parties have agreed on their respective costs and responsibilities for this Project. 

Now therefore, it is mutually agreed as follows: 

1. CONSTRUCTION. The DISTRICT shall design and construct the Work. The 
DISTRICT may advertise for bids, award and enter into a public works contract ("PWC") if 
required for the Work. The DISTRICT shall administer the Work and manage the construction of 
the Project. The CITY may review the design and construction of the Work, but by so doing, 
shall not be responsible for the design or performance of the Work or for any claims arising from 
the contract or work, except as set forth in this Agreement. The District agrees to make every 
reasonable effort to complete the work by December 3 I", 2007; provided, that neither party shall 
be liable to the other for, or be considered to be in breach of or in default under this Agreement 
because of any failure or delay in performance by such party under this Agreement to the extent 
such failure of delay is caused by or results from any cause or condition which is beyond such 
party's reasonable control, or which such party is unable to prevent or overcome by exercise of 

Page 1 of 7 

Item 12 -3



reasonable diligence. Additionally, in order for work to be completed by December 3 I", 2007, 
easements must be acquired by the end of July, 2007 for the relocations on tax parcel # 
3 1053200101500. If the needed easements are not acquired by the end of July, 2007, on tax 
parcel # 31053200101500, a mutually agreed upon schedule will be worked out between the 
DISTRICT and the CITY for the Project. 

2. CONTRACT AWARD. The DISTRICT shall notify and provide the following 
information to the CITY within five (5) working days of opening the PWC installation bids: (a) 
the list of bidders, (b) summary of bids, (c) bidding tabulation sheets, and (c) the name of the 
evaluated apparent low bidder. The DISTRICT shall notify the CITY in writing of its intent to 
award the PWC to the evaluated apparent low bidder, PROVIDED, that the DISTRICT shall 
award no conkact for more than fifteen (15) percent in excess of the Engineer's estimate for all 
work under the PWC. Should all bids exceed the Engineer's estimate by more than fifteen (15) 
percent, the DISTRICT, with the written agreement of the CITY, shall re-bid the PWC. For any 
contract awarded for the Work, the CITY shall be named as an additional insured in conjunction 
with the DISTRICT. The DISTRICT will provide the CITY with a copy of the performance bond 
that is furnished to the DISTRICT by its Contractor. 

3. COST SHARE. The CITY and the DISTRICT agree to share the costs for the 
Project in accordance with Project cost estimates as set forth in attached Exhibit A or B; 
provided, however, that except as provided in section seven (7) below: (a) the CITY'S share of 
the total design, administration, and construction cost shall be 22.65% of the actual total cost of 
the Project, as laid out in Exhibit A, if the District must proceed with condemnation on tax parcel 
# 3 1053200101500, irrespective of actual cost of any particular portion thereof, (b) the CITY'S 
share of the total design, administration, and construction cost shall be 16.00% of the actual total 
cost of the Project, as laid out in Exhibit B, if the District does not proceed with condemnation on 
tax parcel # 3 1053200 10 1500, irrespective of actual cost of any particular portion thereof. 

4. CITY PAYMENT. The CITY agrees to reimburse the DISTRICT for Project 
costs, in an amount as stated in section three (3). Within thirty (30) days of submittal of 
invoice(s) from the DISTRICT to the CITY, the CITY shall reimburse the DISTRICT for the 
amount described therein. Invoices may be submitted for payment on a monthly basis during the 
performance of the Work and shall be based upon the actual amount of the Project work 
completed. Invoices shall be sent to 

5. POWERLINE RELOCATION. The parties agree to work cooperatively to 
ensure that the installation of the poles and underground structures shall be coordinated and occur 
in conjunction with, and not interfere with, the other elements of the DISTRICT facilities or the 
CITY'S State Avenue Reconstruction project. 

6. Future Relocations. The parties agree that future relocations of pole M-SC 612 forced 
by the CITY shall be at the CITY'S cost. This is due to the fact that the CITY is requesting the 
DISTRICT to move from its easement to CITY ROW. This cost includes modifications or 
relocations that must be done to other facilities due to the future relocation o f  pole M-SC 612. 
Additionally, this cost includes the purchase of  new easements for the relocation o f  the 
facilities. 

7. CHANGE ORDERS AND CONSTRUCTION CLAIMS FOR ADDITIONAL 
PAYMENT. The DISTRICT shall administer the construction, including handling all requests 
for change orders and claims for additional payment. In the event of any change order or claim 
that the DISTRICT believes is justified and for which the DISTRICT believes the CITY should 
share in the cost, then prior to approving the change order or claim, the DISTRICT shall obtain 

Page 2 of 7 

Item 12 -4



the CITY'S written approval before agreeing on either entitlement or quantum with the 
contractor; provided, that if the District is unable following reasonable efforts, due to exigent 
circumstances or dispute, to acquire the City's written approval prior to issuance of any change 
order or claim which the District reasonably believes is appropriate and reasonably necessary for 
timely Project completion in accordance with this Agreement, then the District may approve such 
change order or claim without the prior written approval of the CITY; in such event, after 
submittal by the DISTRICT to the CITY of invoice for payment, accompanied by supporting 
documentation, the CITY may reimburse its share of costs as provided above. or the DISTRICT 
may pursue its other legal or equitable remedies for collection as provided by law. If the City 
notifies the District that the Work is to be performed at a location that is different than that 
described in the design existing on the date that this document is executed the District will be 
paid for all of its resulting costs. 

8. INDEMNIFICATION. The CITY agrees to indemnify, defend and hold the 
DISTRICT, its employees, agents, and elected and appointed officials harmless from any and all 
claims that may be made against them arising out of the performance of the activities described in 
this Agreement, to the extent of the negligence of the CITY, its employees, agents or elected or 
appointed officials. The CITY further agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold the DISTRICT, its 
employees, agents, and elected and appointed officials harmless from all claims, demands, or 
damages related to the CITY'S municipal responsibilities and obligations with respect to the 
activities described in the Agreement. 

The DISTRICT agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold the CITY, its employees, agents, 
and elected and appointed officials harmless from any and all claims that may be made against 
them arising out of the performance of the activities described in this Agreement, to the extent of 
the negligence of the DISTRICT, its employees, agents, or elected or appointed officials. The 
DISTRICT further agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold the CITY, its employees, agents, and 
elected and appointed officials harmless from all claims, demands, or damages related to the 
DISTRICT'S municipal responsibilities and obligations with respect to the activities described in 
this Agreement. 

For purposes of this Section, the respective indemnification and hold-harmless 
obligations of each of the parties shall not be limited in any way by any limitations on amount or 
type of damages, compensation or benefits payable to an employee under Washington state 
industrial insurance laws, and EACH OF THE PARTIES SPECIFICALLY AND EXPRESSLY 
WAIVES ANY IMMUNITY UNDER SUCH LAWS. EACH OF THE PARTIES 
ACKNOWLEDGES THAT SUCH WAIVER HAS BEEN MUTUALLY NEGOTIATED. 

9. DURATION AND TERMINATION. This Agreement shall be effective on 
execution, and shall remain in effect, except for section six (6), until the construction, acceptance 
by the DISTRICT, and payment have been completed. Section six (6) of this agreement shall 
stay in effect until pole M-SC 612 is relocated or both parties agree in writing to terminate said 
portion of agreement. If the State Avenue Reconstruction project is terminated for any reason, 
and the District is notified by the City to stop work on the then existing design, the District will 
do so and it will be reimbursed by the City for all costs that it has incurred prior to the date of 
notification plus reasonable costs to close out the Project and to restore the 115kV, 12kV and 
DISTRICT communication facilities to a condition satisfactory to the Uistrict. Otherwise 

Termination of this Agreement shall be by mutual written agreement of the CITY and the 
DISTRICT; provided that indemnification and reimbursement responsibilities incurred by either 
party pursuant to paragraphs 3 through 5 above, shall survive such termination. 

Page 3 of 7 

Item 12 -5



10. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION. The parties agree that no separate legal 
administrative entities are necessary in order to carry out this Agreement. If determined by a 
court to be necessary for the purposes of the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Ch. 39.34 RCW, or any 
other applicable law, an administrator or joint board responsible for administering this Agreement 
will be established by mutual agreement. Any real or personal property used by either party in 
connection with this Agreement will be acquired, held, and disposed of by that party in its 
discretion, and the other party will have no joint or other interest therein. 

1 1. NOTICES. Notices to the CITY shall be sent to the following address: 

NOTICES. Notices to the DISTRICT shall to be sent to the following address: 

Brian L. White, P.E. 
Manager Transmission Engineering, Joint Use, and Standards 
PUD No. 1 of Snohomish County 
1802 75"' St SW 
PO Box 1 107, m/s 04 
Everett, WA 98206- 1 107 

12. WAIVER. Any waiver by the DISTRICT or the CITY or the breach of any 
provision of this Agreement by the other party will not operate to be construed as a waiver of any 
subsequent breach by either party or prevent either party from thereafter enforcing any such 
provisions. 

13. COMPLETE AGREEMENT. This Agreement contains the complete and 
integrated understanding and agreement between the parties and supersedes any understanding, 
agreement or negotiation touching on the subject matter hereto, whether oral or written, not set 
forth herein, and any amendment or modification hereof shall be effective only if in writing 
signed by both parties. 

14. SEVERABILITY. If any part of this Agreement is found to be in conflict with 
applicable laws, such part shall be inoperative, null and void, insofar as it is in conflict with said 
laws, and the remainder of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

15. VENUE. This Agreement shall be administered and interpreted under the laws 
of the State of Washington. Venue for any lawsuit arising our of this Agreement shall be in 
Snohomish County, Washington. 

Page 4 of 7 

Item 12 -6



IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day and year 
first written above. 

PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1 
OF SNOHOMISH COUNTY 

By: 
Brian L. White 
Manager Transmission Engineering, 
Joint Use, and Standards 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

By: 
Bardell D. Miller 
Assistant General Counsel 

ATTEST 

BY: 
Christopher Lee 
Principal Engineer 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

By: 

Mayor 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

By: 

Marysville City Attorney 

ATTEST 

By: 

Clerk 

Page 5 of 7 

Item 12 -7



EXHIBIT A 

DISTRICT'S ESTIMATED 
PERCENTAGE OF COST 77.35% 

CITY'S ESTIMATED 
PERCENTAGE OF COST 22.65% 

CITY Cost 
$1,225.00 

$45,324.00 
$14,328.00 

$1 49.00 
$1 7,997.00 
$45,500.00 
$21,542.00 
$21,909.75 

$1 67,974.75 

Construction Labor 
Contract Labor 
Materials and Equipment 
Transportation 
EngineeringIDrafting 
Easements 
District A&G 
Contingency 
Total Estimated Cost 

* Include Applicable 
Overheads and Taxes 

DISTRICT Cost 
$6,267.00 

$320,788.00 
$42,640.00 

$670.00 
$50,927.00 

$4,000.00 
$73,576.00 
$74,830.20 

$573,698.20 

Page 6 of 7 

Item 12 -8



EXHIBIT B 

DISTRICT'S ESTIMATED 
PERCENTAGE OF COST 84.00% 

Construction Labor 
Contract Labor 
Materials and Equipment 
Transportation 
EngineeringIDrafting 
Easements 
District A&G 
Contingency 
Total Estimated Cost 

CITY'S ESTIMATED 
PERCENTAGE OF COST 16.00% 

* Include Applicable 
Overheads and Taxes 

DISTRICT Cost 
$6,267.00 

$320,788.00 
$42,640.00 

$670.00 
$50,927.00 

$4,000.00 
$73,576.00 
$74,830.20 

$573,698.20 

Page 7 of 7 

CITY Cost I 
$1,225.00 

$45,324.00 
$14,328.00 

$1 49.00 
$1 7,997.00 

$2,000.00 
$14,017.00 
$1 4,256.00 

$109,296.00 

Item 12 -9



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: July 23,2007 
[ AGENDA ITEM: I AGENDA SECTION: 

Transportation Element Comprehensive Plan 
Professional Services Agreement with The Transpo Group 
PREPARED BY: 

New Business 

AGENDA NUMBER: 

John Tatum, Traffic Engineer 
ATTACHMENTS: 

Professional Services Agreement 

Attached is a Professional Services Agreement with The Transpo Group Inc. to provide 
services to update the City's Transportation Element of the Comprehensive Plan. Four firms 
were invited to interview, but one finn dropped out. The four firms interviewed were Jones & 
Stokes, Gary Struthers and Associates, Perteet, and The Transpo Group. The Transpo Group 
has a very good reputation in providing this type of service and demonstrated superior 
modeling skills. They provided a superior proposal and presentation. 

BUDGET CODE: 

The City's existing Comprehensive Plan is over six (6) years old and needs to be updated to 
reflect the changes that have occurred. This project has an approved budget of $100,000.00 in 
2007 and we are budgeting $1 35,000 in 2008; the Agreement is not to exceed $228,3 10. 

M A Y ~ R  
I 

AMOUNT: 
$228,3 10 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Public Works Staff recommends City Council authorize the Mayor to sign the Professional 
Services Agreement with The Transpo Group in an amount not to exceed $228,3 10.00. 
COUNCIL ACTION: 

CAO 

Item 13 -1



The 
*-wnq 

Exhibit A 

Scope of Services and Fee Proiection 

Client Name: City of Marysville - 

Project Name: Transportation - ~ l e k e n t  and - -  ~ r & c  - Impact Fee Program Update 

Exhibit Dated: July 3, 2007 - - -- TG: 0 7 1 5 3 . ~ ~  - - 

Scope o f  Services 
Based on our lscussions with the City of Mqsville, The Transpo Group has prepared the follo\ving 
scope of services for updating the Transportation Element of its Comprehensive Plan. The project 
includes updating and expanlng the travel forecasting and traffic operations models. It also focuses 
on refinement of the City's traffic impact fee and concurrency management programs. The scope of 
services covers the following nine tasks: 

Project Management and Coorlnation 
Agency and Public Engagement Program 
Existing Transportation Conditions 
Traffic Operations Model and Analyses 
Travel Demand Model Refinement and Update 
Transportation Systems Improvement Projects and Programs 
Transportation Finance Program and Traffic Impact Fee Program 
Transportation Policies and Concurrency Management Program 
Transportation Element Documentation 

The consultant will be supported by the City and other City consultants. In particular, HDR 
Engineering will provide data, analysis, and recommended improvements for the downtown area 
based on its work program for the "1-5 to City Center Access Study - Phase 1 ," which will be 
conducted concurrently with the update of the Transportation Element. The Transportation Element 
also will be coorlnated with and will integrate applicable data, analyses, and recommendations from 
subarea and corridor s tu les  prepared by Perteet, Inc and Jones and Stokes.. 

The following identifies the work program for each task, inclulng the overall approach and analyses 
needed to support the update of the Transportation Element. A 2040 horizon year is proposed to 
support long range forecasts needed for the 1-5 to City Center Access Study and future project 
analyses. Consultant deliverables for each task are summarized. Data needs and support from the City 
of Marysville are also identified. 

Task 1 : Project Management and Coordination 

The number and scope of ongoing City transportation projects and specific transportation issues 

makes communication a key element of the success of the Transportation Element Update. Ongoing 
coordnation between Transpo and key City staff, as well as consultants worhng on other City 
projects, is needed to ensure consistency in data, analyses results, and the overall transportation 
systems plan. 

M:\07\071 53 Marysville Transportation Element Update\Admin\Scope & Budget\071 53 Scope 7-2-07.doc 
Page 1 

Item 13 -2



The 
T ~ w n n  . . 

Exhibit A 
- 

..,. 

Subtask I A  - Project Management 

This subtask covers ongoing coordnation and updates between the consultant team project manager 
and the City's project manager or other key staff. It also covers preparation of invoices and progress 
reports. 

The consultant project manager d l  coordinate with the City's project manager on a regular basis 
throughout the duration of the project. The coorlnation will address data needs, overall technical 
analyses assumptions/methodologies, budget, schedule, and upcoming meetings. Coordnation will 
occur through phone calls, email, and meetings, as appropriate. Coordmation betsveen the City staff 
and the consultant team on specific project tasks is included in the respective tasks. 

The consultant team project manager will prepare progress reports to accompany monthly invoices. 
The progress reports will identify work elements completed for each task during the invoice period. A 
summary of upcoming tasks d l  also be included. 

Subtask 18 - Project Coordination 

The City of Marysville has a number of ongoing transportation improvement projects and subarea 
studles. Coordination wiU be required between Transpo, the City, and the City's other project 
consultants to transfer data, lscuss analysis methodologies, review improvement concepts, and 
provide consistency between the various projects. 

Transpo will prepare for and attend up to four coordnation meetings with the City and/or its 
consultants to discuss interfaces and data transfer needs between various projects and the 
Transportation Element. The City will l r e c t  which meetings will be attended. 

Transpo will transfer existing or forecast traffic data, analyses, and products prepared as part of this 
scope of services with other consultants, as dwected by the City. Furthermore, other project 
consultants will provide Transpo with their data, analyses, and products, as directed by the City, for 
use in the Transportation Element. 

Consultant Delivembles 

Notes, emails, or other summaries ofproject management commtlrzi~'ation 
iVlontli.$progrm reports 
Prtparation and attendance atj%ur meetiqs with other consultant team and the Cig 
Data trarzsfeer atzd notes on coordination mi,$ other const//ta~zt teams 

City  Suppofl: 

P r q e ~ t  management coordination 
Setting up meetings with other consultant teams 
Protiide direction for data transfer maten'aLs andproto~oh between consz~ltants 

M:\07\07153 Marysville Transportation Element Update\Admin\Scope & Budget\07153 Scope 7-2-07.doc 
Page 2 

Item 13 -3



Exhibit A 
- 

Task 2: Agency and Public Engagement Program 

The agency and public engagement program is comprised of two elements: (a) Stakeholder meetings, 
and @) City Council/Planning Commission meetings. These are outhned below. The City can post 
meeting notices and materials on its web page, if desired. This \ d l  further support public input on the 
Transportation Element. 

Subtask 2A  - Stakeholder Meetings 

To help guide the development of the Transportation Element, the City will arrange meetings of 
stakeholder groups focused on non-motorized transportation and truck and truck parking issues. The 
City d identify and invite stakeholders to the meetings. Up to four meetings will be held. Specific 
topics and formats will be defined during the course of the project. Potential topics include: 

Bilung/LValkmg/Trails Advisory Group (2 meetings) 

o Discussion of non-motorized transportation issues and options 
o Review of preliminary recommendations 

Truck Routes and Parking Advisory Group (2 meetings) 

o Discussion of truck and parking issues 
o Review of preliminary recommendations 

Subtask 2 B  - City Council/Planning Commission Meetings 

A total of four meetings of study sessions wdl be held with the City Council and/or Planning 
Commission. Some of the City Council meetings will likely be with the Public Works Committee. The 
meetings tvdl be open to the public. Specific topics and formats for the meetings will be defined as the 
Transportation Element progresses. A preliminary outline for the meetings includes: 

CC/PC Meeting #I: Task 6 
Transportation Improvement Projects and Programs 

CC/PC Meeting #2: Task 8 
Level or Service and Concurrency Management Program 

CC/PC Meeting #3: Task 7 
Transportation Financing and Traffic Impact Fee 

CC/PC Meeting #4: Task 9 
Draft Transportation Element 

M:\07\07153 Marysville Transportation Element Update\Admin\Scope & Budget\07153 Scope 7-2-07.doc Page 3 

Item 13 -4



Exhibit A 

Consultant Deliverables - - - - 

Meeting agendas, materials, and handouts 
Electronic distribl~tion of materials to City far distnnbtrtion to stakeholders 

Szfmmaries ofkey comments, direction, or action itemsfiom meetings 

Ci_t~_~!!WPort 

Establish and contact stakeholders 
Develop contact listfor stakeholders 
Arrange for meeting loiations and times for stakeholders 
Distribution ofpre-meeting materials to stakeholders, Planning Commission and C i t ~  Cot/n~il 
Not& stakeholders, Planning Commission and Ci'y Cozfnncil members o f  meetings 
Input to consultant on comments received ozdtside ofthe meetings 
Aty public noticesfor meetings 
Post schedt~les and meeting materials on Ci'y web page 

Task 3: Existing Transportation Conditions 

This task d l  be used to update the existing condtions inventory and analysis documented in the 
current Transportation Element. It d l  build off of the City's existing data, GIs, and recent and 
ongoing transportation studes. It d l  also incorporate results from the expanded and updated traffic 
operations analyses developed in Task 4. 

Subtask 3A - Review Existing Studies and Plans 

The City will provide available transportation and land use stuches and plans for use by the consultant. 
These will include subarea plans, corridor transportation studies/plans, development traffic impact 
studes, aerial photographs, GIs datasets, and similar materials. The consultant will extract relevant 
information for the update of the Transportation Element. We will dscuss potential changes since the 
time the prior studles were conducted. This will allow us to focus the update on areas of greatest 
need. 

Subtask 3B  - Assemble and Analyze Traffic Data  

In order to establish a solid foundation for the Transportation Element, the consultant \ d l  assemble 
and analyze key transportation system data. These factors will also support development of the traffic 
operations and travel demand forecast models (Tasks 4 and 5, respectively). The data d l  be collected 
from the City of bTarysville, CVSDO'T, Snohomish County, thc City of Arlington, and other sources, 

as applicable. The focus of this task will be to update the inventory and summarize changes to the 
tratlsportation system since the prior Transportation Element was prepared. It \ d l  cover: 

Roadway inventory 

Intersection controls and channelization 
Daily and PhI peak hour traffic 

M:\07\071 53 Marysville Transportation Element Update\Admin\Scope & Budget\071 53 Scope 7-2-07.doc 
Page 4 

Item 13 -5



Exhibit A 

Travel speeds 

Traffic classification 

Rail traffic 
Transit service and ridership 

Sidewalk and pathway inventory 

Bicycle routes 

Transportation improvement projects 

The following highlights key work elements of this subtask. 

Roadwav and  Intersection Inventorv 
The consultant will summarize the existing system of roadways and intersections within the City and 
adjacent study area. Much of the information will be available from existing plans, GIS, other City 
data, or  aerials. The consultant will also conduct a ''windshield" field reconnaissance to  review specific 
transportation issues. 

Traffic Volume Da ta  
Existing recent traffic counts d l  be assembled from the City, LVSDOT, Snohomish County, and 
Arlington. These will be obtained from prior studes and data collection conducted as part of other 
ongoing City consultant studles. Additional PM peak hour traffic counts will be conducted to 
supplement the available traffic volume data. The consultant will arrange for up to 35 PM peak hour 
turning movement counts at study area intersections for use in the evaluation of traffic trends and 
travel patterns. The count locations will be coordinated with the City and it's other consultants at the 
first project coordnation meeting (subtask 1B). The turn movement counts d l  be conducted by a 
traffic count vendor. Combined with traffic counts from other sources, approximately 50 
intersections will be included in the database. The count data also will be used in calibrating the travel 
forecast model (Task 5) and traffic operations analyses (Task 4). 

Available daily traffic counts will also be reviewed and summarized to illustrate temporal traffic 
patterns that may affect the systems plan and improvements. The percentage of heavy vehicle traffic 
in major travel corridors will also be documented based on the daily and peak hour traffic counts. The 
volume of heavy vehicles may affect the type and/or design of transportation improvements. 

Collision Data  
The consultant will assemble and analyze collision data from the City, WSDOT, and Snohornish 
County for the primary study area. The data will cover the most recent three-year period. High 
accident locations and corridors will be identified. The primary types and possible causes of the 
collisions will be identified. Collisions involving pedestrians or bicyclists will also be documented. 

Rail 
\Ve will work with the City and the Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railroad to document the number 
and type of trains traveling through the City that affect traffic operations in the City. The consultant 
will also conduct a preliminary review of prior rights at crossings. This will feed into the operations 
analysis in Task 4. 

M:\07\071 5 3  Marysville Transportation Element Update\Admin\Scope & Budget\07153 Scope 7-2-07.doc 
Page 5 

Item 13 -6



The 
=~ . ls?g  

Exhibit A 
Transit Service. Ridership. and Transvortation Demand M a n a ~ e m e n t  Pro_prams 
We d l  update, as necessary, the inventory of existing transit routes and facilities that serve Marysville. 
This will include Community Transit and Sound Transit bus senrice. If readtly available, we w~ll 
document existing transit ridership and the locations of the highest volume bus stops serving the City. 
We also will refer to the commuter rail service available in Everett. We will also document locations 
and utilization of park-and-ride lots. Current paratransit services, commute trip reduction, and other 
rideshare programs will also be summarized. 

Pedestrian and Bicvcle Facilities 
Based on the City's existing plans and data and dtscussions with City staff, the consultant wdl 
document changes to the pedestrian and bicycle facilities since the prior transportation element was 
prepared. 

Transvortation Imvrovement Plans 
The City's current Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) will be reviewed and 
summarized. This d l  provide the baseline for the evaluation of future conditions within the City. The 
consultant also \ d l  document \rlrSDOT, Snohornish County, Tulalip Tribe, and other agency 
improvements that may be applicable to the Marysville Transportation Element. 

Consultant ~ Deliverables: -- - -- 

Assemble and docment exiting roadwq and intersections 
Assemble and ana~sis o f  available recent tra& counts 
Conhct PM peak hoifr turning movement counts at up to 35 intersections 
S ~ m a r y  o f  City, IVSDOT, and other ageny collison data and documentation o f  h&h accidet~t locations 
.Tz/mmary o f  rail actzfn'g in the Cig 
,Ttlmmarits oftransit sem.ce undja~ilities, and rideshare prqrams 
Lpdates o f  existing pedestrian and Dicy~ieja~ilities 
Sz~nmaries o f  agency transportation impro?jementplans 

City S~cppovt: 

GIS halt lqers (aeiia/s, streets, .peed limits, intersections, sidewalh, jfn~tional class, etc) 
(;bpies ofr~tjai/aI?/e transportation and /artd use stz!die.r and plutzs 
Copies of remt development tr@~. impa~f str/dies 
Cia uc~idcnt duta 
Cig TIP unrl other improvemerttprve~f descniptior~s and statzts 

Task 4: Traffic Operations Model and Analyses 

The primary objective of this task is to develop a PM peak hour intersection operations analysis tool 
that is reliable and defensible. The subtasks described below focus on developing a comprehensive 
Synchro network to support the evaluation of improvement projects and strategies for the update of 
the Transportation Element. The Synchro model also will provide the City with an analysis tool for 
future transportation analysis. 

M:\07\071 53 Marysville Transportation Element Update\Admin\Scope & Budget\O7153 Scope 7-2-07.doc 
Page 6 

Item 13 -7



The 
T~wnq * = 

Exhibit A 
- 

.- 9 

Subtask 4A - Develop Synchro Model 

Using traffic data and information collected under Task 3, the City's current Synchro model will be 
updated with existing traffic counts, signal timing, and intersection geometry. The City's existing 
Synchro model network will be expanded to include all key corridors identified jointly with the City as 
well as those within annexation and urban growth areas. HDR will be responsible for setting up the 
Synchro network for the downtown area. They will provide that network to Transpo for integration 
with the overall City Synchro network. For budgeting purposes, it is assumed that the consultant wlll 
be responsible for coding up to 35 intersections in the model and the overall model will include 
approximatelj~ 50 intersections (after incorporating the downtown/City Center model). Up to 10 
additional intersections may be added to the Synchro model to analyze potential future intersections 
or areas of congestion. 

Subtask 46 -Conduct Field Observations 

Information with respect to vehicle queuing and corridor travel times will be collected for key 
intersections and concurrency corridors. These will be conducted by a traffic count vendor. The 
information obtained from these field observations will be used in the validation of the Synchro 
model. 

Subtask 4C - Conduct Existing Operations Analysis 

Using the Synchro model developed in subtask 4A, existing levels of service d l  be calculated. HDR 
will provide the existing operations analyses for the intersections downtown/City Center area. The 
measures of effectiveness reported would include intersection levels of service (LOS), vehicle delay, 
and intersection volume-to-capacity ratios. Significant traffic queue impacts also will be identified. 
These will be summarized in tabular and graphical formats. Significant changes from the operations 
results from the prior plans will be identified and analyzed. These will be reviewed with City staff. 

Subtask 4 0  - Evaluate Future Baseline Conditions and Alternatives 

Using the traffic forecasts described in subtask 5C, future baseline LOS \d be calculated. Smular to 
the existing conditions summary, future intersection operations will be summarized with respect to 
intersection LOS, vehicle delay, and intersection volume-to-capacity ratios. 

The Synchro model w i l l  be modtfied to reflect the transportation improvements identified for the 
Transportation Element update. The Synchro analysis will be used to further refine the improvements 
and assist in evaluating the overall improvements to the transportation system. 

Subtask 4 E  - Coordination and Review Meetings 

The consultant ~vlll provide summaries of the operations results for review by City staff. We \ d l  
prepare for and attend hvo meetings to review the Synchro results. The first mceting will LWW 

existing conditions and the second meeting d l  cover the forecast condtions. 

Cansultant_Deliverables: 

A n  e-qanded and validated i~zirrent Syr~chro anabses tool 

M:\07\07153 Marysville Transportation Element Update\Admin\Scope & Budget\07153 Scope 7-2-07.doc 
Page 7 

Item 13 -8



Exhibit A 
Existing travel time data and qtleue infomation 
St/mma?y and ana&ses of existing tr@c operations 
Sz~mm~17 and evaltlation offorecast tra@c operahorzs wilh and withod ident$ed improiment~ 

C*-Suppxt: 

Tr@. s@al t i m i ~ g j r  City s&nals 
Review and input on rest~Its of existing andforecast tr@c operations anabses and simtllation 

Task 5: Travel Demand Model Refinement and Update 

The overall goals of this task are to convert the existing TModel2 model to VISUM, expand the 
model coverage area, enhance the model network, refine TAZ boundaries, update existing land use 
and roadway characteristics, calibrate base year (2007) model, and develop future year (2040) model. 
The model d be expanded to include Arlington to the north, areas of unincorporated Snohornish 
County to the east of SR9, SR 2 to the south, and areas of the Tulalip Tribe to the west of 1-5. 

This task will improve upon the current model to more accurately estimate existing travel patterns and 
help achieve better model calibration and future forecasts, with added sensitivity to land uses and 
intersection delays. City staff will provide support in updating the existing land use, developing future 
land use, and confirming roadway attributes. The task also will provide the City with documentation 
of the model assumptions and operation, and training. 

Subtask 5A - TAZ Refinement and Land Use Data  

This task d l  provide the data needed to update the base year model. City staff will take the lead in 
assembling estimates of existing and future housing and employment numbers within the City and 
Transpo ~vill be responsible for areas outside the City. Geographic Information Systems (GIs) will be 
used in developing and summarizing the existing and future land use estimates. The subtask d l  
include refinement and expansion of the model transportation analysis zone (TAZ) boundaries, and 
development of existing and future land use. Inventory and count data assembled in Task 3 will be 
used in developing the model. 

TAZ Refinement 
The existing TAZs will be reviewed and refined to address the City's transportation and land use 
plans. The TAZs will represent the smallest geographic area for which land use data are summarized. 
Refining the boundaries of the TAZs d l  be based on the type of land use, roadway network - . . 

structure, rail lines, and topographic/environmental features. In certain areas, the existing model 
TAZs will be divided into smaller zones to the extent that they better support comprehensive and 
sub-area planning, while also provilng enough detail to support the update of the traffic impact fee 
program. 

The model TAZ system will be expanded to the east, west, north, and south. It ~vlll include the 
Tulahp resen~auon, more of unincorporated Snohomish County, and the City of Lake Stevens. The 
expanded TAZs will be based off the Snohotnish County model TAZs. The TAZ system from the 

updated City of Arlington model will also be included to the north. The TAZ refinements 

M:\07\071 53 Marysville Transportation Element Update\Admin\Scope & Budget\071 53 Scope 7-2-07doc 
Page 8 

Item 13 -9



The 
T~m?q 

Exhibit A 
- 

. - ~  . 

\dl be performed directly in GIs.  The resulting G I s  files will be provided to the City to enable staff 
to complete the existing and future land use estimates. 

Existinr~ and Future Land Use 
City staff will be responsible for the developing estimates of existing (2007) and hture (2040) housing 
and employment numbers within the City. Staff will use the updated GIs  fdes of the TAZ 
refinements to summarize existing and future land use. County assessor parcel information, recent 
buillng permits, Census data, and field surveys will be utilized to update the existing residential units. 
Employment data from PSRC along with business license information can be used to estimate 
employment data. Other third party sources, such as InfoUSA, could be used to assist in estimating 
employment data. The data from InfoUSA would need to be geocoded by address of business and 
reviewed by the City for reasonableness. Once existing land use data has been assembled, 2030 land 
use forecasts wiU be developed by the City. The forecasts would be based on existing zoning, growth 
targets, and the amount of developable land within the City and UGA. Transpo wdl review and 
provide feedback on the resulting land use data. 

Land use data for areas outside the City ~111 be developed using a sirmlar methodology as described 
above, but will be completed by Transpo. Sources of existing and forecast land use data will include 
the Snohomish County model, Tulalip Tribe, City of Arlington, the City of Lake Stevens, and PSRC. 

Subtask 5 B  - Develop Base Year Model 

This task involves developing the base year (2007) travel demand model that reflects current 
conltions. The base year travel demand model will be developed using the VISUM software 
platform. Transpo is teamed with PTV America, the dtstributors of the VISUM software, to provide 
support in updating the City model to the VISUM platform and to provide custornization features as 
part of the base year model development. 

Model Roadwav Network 
The model roadway network will be updated and expanded from the existing model to include all 
arterials and collector roadways in and adjacent to the City. Some local streets \+dun the model area 
also will be coded, as appropriate. The existing model will be coded to allow potential future arterials 
and connector roads to be readtly added to the network. The model roadway network will be updated 
to reflect actual characteristics including alignment, type of roadway, speed lunits, capacity, and 
number of lanes. This process may include development of revised capacity estimates and volume- 
delay functions. Intersection traffic control (signalized versus unsignalized) will be identified along 
with any restricted turn movements. 

Triv Generation 
The model trip generation process will remain consistent with the existing process; however, the 
process \ d l  be refined to include modifications to land use categories and trip types to specificaIIy 
address issues within and surrounding the City. Special generators could be introduced to better 
account for non-typical land uses within and surroullQng the City such as the Tulalip Casino. The trip 
generation will produce vehicle trips generated during the weekday PM peak hour. 

T r i ~  Distribution and Assiynment 

M:\07\07153 Marysville Transportation Element Update\Admin\Scope & Budget\O7153 Scope 7-2-O7.doc 
Page 9 

Item 13 -10



Exhibit A 
- 

The trip lstribution process will be consistent with the existing process which uses the gravity model 
to develop trip tables for the PM peak hour. The trip assignment will incorporate updated external 
trips from the County's or PSRC model. Volume-delay hnctions will be reviewed and refrned for the 
City to better replicate actual ground traffic counts on major corridors and arterials. Any significant 
discrepancies between counted and assigned traffic on a specific link ~111  be reviewed for further 
adjustment as part of model calibration. 

Model Validation and Calibration 
A comprehensive validation exercise will be undertaken for the base year model results comparing 
modeled with recent traffic counts. Comparisons will be made for PM peak hour traffic volumes by 
road type and screenline. Trip interchanges will be compared against those from the Snohomish 
County and PSRC models for reasonableness. Some select link or node checks d l  be performed to 
ensure the model is simulating actual travel patterns. National calibration standards as documented in 
several Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) reports will be used to compare how well the 
model is operating. 

Subtask 5C - Develop Forecast Year Model 

The primary objective of this task will be to develop a 2040 forecast model once the base year model 
network has been fully validated and calibrated. The 2040 housing and employment projections 
prepared in subtask 5A will be summarized by TAZs and will be incorporated into the model. 

Future Baseline Scenario 
A future baseline scenario will be constructed and d l  include roadway projects shown in the City's 
current Transportation Improvement Program (TIP). Projects listed in TIPS from neighboring 
jurisdictions will also be included into the future baseline model scenario. The City will provide input 
on other transportation improvement projects which should be assumed to be completed by 2040 and 
included in the baseline model. The future baseline model will help estimate long-term traffic volumes 
and their impact on the existing and future roadway network. 

Future Alternative Network Scenarios 
The baseline model will be used to evaluate alternative network scenarios that may include regional or 
local projects that may or map not be built by 2040. Such projects could include changes in access to 
1-5, widening of existing arterials, construction of new arterials, and impacts of potential connector 
roads. The City's currently proposed future arterial and connector road system will be the basis for the 
initial alternative. Rased on the baseline and proposed transportation improvement scenarios, other 
options ~vdl be identified and tested to address specific needs and issues. The alternatives will be 
evaluated using the model to identi@ the overall need of the improvement by comparing shifts in 
traffic and volume-to-capacity ratios. The forecast volumes will be further evaluated with the Synchro 
model as described in subtask 4D. 

Srrbtask 5 D  - Model Documentation and Meetings 

This task provides the opportunity to obtain feedback from the City on model assumptions and assist 
the City in understanding model applications and operations. The task also includes a technical report 
to document the travel demand model update and operation. 

M:\07\07153 Marysville Transportation Element Update\Admin\Scope & Budget\O7153 Scope 7-2-07doc 
Page 10 

Item 13 -11



Exhibit A 
Model Documentation 
The model update wdl be documented as a stand-alone technical report. This report will comprise all 
collected data, model inputs, and assumptions that were made throughout the progression of the task. 
It will also include a summary of the land use data, trip generation and distribution processes, and the 
overall model assignment and calibration. Maps and graphical dsplays d l  be included in the 
document to better illustrate the model and forecast results. The report will be separated into two 
main parts: the report body that summarizes each of the steps of the model and (2) appendices that 
contain addtional detailed information on each of the model components. 

Meetings and Training 
A total of three meetings will be attended as part of the VISUM model development. Two project 
team meetings are envisioned to d~scuss: (1) existing and future land use, and (2) base year model 
calibration results and future project assumptions. The third meeting will be a full day training session 
to review model operation and use, and future year forecasts and results. Information developed as 
part of the final model documentation report will be used as meeting materials. A licensed copy of the 
VISUM software will be provided to the City. 

Consultant Deliverables: - - -. - -- -- - - 

ReJ%ned and eqatlded T A Z  system in ArcGIS shaptfile fomat 
Guidehes and fomats for developing land m e  estimates 
Review of C i p  existing andforecast land rise data 
Deuelopment of existing andforecast land usefor areas oritside the C i p  
ReJZned and updated model network 
Converted trip gelreration and distn'bution processes 
Calibration and validation ~;breads/lleets and data 
Calibrated 2007 baseyear model 
2040 baseline and alternative networks 
Two meetings to review and dis~ms land use) mode/ calibration, andfttz4reyear results 
fill-dq trainits session to review model rue and operation 
Training manziah 
;Model do~.trmentation report 
I/IS U1U sojhvare and license 

c i r y  su9Jot-J: 

GIS b~7.re Lyersfor the C i p  (uerial, streets, zoning, parcels, etc.) 
Srimmary of ea.-isting and future land rue estimatesfor the Cify by TAZ 
Ident$catioii gfittcire baseline projee~ts and altetnr~titje network s~,enarios 

Inpnt on a/ternative network 

M:\07\07153 Marysville Transportation Element Update/Admin\Scope & Budget\07153 Scope 7-2-07doc 
Page I 1 

Item 13 -12



The 
=?nlc?f!i 

Exhibit A 
- 

Task 6: Transportation Systems lmprovement Projects and Programs 

This task wdl focus on defining the City's transportation systems improvement needs. It will build off 
of the existing conltions, travel forecasts, and operations analyses. The 2040 baseline condition d l  
be summarized and long-range improvement strategies d l  be evaluated. Recommendations for long- 
range transportation improvement projects and programs will be developed. 

Subtask 6A - 2040 Framework Plan 

The 2040 travel forecasts (Task 5) and operations analysis p a s k  4) will be summarized to establish a 
framework for future transportation needs. The framework plan will take into account the existing 
transportation plans of the City and other agencies. The framework plan will also be used to compare 
planning level costs of a new bridge across Quilceda Creek and improvements in the 108'"/116'" 
Street corridor versus widening 88"' St/Ingraham Blvd from 3 to 5 lanes. A summary of the 
framework for the transportation improvement plan d l  be reviewed with the City prior to 
refinement in subtask 6B. 

Subtask 68 - Prepare Transportation Improvement Project List 

Trans~or t a t ion  I m ~ r o v e m e n t  Proiects 
Based on the results and direction from subtask 6A, a draft list of transportation improvement 
projects and programs will be prepared. Improvement projects and programs will also be defined to 
address traffic safety, non-motorized travel, bus transit service, rail crossings, and long-range 
opportunities for commuter r d .  The improvement projects will be coded into the travel demand 
model to finalize forecasts for the 2040 recommended plan. The forecasts will be evaluated using 
Synchro to confirm the final improvement strategies for the Transportation Element. As appropriate, 
the improvement projects will be refined to resolve issues at specific locations. A phasing/ 
implementation program d l  be defined to assist the City in preparing its Six-Year Transportation 
Improvement Programs. 

In adclition to the specific improvement projects, we d l  define broader transportation program 
needs. These could address the following types of programs: 

Maintenance and operations 

Sidewalk rehabilitation and ADA compliance 
Neighborhood traffic control 

Estimates of annual outlays for these types of programs will be developed through coordination with 
Citv staff. 

Cost Estimates 
Planning level cost estimates will be prepared based on local area construction cost data provided 

the City. We will conduct a brief field survey of key projects to identify any environmental or other 
issues that could affect the cost estimates. We also will account for costs associated with additional 

needs. The resulting planning level cost estimates will provide a reasonable foundation 
for the financial plan and implementation program. 

M:\07\07153 Marysville Transportation Element Update\Admin\Scope & Budget\07153 Scope 7-2-07.doc 
Page 12 

Item 13 -13



Exhibit A 
- 

Priority 
Each improvement project be assigned a relative priority (e.g. high, medtum, low) and anticipated 
timing (e.g. short, medium, long). The priority and timing \dl be based on goals and policies of the 
existing plan, input during the plan update, and the potential for funding. 

Proiect List 
The draft improvement projects and associated information d l  be summarized in tabular form. The 
projects will be mapped in GIs to illustrate the locations and relationships of the improvements. 

Szlmmaries offorecast tr@c volumes and operationsfor baseline condition and with alternative 
impror/ement strattgies 
Framework for 2040 tran.pot?ation ystemsphn 
Conprehensive list of trangot?ation improvementprojects andprogranr~ 
Planning leuel svst estimates andprion'ties 
Preliminaty iniplementation andphasing plan, pending financial ana&ses 
GIS lqer showing improvement projects 

City Suppo- 

Inpr~t on alternative improvements from current andpriorpla~~s 
Cost estz'matingparametersJ;.om recentpmje~fs andfor the Six Year T IP  
Reriew and itpzlt on priorities and timing ofiniprovements 

Task 7: Transportation Finance Program and Update Traffic Impact Fee 

This task of the work program provides an assessment of strategies to fund implementation of the 
updated Transportation Element, includng updating the City's traffic impact fee program. The update 
of the traffic impact fee program will consider multiple lstricts based on improvement project needs 
and travel patterns. The analysis will be based on the refined travel forecast model and project 
list/cost estimates. 

Subtask 7A - Document Existing Transportation Revenues and Expenditures 

The City ~vlll provide the consultant summaries of revenues and expenditures related to transportation 
covering the past 3 to 4 years. Revenues will include fuel tax revenues, traffic impact fees, general 
funds, grants, and other transportation fundng. Expenditures 1vill include capital projects, 
maintenance, operations, administration, and other costs related to its transportation system. 

The revenues and expendtures \sill be summarized For use in extrapolalit~~ puierlGill Cu~urc 

levels from existing sources. Estimates of future revenues from these sources \ d l  be prepared and 
reviewed with appropriate City staff. Estimates of future expendtures for maintenance, operations, 
and administration also will be provided by the City. 

M:\07\07153 Ma~svi l le  Transportation Element Update\Admin\Scope & Budget\O7153 Scope 7-2-07.doc 
Page 1 3 

Item 13 -14



Exhibit A 
Subtask 78 - Update Traffic Impact Fee Program 

A key part of the update is to improve the City's traffic impact fee (TIF). The primary objectives are 
to ensure that there is a nexus between a development and the transportation improvements and that 
the fees are proportional to the impacts of the development. In addition, the impact fee program 
needs to address the annexation areas and interlocal agreements. 

Identifv TIF Projects and Cost Share 
The first step in updating the TIF \dl be to define the improvement projects that will be included in 
the fee program. The impact fee projects must be needed to serve new growth. Projects that only 
resolve existing deficiencies will not be included in the TIF. The decision on improvement projects 
d l  consider the City's level of service (LOS) standards, since the LOS standard is critical in defining 
existing deficiencies and the relative "growth share" of proposed improvements. 

The travel forecasting model will be used to define the traffic components of each impact fee eligible 
improvement project. The forecast traffic at each project will be defined in terms of existing versus 
growth traffic. The model will also be used to identify traffic generated within the City versus through 
traffic. These results d l  be used to help define the proportion of the improvement cost of each 
project that is eligible for the TIF. 

Evaluate TIF Structure 
The City and its Urban Growth Area (UGA) d l  be lvided into potential options for TIF lstricts 
based on land uses, the level of growth, the relative impacts of the growth for each of the 
improvement projects, and travel patterns. The lstricts will be comprised of one or more TAZs. We 
~vlll test up to three various district concepts to evaluate the nexus and proportionality requirements 
based on growth rates, travel patterns, and impacts of through traffic. 

The TIF analysis also will evaluate dfferences using daily or PM peak hour as the basis of the fee. 
This will consider developments that will benefit from improvements but do not affect PM peak hour 
conditions to the same extent. Technical issues, if any, in applying the model for d d y  analyses will be 
evaluated. 

Calculate Imvact  Fee Rates 
Once the district configuration and option for daily or peak hour has been defined, we will calculate 
the maximum impact fee for each dstrict. This will be calculated by dividing the district's share of 
TIF costs by the growth in traffic within each district. The maximum TIF for each dstrict will be 
converted to a cost per unit development using Trip Generation, Institute of Transportation Engineers, 
or other trip generation data. 

Documentation 
The TIF update will be summarized in the Transportation Element. In addition, a brief technical 
rnernoralldum ~vill be prepared to document the process and assumptions, and define its applicatiot~ 

to indvidual developments. 

Following approval of the updated TIF program and results, the consultant will assist the City in 
revising its traffic impact fee ordnance. 

M:\07\07153 Marysville Transportation Element Update\Admin\Scope & Budget\07153 Scope 7-2-07,doc 
Page 14 

Item 13 -15



Exhibit A 
Subtask 7C - Define Funding Strategies and Summarize Financing Program 

Based on the levels of existing revenues versus expenditures and the likely maximum level of 
anticipate funding through the TIF, other potential funding options will be evaluated. These will 
include: 

Partnering with state or other agencies to fund improvements 

State or federal grants 

SEPA mitigation 

Frontage improvements 

Local or Road Improvement Districts 

Business Improvement Districts or Special Assessment Districts 

The draft financing program will be summarized in tabular form. As required by GMA, the 
Transportation Element must identify a reassessment strategy if anticipated funding is not sufficient 
to cover the total costs of the improvement projects and programs. We will define implementation 
strategies and associated policies to meet that requirement. This may include revisiting level of service 
standards, growth assumptions, project priorities, phasing of improvements, or other options. We 
also will assist the City in defining projects that could be effectively partnered with WSDOT and/or 
Snohomish County. 

Consultant Deliverables: 

Sz~mmaries offorecast reventles atrd expenditnres based on historica/ trends 
Comparison oftrafic impactfee options based on tlprlatedproject list 
DeJt'ned trafic impact fee districts and maximt~mpotentiaIfee ~.aIct//ations 
Documentation of tr@c impactfee methodology process and results 

As.cistunce in reriring tr@c impact fee ordinance 
Stimmaty oJ'oi>era//jnatlcingprogram and reassessment strate8 for Transpon'ation ELement 

CitJ-S u4po.r: 

Sz4mmanies of Cig? transportation revenueJ and expendhresforpast 3 to 4years 
Direction/ review on tra@c impactfee program 
Rel~irw ofoaera//jt~atnlrg program for Transpon'ation Elrment 
Lead in @&tins Cdy 3 i .actfee ordinance 

Task 8: Transportation Policies and Concurrency Management Program 

The consultant will review the City's existing transportation policies to ensure they are consistent with 
the revised transportation strategies and financing program. A focus will be on the City's 
transportation concurrency program and level of service standards. 

Subtask 8A - Transportation Policy Review 

The consultant will conduct a brief review of the City's existing transportation policies. \We win 
identify areas that may need revisions or strengthening based on the updated travel forecasts, 
operations, project list, connector road plan, or financing program. 

M:\07\07153 Marysville Transportation Element Update\Admin\Scope & Budget\O7153 Scope 7-2-07.doc 
Page 1 5 

Item 13 -16



Exhibit A 

The consultant d l  provide draft changes for review by the City. Based on City cornments/direction, 
we will finalize the policies for inclusion in the draft Transportation Element. 

Sirbtask 86 - Level of Service and Concurrency Management Program 

The City's existing level of service standards and transportation concurrency management (TCM) 
program will be reviewed throughout the update of the Transportation Element. This d l  lead to 
potential options for refining the existing program to better align with the City's overall 
Comprehensive Plan goals and vision. 

The consultant and City will review the objectives for its levels of service standards and concurrency 
program. Based on these objectives we wlll present two possible strategies for alternative level of 
service/transportation concurrencj7 management (LOS/TCM) programs. These will be discussed with 
the City to establish a framework for potentially modifying the existing program. 

The consultant will develop a draft LOS/TCM program concept, including definition of which 
corridors will be included; the methods and data needs for the evaluation; and the proposed 
standards. The consultant will review the draft LOS/TCM program with City staff and others, as 
appropriate. Based on comments, the draft program concept d l  be refined for presentation to the 
Planning Cornrnission/City Council. 

The consultant will assist City staff in defining modfications to its concurrency review process and 
development review program. This will focus on changes in traffic impact study requirements and 
City data/review processes. 

Consultant Deliverables: ~- - ~ 

Ke~~ommenled c,hanges to or newpolibes to srpport implementation and consistenly ofthe Tranqortation 
Element 
Up to three poientid strategies for modi&ing the City 5. existing LOS/ TCM program. 
Drap ranctpf4r n recked LOS/ TClM program. 
Inpz/t otz hkfb cha~ges to existit3 rlet~elopment reriew and conctlrrenly evahation programs 

C i t ~ s r l t l p o r t :  

E/e~,trot~i~,Ji(es of existit;! Tran~portatiorz Elemerlt poli~ies 
I J ~ I L  ON ~ w - r e ~ t  deuelopmerzL reriiewprqgram and oLje~.t-i?Ies.for l.omu-rengy 
Dirrctio~z/ comment on LOS/ TC&1 options 
Lead role in mod&@ traflc impact st243 and concz~n.eny re?,iewprocesse~ 

Task 9: Transportation Element Documentation 

Task 9 is used to assemble the draft and final Transportation Element. It builds on the full range of 
analyses and input from all phases of the project. 

M:\07\07153 Marysville Transportation Element Update\Admin\Scope & Budget\O7153 Scope 7-2-07,doc 
Page 16 

Item 13 -17



The 
T~.r?crRq 

Exhibit A 
- .. 

Subtask 9A - Update Transportation System Plans 

The updated Transportation Element will be updated to reflect changes in the transportation systems 
plan for various modes, including: 

Streets and highways 

Freight system 

Pedestrian and bicycle 

Public Transportation and Transportation Demand Management 

Each of these system plans will be updated consistent with the identified transportation improvement 
projects, financing plan, and the updated goals and policies. A discussion of implementation strateges 
d l  also be provided. 

Street and Hi~hwav  Svstems 
The Street and Highway System will identify improvement projects for resolving existing and future 
roadway capacity and safety deficiencies. The roadway functional classification also be reviewed 
and updated to support the overall transportation system. 

The project list will include identification of potential new arterials and connector road systems to 
support future growth expected in the City study area. This will help to reserve future roadway 
corridors. The project list will also include roadway widening projects and major intersection/ 
operation enhancements. 

As presented above in subtask 6B, planning level cost estimates and relative priorities will be assigned 
to each project. The priorities d take into account existing deficiencies, relationships with other 
transportation/land use projects, public support, and project financing options based on City goals 
and policies. Projects will be identified into short, medium, and long-range time horizons to support 
the development of the City's Six-Year Transportation Improvement Plan. The final transportation 
project list will be incorporated into the Transportation Element. 

Freight Svstems 
Tnlck routes serving the City will be reviewed and updated, as needed, to be consistent with the 
revised goals and policies. Policies related to use of City streets by trucks and truck parking also will 
be revised, as necessary. The need for improvements at at-grade crossings of state highways and City 
streets within the study area will be identified. 

Pedestrian and Bicvcle Svstems 
14s needed, the pedestrian and bicycle systems plans will be revised. This will be a limited effort with 
input from the City. Sidewalk locations and bicycle routes will be reviewed and updated. This d l  
focus on incorporating new bnks o r  reflecting changes in nrn~-nlutur i~ccl  CaciLitics associated 4th 

roadway projects. 

Public Ttansportation Svstem and Transpottation Demand Manapement 
Transit strategies identified in the project list w l U  be summarized. These will include identification of 

- 

potential neiv routes and admtional service on existing routes. Transit options to serve forecast 
gowth areas as well as existing needs will be identified. Longer-range options for commuter rail 

M:\07\07153 Marysville Transportation Element Update\Admin\Scope & Budget\07153 Scope 7-2-O7.doc Page 17 

Item 13 -18



Exhibit A 
service will be included. The public transportation system plan will be coorlnated with the street and 
highway, and non-motorized improvements to make sure these elements help support the proposed 
transit service programs. The Transportation Element will identify relative priorities and timing for 
each strategy. Strategies to reduce traffic volumes through transportation demand management 
programs will also be documented. 

Task 98 - Prepare Draf t  and Final Transportation Element 

The updated multimocal transportation system projects and programs, the goals and policies, and the 
financial plan will be brought together into a preliminary draft 2008 Transportation Element. It will 
focus on transportation improvement projects and programs needed to meet the short- and long-term 
transportation needs for the City. It will also include summary documentation of the existing 
conditions and travel forecasts. 

'The p r e h n a r y  draft will be provided to City staff for review in electronic format (e.g., a Microsoft 
Word or and Adobe Acrobat PDF file). Based on comments, a draft final Transportation Element 
document will be prepared for review by the Planning Commission and City Council. Up to twenty 
bound copies and one unbound camera-ready copy, and an electronic copy of the Transportation 
Element d l  be transmitted to the City for review. 

Following review and comment by the Planning Commission and/or City Council, the Transportation 
Element ~111 be finalized and transmitted to the City. 

Cons~rltant Deliverables: 

Draft Tra~~.~on'ah'orz Element report (r/p to 20 bound copies and an electronic version) 

Fitla/ Trat~sportation Element ( I  0 bound copies and an electronic version) 

City Suppov t :  

Direction undJ/efomaltlig ofthe Trunqortation Element to be cotzsistent with Comprehensive Plan 
Reriezv and itpldt on draft Transpon'ation Element 
DistriDz/tion of draft reporit 
,4ssemD/e and i,o~1solidate ~'omment.s or2 the drdt document 

M:\07\07153 Ma~Sv i l l e  Transportation Element Update\Admin\Scope & Budget\07153 Scope 7-2-07.doc 
Page 18 

Item 13 -19



S 
r 

0 h 

*- * N 

H 

0 

H 

0 0 

o? N 

n 

0 
r 
*? .- 
PI 

* 

0 

0 

2 .- 

0 

4 

:! 

* 
4 
f 
9 

c 0 + I- 
n F 

0 0 0 0 0  
~ O ~ - N O  
a. *- m -. % 
w m - m m  

* * W H Y )  

0 w ( D  

H 

0 0 

N m. 

tr) 

0 0 0 0 0  
Q 0 1 c N V  
f i m m - q o ?  
w  r m N  

H O Y ) Y ) Y )  

m  r o m f 8 2  

g m a g m  

m  * E m  

N b *  

w 

II) % - m 
0 m - 
u - 
u m u a  
C, * , c C , I  - - O B , S  
S Z F S ~  o u 
z o 2 : Z f  2 
,#I a o QUA. 

m m - 0 j =:; 2 2 a u c  
g 2 2 : ;  
o n  t; t; ;;= 

a e +::% g g  
3 = 

E q  8 85"s" 

9 

st 
w  

0 h 

? 
E 

H 

0 m 
? 
t 

H 

n 

0 w  
0- m ,- 

.I) 

r 

(O 

z 

w  

OD 

m 
4 
; 
* 

0 0  
O r -  
m w- 
- 5  

W Y )  

0 m  
'? 
.J 

Y) 

0 0  o m  
m k 
N O  

7 

Y ) H  

z g  

z 

m % "  

z 

* V  

b b  

Q 
9 0 a 

g :  @ - e 2 :  I- .- 
u c u  .Z - 
8 2  
m m z C  rn 
* -  .$ = tU 

w,,, s n 
f S  E 
a :  m  

m 

% 

0 N 

-. 
w .- 

n 

0 

H 

H 

0 (D 

'% 
$ 

H 

w 

0 0  m m  
? k 
m m  

H H  

0 0  

2 2 :  

m e 3  

0 0  
W O  
V ?  
m m  

t / ) *  

S 

z 
? 
0) 

H 

0 

C! 

H 

0 

5: 

H 

0 w  
N 
m 

n 

S 

- - 5 a 
t s 
m ,. 
a 0 

P - 
E 3 
3; - 
9 - s 

s - 
g 5 
2: @' 
L O  a 
20 $ 
O 2 - $ = m 

- 2  - i:+@' 
C (Z S g 8  ? 

> a  t 
E 

u z 
0 0 
;ii 0 
E - 8 4 

-I 

P 
.d 

E :  
'no 

z z  
m. 0- 
N h  

H Y )  

0 

P 

H 

0 

5: 

u+ 

0 0  o m  
!.m 

N W  

H Y )  

0 ln ~ m  

F 0 

w  

0 

w  

4 

s 
In 

; - 

a 2  

z 2  

0 0  
N N  

E 
L 
m - - E U P - z 

0 a 0 G - b 
0 

m 5 s  - 
u s  - g 

. n (1 .- 
2 :  E 
U s  k 
g :  0 
% ;  z' 
~5 Y 
2 :  Lm 
, " 

z 

m  

m  

- 2  

3 

G 

E 

NO 

0 

g 

0 9 

c, 

4 
9 

W - 
2 
c R 
E 

= u  0 & s  g 
z o a  e 

H 

- 0 

& k t !  9 e ~ x  .- 
p;; u  

b9 

z -  0 

SL&.;2 
e g 2 : c c  

ZuI  pL? 
W L o  - 0 
L w  

- 0 L . r  

+ E E  $ '& 9 
c n. 

m - -  .r - u O X N  
.% g- 

C E 0 'C 
z fL 

tft 

1 
s r r  

0 8  

0 .- - 
0 

In .- 
m E - 

0 - 
0 
u E 
9 'f 
2 -  c 
a =  .S .- 
I: 2 z :  z 9 5  8 

0 

5 t; .- .= .= 
e e  OL 
P a  L  Z F  t 

Item 13 -20



Exhibit B - Marysviile TP Budget 7-3-07 
TransPo 

Exhibit B 
City of Marysville Transportation Element and Traffic Impact Fee Update 

Hours and Cost Estimate 

The Transpo Group - 

Phase /Task 

Vendor1 
~ ~ t i ~ ~ ~ ~ d  Subconsuitant Other Direct Estimated Percent 
Labor Cost Costs Costs Costs o f  Total 

Estimated Hours 
Project Senior Senior Engineer1 Word 

Manager1 Enginneerl Enginneerl Planner Proc/Admin 
Principal Planner Planner 1 support support 

mark-up @ 15% mark-up @ 15% 

$ 11,820 $ 500 $ 12,320 

$ 35,810 $ 3.450 $ 39,260 

$ 10,290 0 10,290 

S 12.710 $ 1,730 $ 5.590 5 20.030 

S 70,630 S 5,180 S 6,090 S 81,900 36% 

5 5.460 16 5,460 

$ 6,840 S 6,840 

S 12,300 S - S - S 12,300 5% 

S 6,670 S 6,670 

5 14.820 5 14,820 

S 8,980 $ 8,980 

$ 30,470 S - S - f 30,470 13% 

$ 1,870 $ 1,870 

5 14.540 $ 14,540 

s 16,410 $ s - S 16,410 7% 

~ ~ t ~ l  ~ ~ t i ~ ~ t ~ d  
Hours 

96 

31 8 

82 

94 

590 

44 

60 

104 

58 

96 

56 

210 

10 

84 

94 

Billing Rate $ 215 $ 160 $ 130 $ 100 $ 75 

~~~k 5 -Travel Demand Model Refinement and Update 

5~ - TAZ ~efinement and Land use Data 

5~ -Develop Base Year Model 

5c  evelo lop Forecast Year Model 

3) - ~ o d e l  ~ocumentat ion and Meetings 

(3) 

Totai Task 5 

2 24 20 48 2 

4 48 24 240 2 

4 20 16 40 2 

4 40 20 24 6 

14 132 80 352 12 

~~~k 6 -Transportation Systems Improvement Projects and Programs 

6A. 2030 Baseline Conditions and 
Evaluation of Improvements 

68 - prepare Transportation Improvement 

project List 

Total Task 5 

8 8 24 4 

4 4 8 40 4 

12 4 16 84 8 

~~~k 7 - Transportation Flnance PWram and Update Tralfic impact Fee 

7~ - Document Existing Transportation 
Revenues and Expenditures 

70 - Update Traffic impact Fee Program 

7~ - Define Funding Strategiesand 
Summarize Financing Program 

Total Task 7 

8 48 2 

40 12 40 4 

24 4 16 8 4 

72 16 16 96 10 

~~~k 8. ~ ~ ~ ~ s p o r t a t l o n  Policies and Concurrsncy Management Program 

8~ -Transportation PollCy Review 

88 . Level of Service and Concurrency 
Management Program 

Total Task 8 

8 2 

48 8 8 16 4 

56 8 6 16 6 

Item 13 -21



Exhibit B - Marysville TP Budget 7-3-07 
Transpo 

Exhibit B 
City of Marysville Transportation Element and Traffic Impact Fee Update 

Hours and Cost Estimate 

The Transpo Group 

Phase /Task 

Vendor1 
Estimated Subconsultant Other Dlrect Total Estlrnated Percent 

Costs Costs Costs of  Total Labor Cost 

Estlmated Hours 
Project Senior Senior Englneerl Word 

Manager1 Enginneerl Enginneerl Planner ProclAdmln 
Principal Planner Planner 1 Support Support 

mark-up @ 15% mark-up @ 15% 

$ 6,520 $ 6.520 

$ 9.580 $ 860 $ 10,440 

$ 16,100 S - $ 860 S 16.960 7% 

S 207,440 S 8,580 S 12,290 S 228,310 100% 

Total Estlrnated 
Hours 

52 

76 

128 

1594 

$ 207,440 

S 20,870 

S 228,310 

Billing Rate $ 215 $ 160 $ 130 $ 100 $ 75 

Task 9 -  sportatio at ion Element Documentation 

9~ - Update Transportation Systems 

Plans 
g~ . prepare Draft and Final 
-rransportation Element 

Total Task 9 

Total Estimated Hours 

Total Estimated Labor Costs 

Vendors, Subs, and Direct codS 
(@lSO/. mark-UP) 

Total Estimated Costs 

8 4 12 20 8 

20 4 8 12 32 

28 8 20 32 40 

270 256 156 790 122 

$ 58,050 S 40,960 $ 20,280 $ 79,000 $ 9,150 

$ 58,050 S 40,960 S 20,280 $ 79,000 S 9,150 

Item 13 -22



Item 13 -23



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

AND THE TRANSPO GROUP, INC. 
FOR CONSULTING SERVICES 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into in Snohomish County, 

Washington, by and between CITY OF MARYSVILLE, hereinafter called 

the "City," and The Transpo Group, Inc. a Washington corporation, 

hereinafter called the "Consultant." 

WHEREAS, the Consultant has represented, and by entering 

into this Agreement now represents, that the firm and all 

employees assigned to work on any City project are in full 

compliance with the statutes of the State of Washington governing 

activities to be performed and that all personnel to be assigned 

to the work required under this agreement are fully qualified and 

properly licensed to perform the work to which they will be 

assigned. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, 

covenants and performances contained herein below, the parties 

hereto agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I. PURPOSE 

The purpose of this agreement is to provide the City with 
consulting services to 

update the City's Transportation Element and Traffic Impact Fee 
Proqram as described in Article 11. The general terms and 
conditions of relationships between the City and the Consultant 
are specified in this agreement. 

ARTICLE 11. SCOPE OF WORK 

The scope of work is set out in the attached estimate of 
Professional Services for the Transportation Element and Traffic 
Impact Fee Proqram Update Project, hereinafter referred to as the 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT - 1 
/wpflformslMV0038 - PSA 

Item 13 -24



"scope of services," Exhibit A. All services and materials 
necessary to accomplish the tasks outlined in Exhibit A shall be 
provided by the Consultant unless noted otherwise in the scope of 
services or this agreement. 

ARTICLE 111. OBLIGATIONS OF THE CONSULTANT 

111.1 MINOR CHANGES IN SCOPE. The Consultant shall 
accept minor changes, amendments, or revision in the detail of 
the work as may be required by the City when such changes will 
not have any impact on the service costs or proposed delivery 
schedule. Extra work, if any, involving substantial changes 
and/or changes in cost or schedules will be addressed as follows: 

Extra Work. The City may desire to have the Consultant 
perform work or render services in connection with each 
project in addition to or other than work provided for by 
the expressed intent of the scope of work in the scope of 
services. Such work will be considered as extra work and 
will be specified in a written supplement to the scope of 
services, to be signed by both parties, which will set forth 
the nature and the scope thereof. All proposals for extra 
work or services shall be prepared by the Consultant at no 
cost to the City. Work under a supplemental agreement shall 
not proceed until executed in writing by the parties. 

111.2 WORK PRODUCT AND DOCUMENTS. The work product and 
all documents listed in the scope of services shall be furnished 
by the Consultant to the City, and upon completion of the work 
shall become the property of the City, except that the Consultant 
may retain one copy of the work product and documents for its 
records. The Consultant will be responsible for the accuracy of 
the work, even though the work has been accepted by the City. 

In the event that the Consultant shall default on this 
agreement or in the event that this contract shall be terminated 
prior to i.ts completion as herein provided, all work product of 
the Consultant, along with a summary of work done to date of 
default or termination, shall become the property of the City. 
Upon request, the Consultant shall tender the work product and 
summary to the City. Tender of said work product shall be a 
prerequisite to final payment under this contract. The summary 
of work done shall be prepared at no additional cost to the City. 

Consultant will not be held liable for reuse of these 
documents or modifications thereof for any purpose other than 
those authorized under this Agreement without the written 
authorization of Consultant. 

111.3 TIME OF PERFORMANCE. The Consultant shall be 
authorized to begin work under the terms of this agreement upon 
signing of both the scope of services and this agreement and 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT - 2 
/wpf/forrns/MV0038 - PSA 

Item 13 -25



shall complete the work per the schedule by May 30, 2008, unless 
a mutual written agreement is signed to change the schedule. An 
extension of the time for completion may be given by the City due 
to conditions not expected or anticipated at the time of 
execution of this agreement. 

111.4 NONASSIGNABLE. The services to be provided by the 
Consultant shall not be assigned or subcontracted without the 
express written consent of the City. 

111.5 EMPLOYMENT. Any and all employees of the 
Consultant, while engaged in the performance of any work or 
services required by the Consultant under this agreement, shall 
be considered employees of the Consultant only and not of the 
City, and any and all claims that may or might arise under the 
Workman's Compensation Act on behalf of any said employees while 
so engaged, and any and all claims made by any third party as a 
consequence of any negligent act or omission on the part of the 
Consultant or its employees while so engaged in any of the work 
or services provided herein shall be the sole obligation of the 
Consultant. 

111.6 INDEMNITY. 

a. The Consultant will at all times indemnify and 
hold harmless and defend the City, its elected officials, 
officers, employees, agents and representatives, from and 
against any and all lawsuits, damages, costs, charges, 
expenses, judgments and liabilities, including attorney's 
fees (including attorney's fees in establishing 
indemnification), collectively referred to herein as 
"losses" resulting from, arising out of, or related to one 
or more claims arising out of negligent acts, errors, or 
omissions of the Consultant in performance of Consultant's 
professional services under this agreement. The term 
"claims" as used herein shall mean all claims, lawsuits, 
causes of action, and other legal actions and proceedings of 
whatsoever nature, involving bodily or personal injury or 
death of any person or damage to any property including, but 
not limited to, persons employed by the City, the Consultant 
or other person and all property owned or claimed by the 
City, the Consultant, or affiliate of the Consultant, or any 
other person. 

b. Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine 
that this agreement is subject to RCW 4.24.115, then, in the 
event of liability for damaging arising out of bodily injury 
to persons or damages to property caused by or resulting 
from the concurrerll neyliyence of the Consultant and the 

City, its members, officers, employees and agents, the 
Consultant's liability to the City, by way of 
indemnification, shall be only to the extent of the 
Consultant's negligence. 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT - 3 
/wpf/forms/MV0038 - PSA 

Item 13 -26



c. The provisions of this section shall survive the 
expiration or termination of this agreement. 

111.7 INSURANCE. 

a. Minimum Limits of Insurance. The Consultant 
shall, before commencing work under this agreement, file 
with the City certificates of insurance coverage to be kept 
in force continuously during this agreement, and during all 
work performed pursuant to all short form agreements, in a 
form acceptable to the City. Said certificates shall name 
the City as an additional named insured with respect to all 
coverages except professional liability insurance. The 
minimum insurance requirements shall be as follows: 

(1) Comprehensive General Liability. $1,000,000 
combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury 
personal injury and property damage;damage, $2,000,000 
general aggregate; 

(2) Automobile Liability. $300,000 combined 
single limit per accident for bodily injury and 
property damage; 

(3) Workers' Compensation. Workersf compensation 
limits as required by the Workers' Compensation Act of 
Washington; 

(4) Consultant's Errors and Omissions Liability. 
$1,000,000 per occurrence and as an annual aggregate. 

b. Endorsement. Each insurance policy shall be 
endorsed to state that coverage shall not be suspended, 
voiced, canceled, reduced in coverage or in limits except 
after thirty (30) daysf prior written notice by certified 
mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the City. 

c. Acceptability of Insurers. Insurance to be 
provided by Consultant shall be with a Bests rating of no 
less than A:VII, or if not rated by Bests, with mini-mum 
surpluses the equivalent of Bests' VII rating. 

d. Verification of Coverage. In signing this 
agreement, the Consultant is acknowledging and representing 
that required insurance is active and current. 

111.8 DISCRIMINATION PROHIBITED AND COMPLIANCE =.JITH 

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY LEGISLATION. The Consultant agrees to comply 
with equal opportunity employment and not to discriminate against 
cli-ent, employee, or applicant for employment or for services 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT - 4 
/wpf/forms/MV0038 - PSA 

Item 13 -27



because of race, creed, color, religion, national origin, marital 
status, sex, age or handicap except for a bona fide occupational 
qualification with regard, but not limited to, the following: 
employment upgrading; demotion or transfer; recruitment or any 
recruitment advertising; layoff or terminations; rates of pay or 
other forms of compensation; selection for training, rendition of 
services. The Consultant further agrees to maintain (as 
appropriate) notices, posted in conspicuous places, setting forth 
the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. The Consultant 
understands and agrees that if it violates this nondiscrimination 
provision, this agreement may be terminated by the City, and 
further that the Consultant will be barred from performing any 
services for the City now or in the future, unless a showing is 
made satisfactory to the City that discriminatory practices have 
been terminated and that recurrence of such action is unlikely. 

111.9 UNFAIR EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES. During the 
performance of this agreement, the Consultant agrees to comply 
with RCW 49.60.180, prohibiting unfair employment practices. 

111.10 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION. Affirmative action shall be 
implemented by the Consultant to ensure that applicants for 
employment and all employees are treated without regard to race, 
creed, color, sex, age, marital status, national origin or the 
presence of any sensory, mental or physical handicap, unless 
based on a bona fide occupational qualification. The Consultant 
agrees to take affirmative action to ensure that all of its 
employees and agent adhere to this provision. 

111.11 LEGAL RELATIONS. The Consultant shall comply with 
all federal, state and local laws and ordinances applicable to 
work to be done under this agreement. This contract shall be 
interpreted and construed in accordance with the laws of 
Washington. Venue for any action commenced relating to the 
interpretation, breach or enforcement of this agreement shall be 
in Snohomish County Superior Court. 

111.12 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. The Consultant's relation 
to the City shall at all times be as an independent contractor. 

111.13 CONFLICTS OF INTEREST. While this is a non- 
exclusive agreement the Consultant agrees to and will notify the 
City of any potential conflicts of interest in ConsultanLrs 
client base and will seek and obtain written permission from the 
City prior to providing services to third parties where a 
conflict of interest is apparent. If a conflict is 
irreconcilable, the City reserves the right to terminate this 
agreement. 

111.14 CITY CONFIDENCES. 'i'he consult an^ ag rees  LU d ~ i d  

will keep in strict confidence, and will not disclose, 
communicate or advertise to third parties without specific prior 
written consent from the City in each instance, the confidences 
of the City or any information regarding the City or services 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT - 5 
/wpf/forrns/MVOO38 - PSA 

Item 13 -28



provided to the City. 

ARTICLE IV. OBLIGATIONS OF THE CITY 

IV.l PAYMENTS. The Consultant shall be paid by the City for 
completed work for services rendered under this agreement and as 
detailed in the scope of services as provided hereinafter. Such 
payment shall be full compensation for work performed or services 
rendered and for all labor, materials, supplies, equipment and 
incidentals necessary to complete the work. Payment shall be on 
a time and expense basis, provided, however, in no event shall 
total payment under this agreement exceed $228,310.00. In the 
event the City elects to expand the scope of services from that 
set forth in Exhibit A, the City shall pay Consultant an 
additional amount based on a time and expense basis, based upon 
Consultant's current schedule of hourly rates. 

a. Invoices shall be submitted by the Consultant to 
the City for payment pursuant to the terms of the scope of 
services. The invoice will state the time expended, the 
hourly rate, a detailed description of the work performed, 
and the expenses incurred during the preceding month. 
Invoices must be submitted by the 20th day of the month to 
be paid by the 15th day of the next calendar month. 

b. The City will pay timely submitted and approved 
invoices received before the 20th of each month within 
thirty (30) days of receipt. 

IV.2 CITY APPROVAL. Notwithstanding the Consultant's status 
as an independent contractor, results of the work performed 
pursuant to this contract must meet the approval of the City, 
which shall not be unreasonably withheld if work has been 
completed in compliance with the scope of work and City 
requirements. 

ARTICLE V. GENERAL 

V.l NOTICES. Notices to the City shall be sent to the 
following address: 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
ATTN: John Tatum 
80 Columbia Avenue 
MARYSVILLE, WA 98270 

Notices to the Consultant shall be sent to the following 
address: 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT - 6 
/wpf /forms/MV0038 - PSA 

Item 13 -29



The Transpo Group, Inc 
ATTN: Larry W Toedtli, P.E. 
11730 118th Avenue NE, Suite 600 
Kirkland, WA 98034 

Receipt of any notice shall be deemed effective three (3) 
days after deposit of written notice in the U.S. mail with proper 
postage and address. 

V.2 TERMINATION. The right is reserved by the City to 
terminate this agreement in whole or in part at any time upon ten 
(10) days' written notice to the Consultant. 

If this agreement is terminated in its entirety by the City 
for its convenience, a final payment shall be made to the 
Consultant which, when added to any payments previously made, 
shall total the actual costs plus the same percentage of the 
fixed fee as the work completed at the time of termination 
applied to the total work required for the project. 

V.3 DISPUTES. The parties agree that, following reasonable 
attempts at negotiation and compromise, any unresolved dispute 
arising under this contract may be resolved by a mutually agreed- 
upon alternative dispute resolution of arbitration or mediation. 

V.4 NONWAIVER. Waiver by the City of any provision of this 
agreement or any time 1ir.itation provided for in this agreenent 
shall not constitute a waiver of any other provision. 

DATED this day of I 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

The Transpo Group, Inc. COPQSULTANT 

Approved as to form: 

GRANT K. WEED, City Attorney 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT - 7 
/wpE/Eorms/NV0038 - PSA 

Item 13 -30



CITY OF MARY SVILLE 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: July 23,2007 
AGENDA ITEM: 'AGENDA SECTION: 
Amendment Code 11.04 to Set Speed Zone Authority I 
PREPARED BY: 
John Tatum, Traffic Engineer 

AGENDA NUMBER: 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Proposed Code revision 

This amendment to Marysville Municipal Code establishes authority and procedure for 
Public Works to establish speed zones consistent with RCW. It has been revised and 
approved by staff of the City Attorney. 

BUDGET CODE: 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Staff recommends City Council authorize the amendment to the MMC 11.04 for the 
setting of speed limits conforming to RCW. 

BY: 

AMOUNT: 
N/ A 

COUNCIL ACTION: 

MAY'OR CAO 

Item 14 -1



C I T Y O F  M A R Y S V I L L E  
Marysville, Washington 

ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE AMENDJNG 
CHAPTER 11.04 OF THE MARYSVILLE MUNICIPAL CODE 
ADDING A NEW CODE SECTION CODIFIED AS 11.04.36. 
1 1.04.037. and 1 1.04.038 REGARDING THE SETTING OF SPEED 
LIMITS AND SEVERABILITY. 

WHEREAS, the Revised Code of Washington (RCW) in the Model Traffic Code, 
adopted by the City, provides in RCW 46.61.415 that the local authority may after an 
engineering and traffic investigation by a traffic engineer increase or decrease maximum speed 
limits; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the of setting speeds is more efficiently set by 
the City Public Works and desires to authorize speed setting authority to the Public Works 
Director; therefore, 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE, WASHINGTON DO 
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Chapter 1 1.04 is hereby amended to add new sections codified as 1 1.04.036, 
1 1.04.037, and 1 1.04.038 shall read as follows: 

11.04.036 State law application - Limitations. 
The state traffic laws regulating the speed of vehicles shall be applicable upon all 
streets within this city, except as this chapter, as authorized by state law, declares 
and determines upon the basis of engineering and traffic investigation that certain 
speed regulations shall be applicable upon specified streets or in certain areas, in 
which event it is unlawful for any person to drive a vehicle at a speed in excess of 
any speed so declared in this chapter when signs are in place giving notice thereof. 

11.04.037 Speed limit decreases and Increases - Authorized. 
A. Whenever the Marysville public works director or his designatee 
determines on the basis of an engineering and traffic investigation that the 
maximum speed limits permitted by law upon the public streets, roads or alleys of 

the city are greater lor less than is reasonable and safe under the conditions found 
to exist upon a public street, road or alley, the public works director or his 

ORDINANCE - 1 
lwpf/mvlord.a~nend 11.04 setting speed limit 070207 

Item 14 -2



designated subordinate may determine and declare a reasonable and safe 
maximum speed limit thereon which may: 

1. Decreases the limit at intersections; or 

2. Increases the limit but not to more than sixty miles per hour; or 

3. Decreases the limit but not to less than twenty miles per hour. 

B. Any decreased or increased speed limit as authorized by subsection A of 
this section shall be effective when appropriate signs giving notice thereof are 
erected. Such maximum speed limit may be declared to be effective at all times or 
at such times as are indicated upon such sign; and differing limits may be 
established for different times of the day, different types of vehicles, varying 
weather conditions, and other factors bearing on safe speeds, which shall be 
effective when posted upon appropriate fixed or variable signs. 

11.04.038 Change of existing speed limits - When effective. 
Speed limits in effect on the date of the adoption of this chapter shall remain in 
effect until the director of public works shall change speed limits under the 
provisions of this chapter or when the Marysville City Council shall, by 
ordinance, institute speed limit changes and when such changes, in either case, are 
posted. Any new speed limit will become effective upon posting consistent with 
the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD)for streets and 
highways as adopted by WSDOT. No speed limit change is effective until posted. 

Section 2. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or word of this ordinance should 
be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity 
or unconstitutionality thereof shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other 
section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or word of this ordinance. 

PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor this day of 
,2007. 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

BY 
DENNIS L. KENDALL, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

BY 
, City Clerk 

ORDINANCE - 2 
lwpflmv1ord.amend 11.04 setting speed limit 070207 

Item 14 -3



Approved as to form: 

BY 
GRANT K. WEED, City Attorney 

Date of Publication: 

Effective Date: 5 days afier publication 

ORDINANCE - 3 
lwpf/mvlord.amend 11.04 setting speed limit 070207 

Item 14 -4



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: July 23,2007 
I AGENDA ITEM: I AGENDA SECTION: 

Amendment to Chapter 14.19, Section 080(1) of the 
Marysville Municipal Code 

I ATTACHMENTS: 

PREPARED BY: 
Kevin Nielsen, Asst. Public Works Director 

ED BY: 

AGENDA NUMBER: 

The attached ordinance is proposing an amendment to Chapter 14.19, Section 080(1) of 
the Marysville Municipal Code. The proposed ordinance would modify the Reductions 
and Appeals Section by allowing property that is owned by the City of Marysville, as 
identified by the Snohomish County Assessor's Office, to be eligible for a 100% 
reduction in the surface water utility rate applied. 

BUDGET CODE: 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Staff recommends Council approve Ordinance No. to amend MMC Chapter 
14.19, Section 080(1). 

AMOUNT: 

COUNCIL ACTION: 

G:\Shared\Engineering\Surface Water\SW-RATESWSVL\City Rate ReductionsMgenda Bill-City 
Reductions.doc 

Item 15 -1



C I T Y  O F  M A R Y S V I L L E  
Marysville, Washington 

ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE, WASHINGTON 
AMENDING CHAPTER 14.19.080 OF THE MARYSVILLE MUNICIPAL 
CODE, RELATING TO POLICIES AND PROCEDURES FOR THE CITY'S 
SURFACE WATER UTILITY. 

WHEREAS, the City has an existing storm and surface water utility which imposes 
storm and surface water charges; and 

WHEREAS, the City has proposed an amendment to Chapter 14.19.080 of the 
Marysville Municipal Code, which will improve the efficiency of the regulation and 
administration of the City's surface water utility. 

NOW, THEREFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MARYSVILLE, 
WASHINGTON DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section I .  Section 14.19.080 (1) of the Marysville Municipal Code is hereby amended 
to read as follows: 

14.19.080 Reductions and appeals 
( 1) Reductions 
Any surface water utility customer making a timely payment of the City's total utilities bill 
may apply to the Department of Public Works Surface Water Division for a reduction in their 
rate. All reductions are applicable from the date the City approves the reduction and are not 
retroactive. Reductions shall only be allowed pursuant to the criteria set forth below in 
subsections (1) (a) - (f). The Director shall make a written decision on a written request for a 
reduction within 30 days after receipt of the information, except when additional information 
is needed in which case the decision shall be made within 90 days after receipt of the request. 
The applicant shall be notified in writing of the Director's decision. The burden of proof is on 
the customer to provide the appropriate documentation to request the utility reduction. If at 
anytime, the reduction may not be applicable, the reduction may be reevaluated and removed 
by the Director. 

(a) Senior Citizen low-income andlor disabled low-income. Senior Citizen low- 
income andlor disabled low-income customers may receive a rate reduction pursuant to Ch. 
3.63 MMC. 

(b) Public education institutions. Publicly hnded primary and secondary educational 
institutions that educate and inform their students about the importance of our surface and 
ground water resources may be eligible for a reduction in their storm and surface water utility 

ORDINANCE - 1 

Item 15 -2



rates in an amount of up to 100%. The goal is to reach all students within a school with this 
information at least once during their time at any one school. The rationale behind this credit 
is that the information provided by the school will translate into appreciation and stewardship 
of water resources and thereby reduce negative impacts on local streams, ponds and lakes that 
can result from uniformed citizens. The curriculum requirements shall be set forth in a 
contract provided by the education institution and shall include, at a minimum, information on 
the cause and effects of storm water pollution. The educational institution is responsible for 
providing all documentation that demonstrates the environmental education curriculum taught 
is above and beyond state requirements. In order to qualify for the reduction, the educational 
institution must submit a curriculum plan to the City Council, which shall determine the 
amount of the reduction based on the scope, cost, and anticipated effectiveness of the plan. 
The reduction will be applicable for five years but may be extended by the City Council based 
on submittal of an updated curriculum plan and documentation of the effectiveness of the 
preceding plan. 

(c) Low Impact Development. Properties using low impact development techniques as 
recommended in the Marysville Municipal Code may be eligible for a reduction in their 
surface water utility rate, as authorized pursuant to said Code provisions. 

(d) State highway. State highways shall be eligible for a reduction in the surface water 
utility rate pursuant to RCW 90.03.525. 

(e) Rainwater Harvesting System. Pursuant to RCW 35.92.020 (3), the surface water 
utility rate shall be reduced by a minimum of ten percent for any new or remodeled 
commercial building that utilizes a permissive rainwater harvesting system. Rainwater 
harvesting systems shall be properly sized to utilize the available roof surface of the building. 
The Director shall consider rate reductions in excess of ten percent dependent upon the 
amount of rainwater harvested divided by the mean annual runoff volume generated by the 
total impervious surface area at the parcel. 

( f )  City owned property. Property that is owned by the City of Marysville as identified 
by the Snohomish County Assessor's office shall be eligible for a 100% reduction in the 
surface water utility rate. 

ORDINANCE - 2 

Item 15 -3



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

/ Peter Colleran, Golf Course Superintendent I 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: July 23'h, 2007 
AGENDA ITEM: 
Surplus Item-1 5 Toro Vari-Time Irrigation Control Satellites 
PREPARED BY: 

AGENDA SECTION: 

AGENDA NUMBER: 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution declaring certain items to be surplus 

The 15 Toro Vari-Time Irrigation Control Satellites were part of the Cedarcrest Golf 
Course irrigation system during the 1980s and 1990s. The satellites have not been used on 
the golf course since the mid-1990s and are presently being stored at the Cedarcrest 
Maintenance Building. The components are not compatible with the system now in 
operation. 

BUDGET CODE: 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Staff recommends that Marysville City Council authorize the Mayor to sign Resolution 
No. declaring theses items to be surplus and authorizing the sale or disposal 
thereof. 

APPROVED BY: 

I 

AMOUNT: 
TBA 

COUNCIL ACTION: 

MAYOR CAO 

Item 16 -1



C I T Y  O F  M A R Y S V I L L E  
Marysville, Washington 

RESOLUTION NO. 

A RESOLUTION OF THE ClTY OF MARYSVILLE DECLARING 
CERTAIN ITEMS OF PERSONAL PROPERTY TO BE SURPLUS 
AND AUTHORIZING THE SALE OR DISPOSAL THEREOF. 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ClTY COUNCIL OF THE ClTY OF MARYSVILLE, 
WASHINGTON AS FOLLOWS: 

The items of personal property listed below are hereby declared to be surplus 
and are of no further public use or necessity. 

The City is hereby authorized to sell or dispose of the above referenced items in 
a manner, which in the discretion of the Fleet and Facilities Manager nets the 
greatest amount to the City. 

P 

PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor this day of 

Attest: 

Year 

1980s 

ClTY OF MARYSVILLE 

M A Y O R  

City Clerk 

Approved as to Form: 

Make 

Toro 

City Attorney 

Model 

#I 86-56-04 

Description 
Irrigation 
Satellites 

Quantity 

15 

Item 16 -2



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

City Council Meeting Date: July 23,2007 
I AGENDA ITEM: I AGENDA SECTION: 

PREPARED BY: I AGENDA NUMBER: I 

State Avenue 136'~  Street NE to 1 5 2 " ~  Street NE Corridor 
Improvements - Purchase of FVetIund Mitigation Credits 

New Business 

Final design for the City's State Avenue 1361h Street NE to 152"~  Street NE Corridor 
Improvement Project is under way and soon to be complete. During the course of permitting 
and environmental review, it became apparent that the proposed project would impact 
roadside ditches along the corridor that are classified as Category IV wetlands. Because of 
this impact, totaling 0.203 acres, the City is required to provide wetland mitigation at ratios 
that are established by City Code and, specifically, the City's Critical Areas Ordinance. 

Patrick Gruenhagen, P.E., Project Manager 
ATTACHMENTS: 

BuyISell Agreement for Purchase of Wetland 
Mitigation Credits from Habitat Bank, LLC 

Literature on "Snohomish Basin Mitigation B a n k  

BUDGET CODE: 
30500030.563000 I R-0301 

In light of the fact that no viable wetland mitigation sites exist along the corridor, the City 
proposes to purchase mitigation credits fi-om the "Snohomish Basin Mitigation Bank" near 
Monroe, which is the first approved bank of its kind in Washington state. (See attached 
brochures.) The proposal to purchase mitigation credits has been approved within the 
project's SEPA Mitigated Determination of Nonsignificance, issued March 17, 2007, and by 
the US Army Corps of Engineers in its issuance of Nationwide Permit 14 on March 1, 2007. 
As a result, staff recommends that the Council consider authorizing the Mayor to sign the 
enclosed BuyISell Agreement with Habitat Bank, LLC. The corresponding Bill of Sale and 
Closing Agreement documents are included for the sake of reference, and will be completed at 
a later date (upon closing). 

-- 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
7 

Staff recommends that Marysville City Council authorize the Mayor to sign the enclosed BuyiSell 
5 
COUNCIL ACTION: 

BY: 

I 

G:,Sl~ared,En~ineering R0301 - State Avenue 136111 to I52nd.Permitting.AB~Habilat_Bank.d0~ 

MAW'R~ CAO 

AMOUNT: 
$27,608.00 

Item 18 -1



WETLAND MITIGATION CREDIT BUYISELL AGREEMENT 
SNOHOMISH BASIN MITIGATION BANK 

This Wetland Mitigation Credit BuyISell Agreement ("Agreement") is made by and 
between HABITAT BANK, LLC, a Washington limited liability company ("Bank Sponsor"), and 
CITY OF MARYSVILLE a municipal corporation ("Buyer") (collectively "Parties"). 

1 .  RECITALS 

1.1. With approval and authorization from the Washington State Department of Ecology 
("Ecology"), U.S. Army Corps of Engineers ("Corps"), Environmental Protection 
Agency ("EPA"), Washington State Department of Natural Resources ("DNR"), and 
Snohomish County ("County") (collectively the "Permitting Authorities"), Bank 
Sponsor has established a wetland mitigation bank known as the "Snohomish Basin 
Mitigation Bank" ("SBMB"). 

1.2. The SBMB is established to operate within a portion the State of Washington's Water 
Resource Inventory Area Number 7 ("WRIA No. 7"), which portion constitutes the 
SBMB's "Service Area." 

1.3. The purpose of the SBMB is to provide off-site mitigation for unavoidable impacts to 
wetlands associated with certain development activity within the Service Area. 

1.4. Bank Sponsor is authorized by the Permitting Authorities to operate the SBMB and to 
obtain, hold, sell, and transfer wetland mitigation credits, said credits being units of trade 
representing the increase in ecological value of a site, as measured by acreage, functions, 
and/or values ("Mitigation Credits"). 

1.5. Buyer contemplates undertaking a development activity within the Service Area 
("Project"), which will require permits andlor approvals ("Permit(s)") from regulatory 
agencies and which development activity may cause unavoidable impacts to wetlands 
and may require mitigation. Buyer is solely responsible for determining whether such 
mitigation can be satisfied by its acquisition of Mitigation Credits. 

1.6. Buyer wishes to purchase from Bank Sponsor and Bank Sponsor wishes to sell to Buyer 
one or more Mitigation Credits from the SBMB for the Project on the terms and 
conditions contained in this Agreement. 

2 .  AGREEMENT 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions and promises 
contained in this Agreement, and for other good and valuablt; ~ol ls id~rat iun,  t h ~  rc=cipt  and 

sufficiency of which is acknowledged, Bank Sponsor and Buyer agree as follows: 

Item 18 -2



2.1 . Purchase/Sale of Mitigation Credits 

2.1.1. PurchaseISale. Bank Sponsor hereby sells to Buyer and Buyer hereby buys from 
Bank Sponsor seventeen hundredths ( 0.17 ) Mitigation Credits upon all of the 
terms, covenants, and conditions set forth in this Agreement ("Project Mitigation 
Credits"). 

2.1.2. Purchase Price. The purchase price for the Project Mitigation Credits shall be 
Twenty Seven Thousand Six Hundred Eight and 001100 Dollars (U.S. $27,608.00) 
("Purchase Price"). 

2.1.3. Payment. Buyer agrees to pay the Purchase Price to Bank Sponsor at Closing, as 
described in Section 2.5.2 below, and as otherwise provided in this Agreement. 

2.2. Buyer's Obligations/Limitation on Transfer of Mitigation CreditdProject In formation. 

2.2.1. Mitigation Credits for Project. Buyer shall be solely responsible for 
determining whether the Mitigation Credits may be used for the Project and the 
Permit(s). Bank Sponsor provides no representation or warranty as to the utility or 
applicability of the Mitigation Credits to the Project or Permit(s). Buyer 
acknowledges and agrees that Bank Sponsor shall sell the Project Mitigation Credits 
specifically for the Permit(s) identified in Section 2.2.2 below and that, as of 
Closing, said credits shall not be transferable. 

2.2.2. Project. [to be completed by Buyer] The Project, Permit(s), and related 
information is as follows: 

2.2.2.1. Buyer's name, address, & telephone number: City of Marysville. 1049 State 
Avenue, Marysville, Washington 98270 

2.2.2.2. Permitting Agency(ies) name(s), address(es), telephone number(s), & 
faxsimile number(s): 

City of Marysville Community Development, 80 Columbia Avenue, 
Marysville Washinnton. 98270 (SEPA Review) 
Phone: 360.363.8 100 Fax: 360.363.8284 

US Army Corps of Engineers. Seattle District, P.O. Box 3755, Seattle, 
Washington, 98 124-3755 
Phone: 206.764.6907 

2.2.2.3. Permit(s) Number(s): SEPA MDNS (PA 07005), issued March 17, 2007 
USACE Nationwide Permit 14, issued March 1, 2007 

2.2.2.4. Project Name & Location: State Avenue (Smokev Point Boulevard) 136 '~  
Street NE to 152"* Street NE Corridor Improvements, Marysville, Washington 

July 3, 2007 

Item 18 -3



2.2.2.5. Brief Description of Impact(s) to be Compensated for by the Project 
Mitigation Credits: Filling of 0.203 acres of Category IV wetlands in the form 
of roadside ditches that reside predominantly along; the east side of the corridor. 

2.2.3. Disclosure. Buyer acknowledges and agrees that Bank Sponsor may, as part of 
the process for transferring the Project Mitigation Credits, disclose the information 
provided under Section 2.2.2 above to the permitting agency(ies) described in 
Section 2.2.2 and the Permitting Authorities. 

2.3. Title/Risk of Loss 

2.3.1. Conveyance. At Closing, Bank Sponsor shall by execution of the Bill of Sale, 
described in Section 2.5.4.2 below, convey to Buyer the Project Mitigation Credits, 
free of liens, encumbrances, restrictions, rights, and conditions, except as expressly 
provided for herein. 

2.3.2. Risk of Loss. Bank Sponsor shall bear the risk of loss of the Project Mitigation 
Credits prior to Closing. 

2.4. Representations and Warranties 

Bank Sponsor represents and warrants to Buyer that: 

2.4.1. Bank Sponsor is authorized by the Permitting Authorities to operate the SBMB 
and to obtain, hold, sell, and transfer Mitigation Credits; and 

2.4.2. Bank Sponsor owns the Project Mitigation Credits and has the right to sell said 
credits to Buyer. 

2.5. Closing & Escrow 

2.5.1. Deposit with Escrow Agent. Bank Sponsor shall promptly after the effective 
date of this Agreement deposit an executed copy of this Agreement with 
Woodinville Escrow, Inc., 17330 - 135 '~  Avenue N.E., Suite IA, Woodinville, WA 
98072 (425-483-4171) ("Escrow Agent"). 

2.5.2. Closing and Closing Date. The closing of the purchase and sale of the Project 
Mitigation Credits ("Closing") shall be held, and delivery of all items to be made at 
Closing under the terms of this Agreement shall be made, at the offices of Escrow 
Agent within ten (10) days after the effective date of this Agreement ("Closing 
Date"). 

2.5.3. Limits on Closing Date. The Closing Date shall not be modified without the 
written approval of Bank Sponsor and Buyer. 

2.5.4. Delivery by Bank Sponsor. Prior to the Closing Date and in a manner consistent 

3 July 3. 2007 

Item 18 -4



with all other terms of this Agreement, Bank Sponsor shall deliver to Escrow Agent: 

2.5.4.1. a fully executed copy of the Closing Agreement and Escrow Instructions, 
generally of the form attached to this Agreement as Exhibit A, which is 
incorporated into this Agreement by this reference ("Escrow Instructions"); 

2.5.4.2. a fully executed bill of sale for the Project Mitigation Credits, the form of 
which is attached to this Agreement as Exhibit B, which is incorporated into 
this Agreement by this reference ("Bill of Sale"); and 

2.5.4.3. a notice to the permitting agency(ies) described in Section 2.2.2 above that 
Buyer has purchased the Project Mitigation Credits in the form of an updated 
credit ledger form. 

2.5.4.4. a notice detailing the Mitigation Credit sales recorded with the Snohomish 
County Auditor. 

2.5.5. Delivery by Buyer. Prior to the Closing Date and in a manner consistent with all 
other terms of this Agreement, Buyer shall deliver to Escrow Agent: 

2.5.5.1. the Purchase Price; and 

2.5.5.2. a fully executed counterpart of the Escrow Instructions. 

2.5.6. Closing Costs and Expenses. Bank Sponsor shall pay excise taxes (if any are 
due) and Escrow Agent's fees. 

2.5.7. Closing. 

2.5.7.1. Provided that Escrow Agent has not received prior notice from either party 
that an agreement of either party made under this Agreement has not been 
performed, or to the effect that any condition set forth in this Agreement has 
not been fulfilled, then Escrow Agent is authorized and instructed on the 
Closing Date to deliver: 

2.5.7.1.1. the Bill of Sale to Buyer; 

2.5.7.1.2. the notice described in Section 2.5.4.3 above to said regulatory 
agency(ies); and 

2.5.7.1.3. the Purchase Price, less the costs identified in Section 2.5.6 above, to 
Bank Sponsor. 

2.5.7.2. If Escrow Agent cannot comply with the instructions in this Agreement 
within the time period(s) set by the Parties, Escrow Agent shall immediately 
notify the Parties, and shall, upon five (5) days prior notice return to Buyer and 

4 July 3, 2007 

Item 18 -5



Bank Sponsor all documents and moneys to the parties depositing the same. 
Any such return shall not, however, relieve either party to this Agreement of 
any liability it may have for its wrongful failure to close. Following Closing 
and immediately after the Closing Date, Escrow Agent shall deliver to each 
party at the addresses provided in Section 2.6 below a true, correct, and 
complete copy of said party's closing statement, in form customarily prepared 
by Escrow Agent. 

2.6. Notice 

2.6.1. Except as may be otherwise expressly provided for herein, all notices required or 
permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be 
delivered or sent: (a) in person; (b) by U.S. Mail, postage prepaid and certified with 
return receipt requested; or (c) by nationally recognized overnight delivery service, 
prepaid, and addressed as set forth below. Either party may change its address by 
notifying the other party in writing of the change of address. Notice shall be 
deemed delivered immediately, if delivered in person, or within two days if sent by 
any other means set forth in this Section 2.6. 

2.6.2. If to Bank Sponsor: Habitat Bank, LLC 
15600 NE 173'~ St. 
Woodinville, WA 98072 

2.6.3. If to Buyer: As provided in Section 2.2.2 above. 

2.7. Miscellaneous 

2.7.1. Effective date. The effective date of this Agreement shall be the earliest date by 
which both Bank Sponsor and Buyer have executed this Agreement. 

2.7.2. Assignment. Buyer's rights under this Agreement shall not be assigned or 
apportioned, either voluntarily or by operation of law, without the prior written 
consent of Bank Sponsor, which shall be in Bank Sponsor's reasonable discretion. 
Subject to the foregoing limitation, this Agreement shall inure to thebenefit of and 
be binding upon the Parties' respective successors and assigns. 

2.7.3. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and 
understanding between the Parties with respect to the purchase and sale of the 
Project Mitigation Credits, and supersedes and replaces any prior agreements and 
understandings, whether oral or written, between them with respect to said matters. 

2.7.4. Confidentiality. 

2.7.4.1. The Parties agree that this Agreement (including any drafts hereof) and the 
provisions herein shall not be recorded, shall be kept confidential, and shall be 
shared with third parties only to the extent expressly provided for herein or as 

5 July 3, 2007 

Item 18 -6



may be compelled by a court with jurisdiction over the Parties and this 
Agreement. Buyer further acknowledges and agrees that the pricing of the 
Mitigation Credits is material to Bank Sponsor's operation of the SBMB, any 
sharing by Buyer contrary to this Section 2.7.4 shall harm Bank Sponsor's 
economic interests, and any such sharing shall be a breach of this Agreement. 
The provisions of this Section 2.7.4 shall survive termination of this 
Agreement and the Closing. 

2.7.4.2. The existence of this Agreement and the number of Project Mitigation 
Credits may be disclosed to the permitting agency(ies) described in Section 
2.2.2 above and the Permitting Authorities. The term "third parties" as used in 
this Section 2.7.4 shall not be interpreted to include the Parties' respective 
accountants and lawyers. The Bill of Sale and the notice described in Section 
2.5.4.3 above shall not be governed by this Section 2.7.4. 

2.7.5. Time. Time is of the essence of this Agreement. 

2.7.6. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Washington. 

2.7.7. Amendment. No change or modification of this Agreement shall be valid unless 
the same is in writing and signed by the Parties. No waiver of any of the provisions 
of this Agreement shall be valid unless in writing and signed by the party against 
whom it is sought to be enforced. 

2.7.8. Captions. The captions of this Agreement have no effect upon its interpretation 
and are for convenience and ease of reference only. 

2.7.9. Severability. The unenforceability, invalidity, or illegality of any provision 
hereof shall not render any other provision unenforceable, invalid, or illegal. 

2.7.10. Computation of Time. If any date set forth in this Agreement for the delivery of 
any document or the happening of any event should, under the terms hereof, fall on 
a weekend or holiday, then such date shall be automatically extended to the next 
succeeding weekday that is not a holiday. 

2.7.1 1. Attorneys' Fees. In the event either party to this Agreement finds it necessary to 
bring an action at law or other proceeding against the other party to enforce any of 
the terms, covenants, or conditions of this Agreement or any instrument executed 
pursuant to this Agreement, or by reason of any breach or default under this 
Agreement, the prevailing party in any such action or proceeding (and any appeal 
thereof) shall be paid all costs and rt;usvniiblt: a t t o r n ~ ~ s '  f ~ ~ s  by <\I= v t \ ~ = r  party. 

This provision shall survive Closing and shall not be merged into the Bill of Sale. 

2.7.12. Acts Beyond Party's Control. Neither party to this Agreement shall be in 
default or violation as to any obligation created hereby and no condition precedent 

6 July 3, 2007 

Item 18 -7



or subsequent shall be deemed to fail to occur if such party is prevented from 
fulfilling such obligation by, or such condition fails to occur due to, forces beyond 
such party's reasonable control, including without limitation, destruction or 
impairment of facilities resulting from breakdown not resulting from lack of 
ordinary care and maintenance, flood, earthquake, slide, storm, lightning, fire, 
epidemic, war, riot, civil disturbance, sabotage, proceeding by court or public 
authority, or act or failure to act by court, public authority, or third party, which 
forces by exercise of due diligence and foresight such party could not reasonably 
have expected to avoid. 

2.7.13. No Joint Venture. It is not intended by this Agreement to, and nothing contained 
in this Agreement shall, create any partnership, joint venture, or other arrangement 
between Buyer and Bank Sponsor. No term or provision of this Agreement is 
intended to be, or shall be, for the benefit of any person, firm, organization, or 
corporation not a party to this Agreement, and no such other person, firm, 
organization, or corporation shall have any right or cause of action hereunder. 

2.7.14. Counterparts/Faxes. This Agreement may be executed in one or more 
counterparts with like effect as if all signatures appeared on one copy. Facsimile 
transmission of any signed original document (other than the Bill of Sale), and 
retransmission of any signed facsimile transmission shall be the same as delivery of 
an original. At the request of either party or the Escrow Agent, the Parties shall 
confirm facsimile transmitted signatures by signing an original document. 

The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the dates set forth below. 

HABITAT BANK, LLC, Bank Sponsor 

BY 
Date 

[print name and title] 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE, Buyer 

BY 
Dennis Kendall, Mayor Date 

Item 18 -8



Exhibit 
Bill of Sale for Mitigation Credits 

[the form of the Bill of Sale is attached following this cover page] 

Item 18 -9



BILL OF SALE 

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that HABITAT BANK, LLC, a Washington limited 
liability company, with an address of 15600 NE 173'~ St., Woodinville, WA 98072 ("Seller"), for 
and in consideration of the sum of TEN DOLLARS ($10.00), and other good and valuable consideration 
in hand paid, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, does by these presents 
grant, bargain, sell, and convey to the Buyer (as described below) the following described wetland 
mitigation credits of the SNOHOMISH BASIN MITIGATION BANK, Snohomish County, Washington 
(;'Credit(s)"): 

BUYER: , whose address is 

CREDITS: credit(s) of the SNOHOMISH BASIN MITIGATION BANK, which are not 
transferable and may be applied only to the following described permit(s)/project(s). 

PERMIT(S)/PROJECT(S) (permitting agency, permit number, project name/location): 

Seller covenants, agrees, and warrants that it is the owner of the Credits and that the Credit(s) 
islare free from all liens, encumbrances, restrictions, rights, and conditions, except as provided 
herein, and that Seller will defend the sale of the Credit(s), hereby made, against all and every person 
or persons, lawfilly claiming the Credit(s) or any part of the Credit(s). Seller makes no 
representation or warranty as to the utility or applicability of the Credits to the PERMIT(S)/PROJECT(S). 

DATED this day of ,200-. 

HABITAT BANK, LLC, Seller 

[print name and title] 
STATE OF WASHINGTON ) 

) ss. 
COUNTY OF ) 

On this day of 200-, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public 
in and for the State of Washington, duly commissioned and sworn, personally appeared 

, to me known to be the of the HABITAT BANK, LLC, the Washington 
corporation that executed the within and foregoing instrument, and acknowledged the said instrument 
to be the free and voluntary act and deed of said corporation for the uses and purposes therein 
mentioned, and on oath stated that he is authorized to execute the said instrument. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal hereto affixed the deal and year in this certificate above 
written. 

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of 
Washington, residing at 
Print Name: 
My commission expires 

Item 18 -10



Exhibit A 
Closing Agreement and Escrow Instructions 

[the form of the Closing Agreement and Escrow Instructions is attached 
following this cover page] 

Item 18 -11



WOODINVILLE ESCROW, INC. 
17330 - 135"' Avenue N.E., Suite 1A 

Woodinville, WA 98072 
Tel. (425) 483-4 17 1 Fax (425) 48 1 -2056 

Date: 
Escrow Number: 

File Name: 

CLOSING AGREEMENT AND ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS 
For Purchase and Sale of Wetland Mitigation Credits 

The undersigned buyer and seller (referred to herein as "the parties") hereby designate and 
appoint Woodinville Escrow, Inc. (referred to herein as "the closing agent") to act as their 
closing and escrow agent according to the following agreements and instructions. 

IT  IS AGREED, AND THE CLOSING AGENT IS INSTRUCTED, AS FOLLOWS: 

Terms of Sale. The terms and conditions of the transaction that is the subject of these 
instructions (referred to herein as "the transaction") are set forth in the parties' Wetland 
Mitigation Credit Purchase Option Agreement, Wetland Mitigation Credit BuyISell Agreement, 
or other written agreement, and any attachments, amendments, or addenda to that agreement 
(referred to herein as "the parties agreement"), which is made a part of these instructions by this 
reference. Any changes to the parties' agreement will be made a part of these instructions, 
without hrther reference, when signed by the parties and delivered to the closing agent. These 
instructions are not intended to amend, modify, or supersede the terms and conditions of the 
parties' agreement and if there is any conflict or inconsistency between these instructions and the 
parties' agreement, the terms and conditions of the parties' agreement shall control. 

Description of Propertv. The property that is the subject of the transaction (referred to herein 
as "the Mitigation Credits") is identified in the parties' agreement. 

Closing Date. The date on which the documents required to close the transaction are filed 
(referred to herein as "the closing date") shall be on or before the date of closing of the 
transaction specified in the parties' agreement. 

Documents. The closing agent is instructed to select, prepare, receive, hold, and deliver 
documents as necessary to close the transaction and as provided in these instructions. The 
closing agent may request that certain documents be prepared or obtained by the parties or their 
attorneys, in which case the parties shall deliver the requested documents to the closing agent 
before the closing date. Execution of any document will be cunsideroc\ approval of its form and 

contents by each party signing such document. 

Initials 
Item 18 -12



THE SELLER HAS APPROVED, SIGNED, AND DEPOSITED THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS WITH THE 

CLOSING AGENT UNDER THESE INSTRUCTIONS: 

A fully executed bill of sale or other conveyancing instrument. 

A full executed notice to the permitting agency identified by buyer, that the agreed-to 
number of wetland mitigation credits from the Snohomish Basin Mitigation Bank have 
been purchased by buyer for the permit (by name and number) identified by buyer. 

THE BUYER HAS APPROVED, SIGNED, AND DEPOSITED THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS WITH THE 
CLOSING AGENT UNDER THESE INSTRUCTIONS: 

None. 

Deposits and Disbursements of Funds. Before the closing date, each party shall deposit with 
the closing agent all hnds required to be paid by such party to close the transaction, less any 
reservation fee, earnest money, or option payment previously paid (to the extend applicable 
under the parties' agreement): The closing agent is authorized, but not required, td consider a 
lending institution's written commitment to deposit funds as the equivalent of a deposit of such 
funds, if all conditions of the commitment will be met on or before the closing date. All funds 
received by the closing agent shall be deposited in one or more of its escrow or trust accounts 
with any bank doing business in the State of Washington and may be transferred to any other 
such accounts. The closing agent shall not be required to disburse any funds deposited by check 
or draft until it has been advised by its bank that such check or draft has been honored. All 
disbursements shall be made by the closing agent's check. 

Settlement Statement. The closing agent is instructed to prepare a settlement statement 
showing all funds deposited for the account of each of the parties and the proposed 
disbursements from such funds. No funds shall be disbursed until the parties have examined and 
approved the settlement statement. Some items may be estimated, and the final amount of each 
estimated item will be adjusted to the exact amount required to be paid at the time of 
disbursement. The settlement statement will be subject to audit and any errors or omissions may 
be corrected at any time. If any monetary error is found, the amount will be immediately paid by 
the party liable for such payment to the party entitled to receive it. 

Pro-rations. The Mitigation Credits are not subject to any prorations. 

Title Insurance. The Mitigation Credits are not subject to any preliminary title commitment or 
policy of title insurance. 

Verification of Existing Encumbrances. The closing agent shall have no obligation to verify 
encumbrances on the Mitigation Credits. 

Instructions from Third Parties. If any written instructions necessary to close the transaction 
according to the parties' agreement are given to the closing agent by anyone other than the 

2 Initials 
Item 18 -13



parties or their attorneys, including but not limited to lenders, such instructions are accepted and 
agreed to by the parties. 

Disclosure of Information to Third Parties. The closing agent is authorized to furnish, upon 
request, copies of any closing documents, agreements, or instructions concerning the transaction 
to the parties' attorneys and to any lender involved in the transaction. Other papers or 
documents containing personal or financial information concerning any party may not be 
released to anyone other than the party's attorney or lender, without prior written approval. 

Confidentialitv. Closing agent shall keep the parties' agreement (including these instructions) 
and the provisions thereof confidential, except as otherwise allowed or required under the 
parties' agreement or these instructions or as may be required by law. 

Potential Legal Problems. If the closing agent becomes aware of any facts, circumstances, or 
potential problems that, in its opinion, should be reviewed by any of the parties' attorneys, the 
closing agent is authorized, in its sole discretion, to advise the parties of such facts, 
circumstances, or potential problems and recommend that legal counsel be sought. 

Closing Agent's Fees and Expenses. All of the closing agent's fees and expenses described in 
this paragraph shall be paid from seller's proceeds of sale. The closing agent's fee is intended as 
compensation for the services set forth in these instructions. If additional services are required to 
comply with any change or addition to the parties' agreement or these instructions, or as a result 
of any party's assignment of interest or delay in performance, the seller agrees to pay a 
reasonable additional fee for such services. Seller shall also reimburse the closing agent for any 
out-of-pocket costs and/or expenses incurred by it under these instructions. Some of the costs 
and/or expenses related to overnight delivery fees, courier fees, and processing fees may be 
estimated and as such there may be the potential for profit to the closing agent upon payment of 
their invoices. The closing agent's fees, costs, and expenses and any third-party fees shall be due 
and payable on the closing date or other termination of the closing agent's duties and 
responsibilities under these instructions, and shall be paid as provided in these instructions unless 
otherwise proved in the parties' agreement. 

Reconvevance. The Mitigation Credits are not subject to any reconveyance. 

Cancellation. These instructions may be canceled by a written agreement, signed by all of the 
parties, and payment of the closing agent's fees, costs, and expenses. Upon receipt of such 
agreement and payment, the closing agent shall return any money or documents then held by it to 
the parties that deposited the same, and shall have no further duties or responsibilities under 
these instructions. 

Inabilitv to Complv with Instructions. If the closing agent receives conflicting instructions or 
determines, for any reason, that it cannot col-nply with thcsc instructions by the date cot clncrins 

specified in the parties' agreement or in any written extension of that date, it shall notify the 
parties, request further instructions, and in its discretion: (I) continue to perform its duties and 
close the transaction as soon as possible after receiving further instructions, or (2) if no 
conflicting instructions have been received, return any money or documents then held by it to the 

3 Initials 
Item 18 -14



parties that deposited the same, less any fees and expenses chargeable to such party, or (3) 
commence a court action, deposit the money and documents held by it into the registry of the 
court, and ask the court to determine the rights of the parties. When the money and documents 
have been returned to the parties or deposited into the registry of the court, the closing agent 
shall have no further duties or responsibilities under these instructions, except as provided under 
the section above entitled "Confidentiality." 

Disputes. Should any dispute arise between the parties, or any of them, and/or any other party, 
concerning the Mitigation Credits or funds involved in the transaction, the closing agent may, in 
its sole discretion, hold all documents and funds in their existing status pending resolution of the 
dispute, or join or commence a court action, deposit the money and documents held by it with 
the court, and ask the court to determine the rights of the parties. Upon depositing said funds and 
documents with the court, the closing agent shall have no further duties or responsibilities under 
these instructions, except as provided under the section above entitled "Confidentiality." The 
parties jointly and severally agree to pay the closing agent's costs, expenses, and reasonable 
attorneys' fees incurred in any lawsuit arising out of or in connection with the transaction or 
these instructions, whether such lawsuit is instituted by the closing agent, the parties, or any 
other person. 

Notices. Any notice, declaration, or request made under these instructions shall be in writing, 
signed by the party giving such notice or making such declaration or request, and personally 
delivered or mailed to the closing agent and other parties at their addresses set forth in these 
instructions. 

Amendments. Any amendment, addition, or supplement to these instructions must be in 
writing, signed by the appropriate parties, and delivered to the closing agent. 

Counterparts/Faxes. These instructions may be executed in one or more counterparts with like 
effect as if all signatures appeared on one copy. Facsimile transmission of any signed original 
document, and retransmission of any signed facsimile transmission shall be the same as delivery 
of an original. At the request of either party, or the closing agent, the parties will confirm 
facsimile transmitted signatures by signing an original document. 

Effect. These instructions shall bind and benefit the parties, the closing agent, and their 
successors in interest. 

Definitions. When used herein or in any amendment, addition, or supplement hereto, words and 
phrases are defined and are to be construed as follows: 

The words "buyer" and "seller" refer to all persons and entities identified as such by their 
signatures on this document, jointly and severally unless otherwise indicated, and shall be 
construed interchangeably with other similar tsrlns such as ''purcI~ascr," "vc~.~cc," ot- LLvcndor'' 

as may be appropriate in the context and circumstances to which such words apply. 

Initials 
Item 18 -15



The word "lender" refers to any lending institution or other party, including the seller if 
appropriate, that has agreed to provide all or part of the financing for the transaction or to which 
the buyer has made a loan application. 

The phrase "these instructions" refers to the agreements, instructions, and provisions set 
forth in this document and all amendments, additions, and supplements to this document. 

The phrase "outside of escrow" refers to any duty, obligation, or other matter that is the 
sole responsibility of the parties or of any party, and for which the closing agent shall have no 
responsibility or liability. 

In these instructions, singular and plural words, and masculine, feminine, and neuter 
words, shall be construed interchangeably as may be appropriate in the context and 
circumstances to which such words apply. 

Instructions to Close. The closing agent is instructed to perform its customary closing duties 
under these instructions, to deliver documents according to these instructions, and to disburse the 
funds according to the settlement statement, adjusting estimated amounts, when the closing agent 
has the documents required to close the transaction in its possession and has, or will obtain when 
the documents have been delivered: 

1. Sale proceeds for the seller's account in the sum of $ , to be disbursed 
according to the settlement statement, and 

2. Loan proceeds for the buyer's account in the sum of $ , to be disbursed 
according to the settlement statement. 

Completion or Correction of Documents. The closing agent is instructed to correct any errors 
found in any document deposited under these instructions, and to insert the necessary closing 
date, the date on which interest begins to accrue, and the dates on which payments must be made, 
if such items are incomplete. 

Additional Instructions: 

Parties' Agreement Conditions Met: Buyer and seller agree that the attached parties' 
agreement contains all addendums, attachments, and agreements between them. They also 
certify that all terms and conditions of the parties' agreement have been completed to their 
satisfaction, or will be met, satisfied, or complied with outside of escrow. 

Wire Instructions/Release of Liability: If Closing agent is directed to wire transfer the sale 
proceeds, the undersigned acknowledges that transfer may not be made in the event problems 
arise beyond the control of closing agent resulting in a delay in t l ~ c  rcrnittancc or rcccipt of the 

wire transfer. Closing agent assumes no liability, direct or indirect for special or consequential 
damages, expenses, or costs resulting from any action or failures by the banks processing the 
wire transfers. 

Initials 
Item 18 -16



MATTERS TO BE COMPLETED BY THE BUYER AND SELLER 
IMPORTANT - READ CAREFULLY 

The following items must be completed by the parties, outside of escrow, and are not part 
of the closing agent's duties under these instructions. 

Disclosure, Inspection, and Approval of the Mitigation Credits. Any required or permitted 
disclosures, inspections, and/or approvals of the Mitigation Credits shall be arranged and 
completed by the parties outside of escrow. The closing agent shall have no liability with respect 
to the accuracy of any disclosures made, or to determine whether any required disclosures have 
been made. 

Possession of the Mitigation Credits. The transfer of possession of the Mitigation Credits, to 
the extent applicable, shall be arranged directly between the parties outside of escrow and shall 
not be the responsibility of the closing agent. 

Collection Account. If any financing for the transaction will be provided by a private party, the 
parties are advised to open a collection account at a financial institution to receive and disburse 
payments to be made under the private promissory note or contract. The collection account shall 
be established by the parties outside of escrow and shall not be the responsibility of the closing 
agent. 

IndividuaYExcise Taxes. The parties are advised to consult with their attorneys to determine 
whether they must report income, deduct expenses or losses, or withhold or pay any income, 
business, or excise taxes as a result of the transaction. The closing agent shall have no 
responsibility for the parties' individual tax consequences arising from the transaction. 

Compliance with Certain Laws. The parties are advised to consult with their attorneys to 
determine their rights and responsibilities, if any, with respect to disclosures concerning the 
Mitigation Credits, or under the Consumer Protection Act, Truth-in-Lending Act, or other similar 
laws. The closing agent shall have no responsibility for disclosures concerning the Mitigation 
Credits, or for the parties' compliance, nor any liability arising fkom the failure of any party to 
comply, with any such requirement or law. 

Additional Agreements, Instructions, and Disclosures: 

None. 

NOTICE TO PARTIES 

The services of the closing agent under these instructions will be performed by the person named 
below, who is certified as a Limited Practice Office under Admission to Procticc R U ~ C  12, 

adopted by the Washington State Supreme Court. Under that rule, Limited Practice Officers may 
only select, prepare, and complete certain documents or forms that have been approved for their 
use. You are further advised that: 

Initials 
Item 18 -17



THE LIMITED PRACTICE OFFICER IS NOT ACTING AS THE ADVOCATE OR REPRESENTATIVE OF 

EITHER (OR ANY) OF THE PARTIES. 

THE DOCUMENTS PREPARED BY THE LIMITED PRACTICE OFFICER WILL AFFECT THE LEGAL 

RIGHTS OF THE PARTIES. 

THE PARTIES' INTERESTS IN THE DOCUMENTS MAY DIFFER. 

THE PARTIES HAVE A RIGHT TO BE REPRESENTED BY LAWYERS OF THEIR OWN SELECTION. 

THE LIMITED PRACTICE OFFICER CANNOT GIVE LEGAL ADVICE AS TO THE MANNER IN WHICH 

DOCUMENTS AFFECT THE PARTIES. 

The Limited Practice Officer for this transaction is: 
LPO Number: 

BY SIGNING THESE INSTRUCTIONS, EACH PARTY ACKNOWLEDGES: 

I have been specifically informed that the closing agent is forbidden by law from offering 
any advice concerning the merits of the transaction or the documents that will be used to 
close the transaction. 

The closing agent has not offered any legal advice or  referred me to any named attorney, 
but has clearly requested that I seek legal counsel if I have any doubt concerning the 
transaction or  these instructions. 

I have had adequate time and opportunity to read and understand these instructions and 
all other existing documents referred to in these instructions. 

Conditions of Parties' Agreement Satisfied. All terms and conditions of the parties' 
agreement have been met to my satisfaction, or will be met, satisfied, or complied with outside 
of escrow. 

Settlement Statement Approved. The settlement statement prepared by the closing agent is 
approved by me and made a part of these instructions by this reference. I agree to pay my costs, 
expenses, and other obligations itemized on that statement. I understand that any estimated 
amounts will be adjusted to reflect the exact amounts required when the funds are disbursed, that 
the settlement statement continues to be subject to audit at any time, and if any monetary error is 
found, the amount will be paid by the party liable for such payment to the party entitled to 
receive it. 

BY SIGNING THIS DOCUMENT, THE BUYER FURTHER ACWOWLEDGES: 

Mitigation Credits Approved. I have had adequate opportunity to review seller's disclosures, 
if any. I understand that any and all inspections and approvals of the Mitigation Credits are my 
sole responsibility, and are not part of the closing agent's duties and responsibilities. I hereby 

7 Initials 
Item 18 -18



release and agree to hold the closing agent harmless fiom any and all claims of liability for loss 
or damage arising or resulting from any condition or defect of the Mitigation Credits. 

[printed name] 

[printed name] 

Buyer's Address: 

Buyer's phone: 
Day Evening 

Habitat Bank, LLC 

BY 
Victor Woodward 

Seller's Address: 
15600 NE 173"~ St., Woodinville WA 98072 

Seller's phone: 
Day 425 785 8428 

APPROVED AND ACCEPTED BY: 

Woodinville Escrow, Inc. 

, Escrow Officer 
[printed name] 
Salc closing agreement and escrow instructionsREV2 

Fax 

Initials 
Item 18 -19


	cc WorkSession 07.16.pdf
	Item 7.pdf
	Item 8.pdf
	Item 9.pdf
	Item 10.pdf
	Item 11.pdf
	Item 12.pdf
	Item 13.pdf
	Item 14.pdf
	Item 15.pdf
	Item 16.pdf
	Item 18.pdf



